
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JULY 23, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of        

City government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public 

needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual 

strategic planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 -  -  

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

July 23, 2007 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317   

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Rich Peacock – First United 
Methodist Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Request for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for LMS 
North America – 5755 New King 1 

C-2 Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) to LMS North America – 5755 New King 2 

C-3 Re-programming Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 
2004 Unexpended Funds 3 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 
 

 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 No Postponed Items 3 

CONSENT AGENDA: 3 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 3 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 4 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 4 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 4 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 4 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9 – Membership Renewal – Macomb 
Criminal Justice Training Consortium ................................................................... 4 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 
Specifications – Troy Daze Tents ......................................................................... 5 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-6 
Northfield Parkway Mill and Overlay..................................................................... 5 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting  
Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment 
Replacement Parts ............................................................................................... 5 

E-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #34 and #35 
– Sidwell #88-20-02-427-022 and #88-20-02-427-023 – Joseph N. Haddad, Manar 
Haddad and Beatrice Haddad 9 

E-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreements and Acceptance of Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permits, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 
to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcels #39 and #40 – Sidwell #88-20-
02-279-074 and #88-20-02-279-071 – Michael J. and Arlene Healy 9 

E-7 Private Agreement for Troy School District (Transportation Building) – Project No. 
07.920.03 10 

E-8 Private Agreement for Dequindre Road Taco Bell – Project No. 07.908.3 10 



 
 

 

E-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, 
Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #66 – 
Sidwell #88-20-01-151-002 – Russell W. Rush and Kimberly Jolley Rush 10 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 11 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 11 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Historical Commission; Historic District Commission; 
Municipal Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board c) City Council 
Appointments – Students:  Cable Advisory Committee 11 

F-2 Bid Waiver – Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program 13 

F-3 Request for Street Name Change – Daley Street South of Big Beaver to Behr 
Drive 13 

F-4 Contract Addendum No. 1 – Contract 06-2, Sylvan Glen Golf Course Streambank 
Restoration Project 14 

F-5 Personnel Evaluation – City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm 14 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 15 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 15 

a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 231) – Article XXVIII 
– Restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District – August 6, 2007 .................... 15 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 15 

a) Proposed Revision to Chapter 85, Sign Ordinance – Subdivision Entranceway 
Signs .................................................................................................................. 15 

b) Proposed Smoking Lounge Ordinance............................................................... 15 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 15 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 15 



 
 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 15 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 15 

REPORTS: 15 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 

a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 12, 2007 ........................................... 15 
b) Historic District Commission/Final – March 20, 2007 ......................................... 15 
c) Historic Commission/Final – March 27, 2007 ..................................................... 15 
d) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – May 8, 2007............................................. 15 
e) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – June 5, 2007............................................ 15 
f) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – June 7, 2007 .................................... 15 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – June 11, 2007 ............................................. 15 
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 13, 2007 ..................................... 15 
i) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – June 13, 2007......... 15 
j) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 19, 2007................................................. 15 
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 26, 2007............................... 15 
l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 26, 2007............................... 15 
m) Planning Commission/Draft – July 10, 2007....................................................... 15 

J-2 Department Reports: 15 

a) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Community & 
Economic Development Steering Committee ..................................................... 15 

b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of June, 2007 ............ 15 
c) Building Department – Permits Issued January through June, 2007 .................. 15 
d) Building Department – Permits Issued July, 2006 through June, 2007 .............. 15 
e) Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for June, 2007.................. 15 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 16 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Sergeant Dan Daniel from Craig W. Floyd, Chairman 
& CEO of the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial Fund, Regarding 
Honor Guard Participation During Their 19  Annual Candlelight Vigilth ................ 16 

b) Letter to Mayor and Council from Catherine Buck, President of the Oakland 
County Clerks Association, Commending Tonni Bartholomew, Barbara 
Pallotta, Mike Leavitt, Troy Police Department and Troy Fire Department for 
Hosting the Michigan Association of Municipal Clerks Conference .................... 16 

c) Letter of Thanks to Ann Blizzard from Justin Hooks, Alliance Mobile Health, 
Commending Lifeguard Staff at the Troy Aquatic Center ................................... 16 

d) Letter to Chief Craft from Father Stratton Dorozenski, St. Nicholas Greek 
Orthodox Church, Regarding the Assistance Received from Officers During 
the 14  Annual OPA Greek Festivalth ................................................................... 16 

e) Letter to Chief Craft from Circuit Court Judge Edward Sosnick in Appreciation 
of the Efforts and Commitment of Officer Breidenich on the SAVE Task Force . 16 



 
 

 

f) Letter of Thanks from the Peitsch Family Regarding the Troy Aquatic Center 
and the Attentive Lifeguards............................................................................... 16 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 16 

J-5  Calendar 16 

J-6  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Zoning Ordinance 
Text Amendment (File Number ZOTA 232) – Big Beaver Overlay District 16 

J-7  Communication from Director of Parks and Recreation Carol Anderson Regarding 
Troy Community Center Pass Holder Survey Results 16 

STUDY ITEMS: 16 

K-1 No Study Items Submitted 16 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 16 

CLOSED SESSION: 17 

L-1 Closed Session – Performance Evaluation of the City Manager as Permitted by 
Council Resolution #2007-07-215b 17 

RECESSED 17 

RECONVENED 17 

ADJOURNMENT 17 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 17 

Monday, August 6, 2007 .......................................................................................... 17 
1. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 231) – Article XXVIII 

– Restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District ................................................ 17 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 17 

Wednesday, August 1, 2007 Special Joint City Council-Chamber of Commerce . 17 
Monday, August 6, 2007 Regular City Council...................................................... 17 
Monday, August 20, 2007 Regular City Council.................................................... 17 



 
 

 

Monday, September 10, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................. 17 
Monday, September 17, 2007 Regular City Council ............................................. 17 
Monday, October 1, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................... 17 
Monday, October 15, 2007 Regular City Council .................................................. 17 
Monday, November 12, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 17 
Monday, November 19, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 17 
Monday, December 3, 2007 Regular City Council ................................................ 17 
Monday, December 17, 2007 Regular City Council .............................................. 17 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Rich Peacock – First United 
Methodist Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 No Presentations  
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Request for Establishment of an Industrial Development District (IDD) for LMS 
North America – 5755 New King 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ESTABLISHES an Industrial Development District 
(IDD) for LMS North America for property known as 5755 New King, Troy, MI 48098, Parcel # 
88-20-08-227-004 in accordance with City Council Policy Resolution #2006-06-238; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall FORWARD a copy of this resolution to 
the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI. 48909-7971. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

 
C-2 Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) to LMS North America – 5755 New King  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the Troy City Council on July 23, 2007, 
established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known as 5755 New King, 
Troy, MI. 48098, Parcel # 88-20-08-227-004; 
 
WHEREAS, An Application has been submitted by LMS North America for an Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for personal property at 5755 New King, Troy, MI. 
48098, for twelve (12) years; and 
 
WHEREAS, After due and proper notice by the City Clerk, the Troy City Council, on, July 23, 
2007, held a Public Hearing giving opportunity for comment by all taxing units as to the 
possibility that the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for LMS North 
America at 5755 New King, Troy, MI. 48098 may have the effect of substantially impeding the 
operation of the taxing unit, or impairing the financial soundness of the taxing unit; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has FOUND THAT THE GRANTING 
of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for LMS North America, at 5755 New 
King, Troy, MI 48098 shall not substantially impede the operation of the City of Troy or the other 
taxing units, NOR HAS IT BEEN FOUND THAT THE GRANTING of the Industrial Facilities 
Exemption Certificate (IFEC) will impair the financial soundness of the City of Troy, or the other 
taxing units which levy taxes on said property; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Application for 
an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for LMS North America at 5755 New King, 
Troy, MI 48098, Parcel #88-20-08-227-004, for personal property for a term of twelve (12) 
years, CONTINGENT upon the execution of a Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy 
and LMS North America, in accordance with Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
Letter of Agreement between the City of Troy and LMS North America, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby AUTHORIZED to complete the 
Application and TRANSMIT same to the State Tax Commission, Treasury Building, P.O. Box 
30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

C-3 Re-programming Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 
2004 Unexpended Funds  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy, after conclusion of a Public Hearing on this 
date, July 23, 2007 has determined that program year 2004 unexpended funds of $81,233.95 
should be re-programmed from Sewer Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) for Charnwood 
Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6, to Sewer Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) Charnwood 
Subdivision Area, Phase #2, Section 6; and 
 
WHEREAS, The balance of Program Year 2004 Sewer Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) for 
Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6, unexpended funds in the amount of  
$29,673.71 should be re-programmed to the Section 36 Park Improvement Project;  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADDS Sewer Benefit Fee (Special 
Assessment) for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #2, Section 6 and the Section 36 Park 
Improvement Project to the list of CDBG projects for 2004.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 No Postponed Items 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of July 9, 2007 be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9 – Membership Renewal – Macomb Criminal 

Justice Training Consortium                     
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Police Department has been a member agency of the Macomb Criminal 
Justice Training Consortium for five years;  
 
WHEREAS, The Consortium provides a comprehensive and cost effective training protocol to 
the Police Department at a cost of $160.00 per Officer, per year; and 
 
WHEREAS, Membership allows the Police Department to send employees to many training 
classes at no additional cost or reduced rates, including the Macomb Criminal Justice Training 
Center’s Basic Police Academy, and access to their firearms range and Firearms Training 
Simulator; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a one-year 
membership renewal for fiscal year 2007 – 2008 with Macomb Community College for 
continued participation in the Criminal Justice Training Center Consortium at an estimated 
annual fee of $21,280.00, and approval is hereby GRANTED to use all other training services 
provided through the Consortium membership on a reduced cost basis.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Troy Daze Tents                    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to furnish and erect tents for 
the Troy Daze Festival to the lowest bidders meeting specifications, Dial Tent & Awning Co., 
Inc. of Saginaw, MI, and Ace Canvas & Tent of Detroit, MI for an estimated total cost of 
$11,176.00 and $5,340.00 respectfully, at unit prices contained in the price quote submitted 
July 2, 2007 and bid tabulation opened April 16, 2007, copies of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-6 

Northfield Parkway Mill and Overlay                    
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-6, Northfield Parkway 
Mill and Overlay to Ajax Paving Industries, Inc., 830 Kirts Blvd., Suite 100, Troy, MI  48084, at 
an estimated total cost of $557,674.26; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting  

Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment 
Replacement Parts                    

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to purchase three year (3) 
requirements of automobile, light truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement parts 
with an option to renew for three (3) additional years to the lowest bidders meeting 
specifications under Proposal A as follows, at prices and discounts contained in the bid 
tabulation opened May 10, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes 
of this meeting, with a contract expiration of May 31, 2010: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

 
Kirk’s Automotive, Detroit, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Brakes: Bendix Pads, Shoes Primary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Wausau Plow Parts  Primary Jobber (less) 5% 
Western Plow Parts  Primary Jobber (less) 5% 
Brakes:  A/C Delco  Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Brake Rotors – Bendix Secondary Jobber (less) 10% 
Seals – National Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 

 
Rowerdink Incorporated, Grand Rapids, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Brakes:  A/C Delco  Primary 69% off List Price 
Brake Rotors – Bendix Primary 69% off List Price 
Chevrolet/GM  Primary 50% to 67% off List Price 
Brakes: Bendix Pads, Shoes Secondary 69% off List Price 

 
Terminal Supply Company, Troy, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Soundoff Signal  Primary  40% off Catalog  
Truck Lite Secondary  30% off Catalog  
Wires & Terminals  Secondary  30% off Catalog  

 
Coach & Motor Company, Clinton Township, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Batteries  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
GMC Medium Duty Truck Primary  31% to 50% off List Price 
Wiper Blades – Anco Primary 50% to 68% off Catalog  
Chevrolet/GM  Secondary 50% off List Price  

 
Motor City Truck Sales, Livonia, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Caterpillar Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Cummins  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Detroit Diesel  Primary  Cost Plus 15%  
Seals – National  Primary  Cost Plus 25% 
Sterling Heavy Duty  Primary  Wholesale 
Transmissions – Allison  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Truck Lite  Primary  Wholesale 
Ford Secondary Cost Plus 25% 
Heavy Duty Brake Parts Secondary Cost Plus 25% 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

Start All Enterprises, Detroit, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Batteries  Secondary 10% off Catalog  

 
Lubrication Specialists & Company / Amsoil, Superior, Wisconsin 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Synthetic Oil  Primary  10% off Catalog  

 
Great Lakes Truck & Trailer, Westland, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Heavy Duty Brake Parts Primary  Jobber (less) 5% 
Seals – National  Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Wiper Blades – Anco  Secondary Jobber (less) 5% 

 
Elder Ford, Troy, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Ford Primary  34% off List Price  

 
Shults Equipment, Inc, Ithaca, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Bosch Rexroth Primary  Vendor Price Sheet 
Kennametal Blades Primary  Manufacturer List Price 

 
Ivan Gandrud Chevrolet, Green Bay, Wisconsin 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Dodge Primary  25% off List Price 
GMC Med. Duty Truck  Secondary  30% off List Price 

 
Lacal Equipment Inc., Jackson Center, Ohio  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Tymco Sweeper Primary  29% off Tymco Price Sheet 

 
Alert Emergency Equipment Group, Portland, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Go Rhino  Primary  15% off List Price 
Soundoff Signal  Secondary  20% off List Price  

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

Old Dominion Brush, Richmond, Virginia  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Tymco Sweeper Secondary  20% off Price Sheet 

 
Electrical Terminal Service, Royal Oak, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Wires & Terminals  Primary  Jobber (less) 25% 

 
John R Spring Service Inc., Troy, Michigan   
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Springs  Primary  Cost Plus 15% 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts for the 
following product lines to the lowest bidders meeting specifications under Proposal B as follows, 
at prices and discounts contained in the bid tabulation opened May 10, 2007, to commence 
May 7, 2008 and expire May 31, 2010: 
 
Kirk’s Automotive, Detroit, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Filters    Primary Jobber (less) 50% 
Weatherhead  Secondary Jobber (less) 10% 

 
Terminal Supply Company, Troy, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
GE Bulbs  Primary  30% off Catalog  
Weatherhead  Primary  20% off Catalog  

 
Coach & Motor Company, Clinton Township, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Filters   Secondary Cost Plus 10% 
GE Bulbs  Secondary  Cost Plus 10% 

 
Shults Equipment, Inc, Ithaca, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Root Plow Parts Primary Manufacturer List Price 
Swenson Spreader Primary  Manufacturer List Price 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

 
Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc., Northville, Michigan   
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary Vendor Discount 
Vactor  Primary  10% off List Price  

 
E-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, 

Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #34 and #35 – 
Sidwell #88-20-02-427-022 and #88-20-02-427-023 – Joseph N. Haddad, Manar 
Haddad and Beatrice Haddad  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Joseph N. Haddad, Manar Haddad and Beatrice Haddad, owners of 
property having Sidwell #88-20-02-427-022 and #88-20-02-427-023, and the City of Troy, for 
the acquisition of right-of-way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South 
Boulevard in the amount of $19,700.00, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreements and Acceptance of Regrading and 

Temporary Construction Permits, John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road 
to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcels #39 and #40 – Sidwell #88-20-
02-279-074 and #88-20-02-279-071 – Michael J. and Arlene Healy  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreements to Purchase Realty 
for Public Purposes between Michael J. and Arlene Healy, owners of property having Sidwell 
#88-20-02-279-074 and #88-20-02-279-071, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-
way for John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amounts of 
$19,500.00 and $19,600.00, respectively, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete these purchases according 
to the agreements; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Regrading and 
Temporary Construction Permits in the amounts of $300.00 each from Michael J. and Arlene 
Healy, owners of property having Sidwell #88-20-02-279-074 and #88-20-02-279-071; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deeds and the Regrading and Temporary Construction Permits with the Oakland County 
Register of Deeds, copies of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Private Agreement for Troy School District (Transportation Building) – Project No. 

07.920.03  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Troy School District 
for the installation of detention pond, water main, concrete approach and culverts at the 
Transportation Building and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Private Agreement for Dequindre Road Taco Bell – Project No. 07.908.3  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Sundance, Inc. for 
the installation of water main, underground detention system, concrete approach, curb and 
gutter, and walkway on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk 
are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, 

Square Lake Road to South Boulevard, Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #66 – Sidwell 
#88-20-01-151-002 – Russell W. Rush and Kimberly Jolley Rush  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-07- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Agreement to Purchase Realty for 
Public Purposes between Russell W. Rush and Kimberly Jolley Rush, owners of property 
having Sidwell #88-20-01-151-002, and the City of Troy, for the acquisition of right-of-way for 
John R Road Improvements, Square Lake Road to South Boulevard in the amount of 
$54,950.00, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Real Estate and Development Department is hereby 
AUTHORIZED to expend the necessary closing costs to complete this purchase according to 
the agreement; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Warranty 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for 
Persons with Disabilities; Historical Commission; Historic District Commission; 
Municipal Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board c) City Council 
Appointments – Students:  Cable Advisory Committee    

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

(b)  City Council Appointments
 
Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Historical Commission 
Appointed by Council  (7- Regular) 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 07/31/10 
 
Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 03/01/10 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board
Appointed by Council (7 Regular) – 3 Year Terms (1-Troy School Board: 1-Troy Daze: 
 1-Adv. Committee for Sr. Citizens) – 1 Year Term 
 
 
Gary Hauff (School Board Rep)  
 Letter of Recommendation Received Term Expires 07/31/08 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 

(c) City Council Appointments - Students
 

Suggested Resolution
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following student to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 

 
Cable Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 
Chi Song Term Expires 07/01/08 
 

Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Bid Waiver – Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, On October 18, 2004, Troy City Council awarded a contract to provide for a 
pavement seam and fracture-sealing program with an option to renew for two (2) additional 
one-year periods, to the low bidder, Scodeller Construction, Inc. at unit prices contained in the 
bid tabulation opened September 29, 2004 (Resolution # 2004-10-546-E7);  
 
WHEREAS, Both options to renew were exercised and approved by Troy City Council in 
September 2005 and 2006 under the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contract 
(Resolutions 2005-09-416-E4e and 2006-09-367-E4e respectively); and 
 
WHEREAS, Scodeller Construction, Inc. has agreed to keep costs for the 2007/08 program at 
original bid prices from 2004;   
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and APPROVES a contract to provide a pavement seam and fracture-sealing 
program to Scodeller Construction, Inc. under the same terms and conditions at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation for ITB-COT 04-40 to expire June 30, 2008, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Request for Street Name Change – Daley Street South of Big Beaver to Behr Drive 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby RENAMES the portion of Daley Street 
lying south of Big Beaver Road, shown as a 50’ wide easement for street adjacent to Lots 27 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

through 34, within Supervisor’s Plat Number 11, recorded Liber 46, Page 46 of Plats, Oakland 
County Michigan, to Behr Drive effective November 1, 2007; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council DIRECTS the City Clerk to record a 
certified copy of this resolution with Oakland County Register of Deeds and the Treasurer of the 
State of Michigan 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Contract Addendum No. 1 – Contract 06-2, Sylvan Glen Golf Course Streambank 

Restoration Project 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Addendum No. 1 to Contract No. 06-
2, Sylvan Glen Golf Course Streambank Restoration Project, in the amount of $36,845.56 for 
work performed by Dan’s Excavating, Inc. 12955 23 Mile Road, Shelby Township, MI  48315, 
and the revised total contract amount authorization is $1,261,904.38 including the 10% overall 
contingency as per the original contract award resolution, and the $36,845.56 amount for which 
Addendum No. 1 exceeds the 10% contingency on the Parks portion of the project.   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Personnel Evaluation – City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-07- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
The annual compensation of Council Appointee Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney, is 
INCREASED by _______%, EFFECTIVE August 1, 2007.   
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 231) – Article XXVIII – 

Restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District – August 6, 2007       
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Proposed Revision to Chapter 85, Sign Ordinance – Subdivision Entranceway Signs  
b) Proposed Smoking Lounge Ordinance    
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced   
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 No Council Comments Advanced  
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 12, 2007 
b) Historic District Commission/Final – March 20, 2007  
c) Historic Commission/Final – March 27, 2007  
d) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – May 8, 2007  
e) Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – June 5, 2007  
f) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – June 7, 2007 
g) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – June 11, 2007  
h) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 13, 2007  
i) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – June 13, 2007  
j) 

  
Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 19, 2007 

k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 26, 2007 
June 26, 2007 l) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – 

) Planning Commission/Draft – July 10, 2007 m
 
J-2 Department Reports:    
a) Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Community & Economic 

Development Steering Committee  
07 b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of June, 20

c) Building Department – Permits Issued January through June, 2007 
  d) Building Department – Permits Issued July, 2006 through June, 2007

) Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for June, 2007  e
 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 16 - 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Sergeant Dan Daniel from Craig W. Floyd, Chairman & CEO of 

the National Law Enforcement Officers Memorial Fund, Regarding Honor Guard 
Participation During Their 19th Annual Candlelight Vigil  

b) Letter to Mayor and Council from Catherine Buck, President of the Oakland County 
Clerks Association, Commending Tonni Bartholomew, Barbara Pallotta, Mike Leavitt, 
Troy Police Department and Troy Fire Department for Hosting the Michigan Association 
of Municipal Clerks Conference  

c) Letter of Thanks to Ann Blizzard from Justin Hooks, Alliance Mobile Health, 
Commending Lifeguard Staff at the Troy Aquatic Center  

d) Letter to Chief Craft from Father Stratton Dorozenski, St. Nicholas Greek Orthodox 
Church, Regarding the Assistance Received from Officers During the 14th Annual OPA 
Greek Festival  

e) Letter to Chief Craft from Circuit Court Judge Edward Sosnick in Appreciation of the 
Efforts and Commitment of Officer Breidenich on the SAVE Task Force  

f) Letter of Thanks from the Peitsch Family Regarding the Troy Aquatic Center and the 
Attentive Lifeguards   

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regarding Zoning Ordinance 

Text Amendment (File Number ZOTA 232) – Big Beaver Overlay District 
 
J-7  Communication from Director of Parks and Recreation Carol Anderson Regarding 

Troy Community Center Pass Holder Survey Results 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  July 23, 2007 
 

- 17 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – Performance Evaluation of the City Manager as Permitted by 
Council Resolution #2007-07-215b   

 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 

Monday, August 6, 2007 
1. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 231) – Article XXVIII – 

Restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District 
 

 
SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 

 
Wednesday, August 1, 2007 ....... Special Joint City Council-Chamber of Commerce 
Monday, August 6, 2007 ........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, August 20, 2007 ......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 10, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, September 17, 2007 ................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 1, 2007.......................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, October 15, 2007........................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, November 12, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, November 19, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 3, 2007 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, December 17, 2007 .................................................... Regular City Council 

 



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 23, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  
A-1 No Presentations  

campbellld
Text Box
A-01



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 23, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  
B-1 No Carryover Items  

campbellld
Text Box
B-01



 

 
 
July 23, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for Establishment of an Industrial Development District 

(IDD) for LMS North America, 5755 New King  
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 LMS North America is currently located on Wilshire, in a 20,000 square foot area.  In conjunction 

with Michigan Economic Growth Authority (MEGA) grants, they are seeking (and MEGA requires) 
a local match to facilitate their intention of operating their new facility at 5755 New King, a 58,476 
square foot, vacant building.   

 
LMS is an engineering innovation partner for companies in the automotive, aerospace and other 
advanced manufacturing industries. 
 
They offer 1D simulation software, 3D virtual simulation software, mobile and lab testing systems, 
and engineering services in the areas of structural and modal analysis, motion, ride and handling, 
noise and vibration acoustics and durability. 
 
Our requested local match is for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to be issued 
by the City of Troy (application attached).  This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as 
amended) and local City policy.  As you will recall, this amounts to an approximate 50% reduction 
in personal property taxes that they would pay, over a twelve (12) year period (the total percent 
may be slightly higher or lower than 50%, depending on how much of the 6 mill State Education 
Tax the State levies). 
 
In order to grant the IFEC, an Industrial Development District (IDD) must first be established.  This 
District sets the boundaries wherein the exemption may exist. 
 
The IDD and the IFEC do require separate Public Hearings, unless the local unit has delineated all 
areas where IDD’s may locate, in advance.  Council’s policy is to set the district as each 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



application is received.  For this reason, the bulk of the information for this application is presented 
with the District public hearing. 

 
 
 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $840,000 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $61,393.79, of which $12,028.09 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $30,696.89 in total taxes, of which $6,014.05 would be 
saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 

Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the newly amended tax abatement policy of the City Council 

of the City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.  LMS will lease and occupy the 5755 New King building, which is 58,476 square 
feet, and has been vacant since 2004. 

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option to establish an Industrial Development district, or not.  If Council does 

not establish a District, then no Exemption can be granted.  A public hearing is still necessary to 
deny the exemption. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\LMS\CouncilPakIDD PH 













Michigan Department of Treasury
3222 (Rev. 6-05)

Is this project:
Real Property?
Personal Property?
Both Real and Personal Property - New Facility?
Both Real and Personal Property - Rehabilitation Facility?
Both New and Replacement Facility?

YES NO

YES NO

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

REMARKS

A. Has the proper local authority reviewed the
plan?

B. Is the project located in a certified industrial
park?

C. Is this a renovation or expansion of an existing
building?

Will this project require improvement of your road
service?

Will this project require improvement of your
sanitary sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your storm
sewer services?

Will this project require improvement of your water
services?

Will this project require additional police
personnel, police equipment or a need for new
police building expansion?

Will this project require the need for additional fire
personnel, additional or specialized fire equipment
or the need for a new fire building?

Will this project require other costs?

Are costs of infrastructure elements to be provided
through Local Development Finance Authority or
Tax Increment Finance Authority Bonds?

If you answered yes to any of questions 2 through 8, the appropriate sections of the Supplement to Fiscal Statement form 
must be completed and accompany the IFT application. Call (517) 373-3272 to obtain that form.

Estimated Project Investment (not assessed value):
Real Property Personal Property Total

Applicant Name

Signature Name and Title of Local Governmental Unit Official

This is to certify that the following has been provided as accurately as possible.
LOCAL UNIT CERTIFICATION

Fiscal Statement (to be completed by local unit)

licarila
Text Box
LMS North America



Market Value 840,000 770,028 641,741 481,370 320,978 187,290 93,683 39,056 13,029 3,261 545 46 0
50% of Value 420,000 385,014 320,871 240,685 160,489 93,645 46,841 19,528 6,515 1,631 272 23 0

Year 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Depreciation 0.9167 0.8334 0.7501 0.6668 0.5835 0.5002 0.4169 0.3336 0.2503 0.1670 0.0837 0.0004

Taxable Value 385,014 320,871 240,685 160,489 93,645 46,841 19,528 6,515 1,631 272 23 0

Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes Taxes
100% of 
Millage

Trans 0.59000 $227.16 $189.31 $142.00 $94.69 $55.25 $27.64 $11.52 $3.84 $0.96 $0.16 $0.01 $0.00
County 4.64610 $1,788.81 $1,490.80 $1,118.25 $745.65 $435.09 $217.63 $90.73 $30.27 $7.58 $1.27 $0.11 $0.00

Int Schools 3.36900 $1,297.11 $1,081.01 $810.87 $540.69 $315.49 $157.81 $65.79 $21.95 $5.49 $0.92 $0.08 $0.00
Comm Coll 1.58440 $610.02 $508.39 $381.34 $254.28 $148.37 $74.22 $30.94 $10.32 $2.58 $0.43 $0.04 $0.00

State Ed 6.00000 $2,310.08 $1,925.22 $1,444.11 $962.93 $561.87 $281.05 $117.17 $39.09 $9.78 $1.63 $0.14 $0.00
School Op 18.00000 $6,930.25 $5,775.67 $4,332.33 $2,888.80 $1,685.61 $843.14 $351.51 $117.26 $29.35 $4.90 $0.41 $0.00
Sch Debt 4.13000 $1,590.11 $1,325.20 $994.03 $662.82 $386.75 $193.45 $80.65 $26.91 $6.73 $1.12 $0.09 $0.00

Admin 0.38310 $147.50 $122.93 $92.21 $61.48 $35.88 $17.94 $7.48 $2.50 $0.62 $0.10 $0.01 $0.00
City 9.43000 $3,630.68 $3,025.81 $2,269.66 $1,513.41 $883.07 $441.71 $184.15 $61.43 $15.38 $2.57 $0.21 $0.00
Total 48.13260 $18,531.72 $15,444.34 $11,584.80 $7,724.74 $4,507.39 $2,254.60 $939.94 $313.56 $78.49 $13.11 $1.10 $0.00

Total 12 Years $61,393.79
Total City 12 Yr $12,028.09

50% Total 12 Yr $30,696.89
50% Total City 12 $6,014.05 Net Total City Taxes Abated

City of Troy - Assessing Department
LMS North America

Estimate of Total Taxes and Tax Savings for IFEC Application

Net Total Taxes Abated



Page 1 of 1

4/23/2007http://gauss/output/TROY_GAUSS6380631649.GIF



Page 1 of 1

4/23/2007http://gauss/output/TROY_GAUSS6380631648.GIF



  Page Layout:     2 per Page   6 per Page   

 
20-08-227-004 Use   BI     Print Date   4/23/2007

5755 NEW KING Nbrhd Code   OFF

TROY, MI 48098 CVT   CITY OF TROY (88)

 
Status   Current Improvement   1 View   Front Photo Date   6/7/2001
Comments    None. 

 
Status   Current Improvement   1 View   Side Photo Date   6/7/2001
Comments    None. 

Page 1 of 2View/Print Images from DigiPics

4/23/2007http://ea2.co.oakland.mi.us/newdp/viewer/publicViewer2.cfm?cvt_cd=88&pin=20082270...



BUILDING SKETCH
Property Address 5755 NEW KING
City TROY County OAKLAND State MI Zip 48098
Owner NEW KING LLC
Client
Appraiser Name

File No 88-20-08-227-004

City of Troy APEX SOFTWARE 800-858-9958 Apx7100-w Apex2Page 1 of 2

AREA  CALCULATIONS  SUMMARY
Code Description Factor Net Size Perimeter Net Totals
GBA1 1st Floor  29944.01.00    770.4  29944.0

Net BUILDING Area (Rounded w/ Factors)     29944

25
.5

'

219.0'

21
9.

0'

25.5'

10
1.7

'

78
.0'

10
1.7

'

88-20-08-227-004
5755 New King

1st Floor & Summary

1st Floor
29,943.98 sf

770.40 lf
H = 15'

C Class Office
2 Stories

58,894.38 sf Total
29,447 sf Avg/Fl

774 lf Avg/Fl
H = 15' each
All Sprinkled

Built 1998
70,212 sf Asphalt



BUILDING SKETCH
Property Address 5755 NEW KING
City TROY County OAKLAND State MI Zip 48098
Owner NEW KING LLC
Client
Appraiser Name

File No 88-20-08-227-004

City of Troy APEX SOFTWARE 800-858-9958 Apx7100-w Apex2Page 2 of 2

AREA  CALCULATIONS  SUMMARY
Code Description Factor Net Size Perimeter Net Totals
GBA1 2nd Floor  28950.41.00    776.9
P/P

 28950.4
Open to Below    993.71.00    162.5    993.7

Net BUILDING Area (Rounded w/ Factors)     28950

25
.5

'

219.0'

21
9.

0'

25.5'

10
1.7

'

15
.0

'
54

.5'

15.0'

10
1.7

'

78
.0'

Ope
n to

Belo
w99

3.7
1 s

f

88-20-08-227-004
5755 New King

2nd Floor

2nd Floor
28,950.40 sf

776.90 lf
H = 15'



88-20-08-227-004 
5755 New King  
Troy, MI 48098 
 
Legal Description 
 
 
 
T2N, R11E, SEC 8  
PART OF NE 1/4  
BEG AT PT DIST  
N 02-30-26 W 1360.83 FT &  
S 87-29-34 W 751.57 FT  
FROM E 1/4 COR,  
TH S 87-29-34 W 980.87 FT,  
TH N 35-58-39 W 89.71 FT,  
TH N 49-02-41 E 701.34 FT,  
TH S 26-23-35 E 78.07 FT,  
TH E 390.22 FT,  
TH ALG CURVE TO LEFT, RAD 310 FT,  
CHORD BEARS S 10-24-25 E 158.09 FT,  
DIST OF 159.86 FT,  
TH S 25-10-47 E 50.19 FT,  
TH ALG CURVE TO RIGHT, RAD 240 FT,  
CHORD BEARS S 13-50-37 E 94.35 FT,  
DIST OF 94.97 FT,  
TH S 02-30-26 E 127.06 FT  
TO BEG 8.19 A 
8/1/88 FR 228-001 



 
 
 
To: State Tax Commission 
 P.O. Box 30471 
 Lansing, MI 48909-7971 
 
From: Leger (Nino) Licari, Assessor 
 
Re: Affidavit of Application Fees For IFEC 
 
 
 
 
  This affidavit attests that no payment of any kind has been made or 
promised in exchange for favorable consideration of an exemption 
certificate application by the City of Troy, in regards to the application of                     
LMS North America, 5755 New King, Troy, Michigan. 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________               ______________ 
Signed, Leger (Nino) Licari, City Assessor                                           Dated 
 
 
____________________________________________                     __________________ 
Signed,                                                                                                 Dated 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
 

 
     This agreement between LMS North America, (“Company”) and the 
City of Troy, is for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of Public Act 
198, as amended in Public Act 334, Section 22. 
 
     In consideration of approval of an Industrial Facilities Exemption 
Certificate (IFEC), LMS North America, understands that through its 
investment of $ 700,000 and its qualification for Michigan Economic 
Growth Authority incentives, and the City of Troy, by its investment of the 
Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate, are mutually investing in and 
benefiting from this economic development project, and furthermore, 
agree to the following: 

   
 
1.) The length of time for which the abatement is approved is __ 

years after either completion of construction of the facilities, or 
December 31, 2019, whichever is sooner. 

 
2.) At the end of two (2) years or no later than December 31, 

2009, LMS North America will report to the Assessing 
Department of the City of Troy the actual cost of this project 
and indicate any differences and the reason for any 
differences in the cost or scope of the project as compared to 
the IFEC application submitted by the Company. 

 
3.) LMS North America, agrees to remain within the City of Troy 

for the period of the Industrial Facilities Tax (IFT) abatement in 
order to retain the benefits of the IFT, unless permission for 
relocation is granted by the City Council of the City of Troy. 

 
LMS North America, further understands that if it chooses to 
leave the City of Troy without permission for relocation prior to 
the end of the term of the IFT, the City Council of the City of 
Troy has the right to recapture from the Company the total 
amount of taxes abated by the IFT. 

 
4.)  LMS North America, understands that the City of Troy may 

reduce the term of the IFEC, revoke the IFEC and/or recover 
from the Company, the amount of taxes which were abated if 
the project has not been completed, expenditures made, as 
represented by the Company, in Section 12’C of its 
application, by sending a copy of this Agreement along with a 
copy of the City Council Resolution authorizing such action to 
the State Tax Commission. 

 
 
 



 
5.) LMS North America, agrees that it will operate the Project in 

accordance with all applicable Federal, State and Local laws 
or regulations, including but not limited to zoning, outside 
storage, industrial waste disposal, air and water quality, noise 
control, other environmental regulations, and all of the terms 
and conditions of the Consent Judgment governing the parcel. 

 
6.) By execution of the Agreement, it is understood that the 

Company’s investment in the Project, and the City of Troy’s 
investment in the granting of the IFEC is to encourage 
economic growth within the City of Troy. 
 
The City of Troy acknowledges that in some instances 
economic conditions may prevent the Company from 
complying fully with this Agreement, and the terms of the 
Application.  The City of Troy will give the Company an 
opportunity to explain the reasons for any variations from the 
representations contained in the Application and will evaluate 
the Company’s situation prior to taking any action authorized 
by Paragraph 4 and 5 of this Letter of Agreement.  

 
7.) This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement between the 

parties and there are no other remedies for breach of this 
Agreement other than as specified in this Agreement or as 
provided for in Public Act 198. 

 
     This agreement may only be altered upon mutual consent of both 
parties. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

CITY OF TROY 
INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES EXEMPTION 

CERTIFICATE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
(Signature page) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ __________________ 
   (date) 
 
Name:       
 
Title:  
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling , Mayor (date) 
 City of Troy 
 500 W Big Beaver 
 Troy, MI 48084-5285 
 
 
Signed: ________________________ ___________________ 
  Tonni L. Bartholomew                         (date) 
 City Clerk 





F-5 Amending the Personal Property Tax Abatement for Manufacturing and 
Headquarter Companies 

 
Resolution #2006-06-238 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has the economic objective of (a) increasing employment 
opportunities, (b) diversifying and stabilizing the industrial base of the community, (c) reducing 
economic obsolescence of the industrial base, (d) providing homogenous industrial areas, (e) 
encouraging industrial expansion, (f) providing for improved public facilities in industrial areas, 
and (g) encouraging attractive, viable industrial sites, and 
 
WHEREAS, The Industrial Facilities Tax Act (P.A. 1974 No. 198), as amended, empowers 
cities to establish Industrial Development Districts (IDD) and to grant tax exemptions for certain 
industrial properties which meet certain criteria established by the Act; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, By the City Council of the City of Troy, that the following 
criteria are to be met, applied or measured by the City Manager or his designees in the review 
of areas and locations to be considered for designation as Industrial Development Districts 
(IDD) by the City Council: 
 

1) That the tax exemption shall not apply to real property except those building 
improvements which are uniquely required to support the personal property to be 
abated; and 

 
2) That the tax exemption shall not apply to leasehold improvements or building 

improvements except those uniquely required to support personal property to be 
abated; and  

 
3) That said abatement of taxes shall cease at such time as applicant fails to prove 

by factual evidence that such personal property is being used in compliance with 
the basic guidelines established above. 

 
4) The applicant would document that they are Michigan Economic Growth Authority 

(MEGA) eligible, would be filling vacant Troy space, or will retain or expand the 
number of jobs in Troy. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the term of abatement for any and all property meeting the 
aforementioned criteria SHALL NOT exceed 12 years, it being the INTENT OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL TO APPROVE various lengths of abatements to the extent provided by laws of the 
State of Michigan. 
 
Yes: Fleming, Lambert, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 









 

 
 
July 23, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager-Finance/Administration 
    Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager – Economic Development Services 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to consider granting an Industrial Facilities Exemption 

Certificate (IFEC) to LMS North America, 5755 New King, Troy MI 
48098  

 
 
 
Background: 
 
 LMS North America, is currently located on Wilshire.  They intend to lease and occupy the vacant 

58,476 square foot building at 5755 New King, and move their operations there. 
 

Our requested local match is for an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) to be issued 
by the City of Troy.  This is according to Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended) and local City 
policy.  As you will recall, this amounts to an approximate 50% reduction in personal property 
taxes that they would pay, over a twelve (12) year period (the total percent may be slightly higher 
or lower than 50%, depending on how much of the 6 mill State Education Tax the State levies). 
 

Financial Considerations: 
 
 The estimated amount of investment in personal property is $840,000 for the project.  Over a 

twelve (12) year life, the estimated total taxes are $61,393.79, of which $12,028.09 would be City 
taxes. 

 
A 50% abatement amounts to a savings of $30,696.89 in total taxes, of which $6,014.05 would be 
saved on City taxes.  This is the financial cost to all taxing authorities.  

 
 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 The application meets all requirements of Public Act 198 of 1974 (as amended), the Plant 
Rehabilitation and Industrial Development Districts legislation. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The application is in compliance with the newly amended tax abatement policy of the City Council 

of the City of Troy (Resolution #2006-06-238, attached).  
 

City Council Goal II, “Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment” is met with 
this expansion.  The company will lease and occupy an existing vacant 58,476 square foot 
building, and bring in an additional 10 jobs. 

 
Since both legal and policy considerations are met, staff would recommend establishing the 
District. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council has the option of granting the Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate for any period 

of one (1) to twelve (12) years, or not at all.   
 

This is a well-established company, with many opportunities to expand, and staff recommends 
that the Exemption be granted for the full twelve (12) years. 

 
 
NL/nl H:\I.F.T.\LMS\CouncilPakIFEC PH 









 
 
July 10,2007 
 
 
TO:                Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
  
FROM:           Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services         
                     John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration  

         Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director       
           Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:    Public Hearing – Re-programming Community Development Block Grant 
                     (CDBG) Program Year 2004 unexpended funds 
 
Background:  
 
 The special assessment account for CDBG program year 2004 has a balance of 

$110,907.66. 
 
 In December of 2004 the Engineering Department conducted a poll of the residents 

affected by the Charnwood project. Twenty (20) responses were received from 
residents that felt they qualified for CDBG funding based upon the income 
information provided them. Funding was allocated based on this survey. We received 
six (6) applications. Four (4) property owners qualified for Phase #1. 

 
 Five (5) Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #2 residents have provided the 

necessary documentation and qualify to have their Special Assessment (Sanitary 
Sewer Benefit Use Fee) costs paid from our CDBG allocation.  

 
 The balance of funds from Program Year 2004 must be expended or relinquished. 

 
 Oakland County has recommended a walking path project in Section 36 Park, 

located south of Maple just west of Milverton as an eligible project under the CDBG 
program. This project would not be subject to Davis-Bacon if completed internally.  

 
 Charnwood Hills Sanitary Sewer Phase #2 and Section 36 Park Walking Path 

projects were initiated after the 2004 CDBG application was submitted, so they were 
not included on our initial list of projects. 

 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



Financial Considerations: 
 
 Unexpended funds for CDBG Program Year 2004 must be exhausted by December 

31, 2007 so the City may be reimbursed by Oakland County through the CDBG 
Program. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The proposed re-programming is consistent with City Council Goal 1 (Enhance the 

livability and safety of the residents) and Goal V (Maintain relevance of public 
infrastructure to meet changing public needs.) 

  
 
Options: 
 
 City Management recommends: 

 
 A.  Re-programming unexpended CDBG Program Year 2004 funds in the amount of 

$110,907.66 as follows:  
1. $81,233.95 re-programmed from Sewer Benefit Fee (Special 

Assessment) for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6, to 
Sewer Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) Charnwood Subdivision Area, 
Phase #2, Section 6. 

2. $29,673.71 re-programmed from Sewer Benefit Fee (Special 
Assessment) for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6, to  
Section 36 Park Improvement Project. 

 
 B. The addition of Sewer Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) for Charnwood 

Subdivision Area, Phase #2, Section 6 and the Section 36 Park Improvement Project 
to the list of CDBG projects for 2004. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VR\S: Murphy’s Review/Agenda 07.23.07 – CDBG Re-programming  



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 23, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  
D-1 No Postponed Items  

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, July 9, 2007, at City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 
Pastor Randy Vinson of Glen Oaks Alliance Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini  
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert (Absent) 
Jeanne M. Stine  

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Member Lambert 
 
Resolution #2007-07-203 
Moved by Stine   
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Lambert at the Regular City Council and Closed Session meetings of July 9, 2007 due to being 
out of the County.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert 
 
CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  
A-1 Presentations:  
a) Mayor Schilling presented a “Welcome Home Proclamation” to Sergeant Daniel Joseph 

Aulph on behalf of the City of Troy in appreciation of his dedicated service to our nation 
and in celebration of his safe return back to Troy. 

b) Presentation by Community Affairs Director, Cindy Stewart presented the City Services 
Report Card to City Council, City Staff and members of the audience. 

c) Oakland County Commissioners, Robert Gosselin, David W. Potts, Tim Burns, and 
George W. Suarez recognized City of Troy residents and business leaders for their 
leadership in entrepreneurship as indicated in a study conducted by the University of 
Michigan. The Commissioners further recognized Troy’s Chamber of Commerce for its 
partnership with the City of Troy. On behalf of the Oakland County Commissioners, a 
proclamation was presented in appreciation and recognition of the City leadership. 

 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 

pallottaba
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 
 
Vote on Resolution to Move Forward Agenda Item J-10 Communication from Human 
Resources Director Peggy Sears Regarding Revisions to 2007 Classified and Exempt 
Classification Plans 
 
Resolution #2007-07-204 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES agenda item, J-10 - Communication 
from Human Resources Director Peggy Sears Regarding Revisions to 2007 Classified and 

Exempt Classification Plans TO BE MOVED FORWARD to its correct location under 
POSTPONED ITEMS on the agenda. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
POSTPONED ITEMS: 

J-10  Communication from Human Resources Director Peggy Sears Regarding 
Revisions to 2007 Classified and Exempt Classification Plans 

 
D-1 2007 Annual Salary Update for Classified and Exempt Employees and Proposed 

Changes to Benefit Package and Personnel Rules & Regulations 
 
Resolution #2007-07-205 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the 2007 Annual Salary Update for 
Classified and Exempt Employees and proposed Changes to Benefit Package and Personnel 
Rules & Regulations. 
 
Yes: Stine, Schilling, Beltramini  
No: Broomfield, Fleming, Howrylak 
Absent: Lambert  
 
MOTION FAILED  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-1a 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Items E-4e, E-16, E-17 which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-2 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of June 18, 2007 
be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s): None Proposed 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Water System 

Materials           
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide one-year 
requirements of Water System Materials to the low bidders: Etna Supply Company of Grand 
Rapids, MI; Gunners Meters & Parts of Pontiac, MI; and SLC Meter Service, Inc of Davisburg, 
MI, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened June 5, 2007, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-2 

Charnwood Hills Sanitary Sewer Phase II           
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-2, Charnwood Hills 
Sanitary Sewer Phase II, to Tyger Excavating, Inc., 52188 Van Dyke, Suite 211, Shelby 
Township, MI 48316 at an estimated total cost of $1,749,000; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 10% of the total project cost; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the sewer benefit fee for Charnwood Sanitary Sewer Phase 
II, as provided for in Chapter 20 of the Troy City Code and revised by Resolution #2005-04-
189, BE $16,246.79 based on the total cost of the sewer extension, including engineering, 
inspection, testing and contingency, divided by 122 sewer leads to existing and potential lots 
that may be derived from lot splits.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Contract 07-4 

Charnwood Hills Phase I Chip Seal           
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS Contract No. 07-4, Charnwood Hills 
Phase I Chip Seal, to Pavement Recycling, Inc., 210 S. Blacks Corners Rd., Imlay City, MI 
48444, at an estimated total cost of $147,176.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon submission of proper 
contract and bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all specified 
requirements, and if additional work is required such additional work is AUTHORIZED in an 
amount not to exceed 25% of the total project cost. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Membership Renewals Over $10,000: Southeast Michigan Council of 
Governments (SEMCOG)           

 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That approval is GRANTED to pay membership dues to the Southeast Michigan 
Council of Governments (SEMCOG) in the amount of $11,740.00, which covers the time period 
of July 15, 2007 to July 15, 2008. 
 
E-5 Approval to Abandon a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Troy Church of the 

Nazarene, Section 4, Sidwell #88-20-04-100-010 – Project No. 06.941.3  
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the abandonment of a Permanent 
Easement for Water Main as recorded in Liber 7552 page 889, Oakland County Register of 
Deeds; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED to sign 
a Quit Claim Deed, conveying the City’s interest in the easement area to Troy Church of the 
Nazarene, property owner of the parcel having Sidwell #88-20-04-100-010; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Quit Claim 
Deed with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-6 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Troy Church of the 

Nazarene, Section 4, Sidwell #88-20-04-100-010 – Project No. 06.941.3  
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Water 
Main from property owner Troy Church of the Nazarene, having Sidwell #88-20-04-100-010; 
and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-7 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – William Beaumont 

Hospital, Section 1, Sidwell #88-20-01-200-018  
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-7 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Water 
Main from property owner William Beaumont Hospital, owner of the property having Sidwell 
#88-20-01-200-018; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Sanitary Sewer and Authorization of 

Payment for Easement and Temporary Construction and Grading Permit – Amina 
R. Haque Revocable Trust, Section 6, Sidwell #88-20-06-328-008  

 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-8 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Sanitary 
Sewer from Amina R. Haque, as Trustee of the Amina R. Haque Revocable Trust, owner of the 
property having Sidwell #88-20-06-328-008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of 
$7,810 plus costs for the easement and permit; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the Permanent 
Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

E-9 Private Agreement for Troy Church of the Nazarene – Project No.06.941.3 
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-9 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Troy Church of the 
Nazarene for the installation of water main and detention pond on the site and in the adjacent 
right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a 
copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-10 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – Alliance Mobile Health, 

Inc., Section 26, Sidwell #88-20-26-401-053 
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-10 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Water 
Main from property owner Alliance Mobile Health, Inc., owner of the property having Sidwell 
#88-20-26-401-053; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-11 Acceptance of a Permanent Easement for Water Main – 5600 New King SPE, LLC, 

Section 8, Sidwell #88-20-08-276-005 
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-11 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Water 
Main from property owner 5600 New King SPE, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-
20-08-276-005; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-12 Acceptance of Permanent Easement for Water Main – Talon TLE-Troy, LLC, 

Section 8, Sidwell #88-20-08-276-004 
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-12 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Permanent Easement for Water 
Main from property owner Talon TLE-Troy, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-
08-276-004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

E-13 Acceptance of Warranty Deed for Right of Way – M & M Troy, Inc., Section 25, 
Sidwell #88-20-25-352-004 

 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-13 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS the Warranty Deed from property owner    
M & M Troy, Inc., owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-25-352-004; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Permanent Easement with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-14 Medi-Go Service Agreement 
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-14 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request for funding in the amount 
of $180,000.00 or entire municipal community credits transferred from SMART (whichever is 
more) for Troy Medi-Go Plus for fiscal year 2007/2008, and the funding agreement between the 
City of Troy and Troy Medi-Go Plus covering July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008, and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-15 Boys and Girls Club Funding Agreement 2007-2008 
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-15 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the funding agreement between the 
City of Troy and Boys and Girls Club of Troy for July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2008 and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
E-18 Approval to Hold a Public Hearing on July 23, 2007 for Community Development 

Block Grant (CDBG) Program Year 2004 Reprogramming of Unexpended Funds 
 
Resolution #2007-07-206-E-18 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Public Hearing on July 23, 2007 at 
7:30 PM or as soon thereafter as the agenda will permit for the purpose of hearing public 
comments on the re-programming of program year 2004 unexpended funds from Sewer 
Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #1, Section 6 to Sewer 
Benefit Fee (Special Assessment) Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #2, Section 6 and the 
Section 36 Park Improvement Project, and the addition of Sewer Benefit Fee (Special 
Assessment) for Charnwood Subdivision Area, Phase #2, Section 6 and Section 36 Park 
Improvement Project, to the list of CDBG projects for 2004. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County – Golf Equipment Installment 

Purchase of Seventy-Four (74) Precedent Golf Cars for Sylvan Glen Golf Course           
 
Resolution #2007-07-207 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase seventy-four 
(74) Precedent IQ Electric Golf Cars less sixty-five (65) trade-ins from Club Car, Inc of Georgia, 
through the Oakland County Purchasing Program at an estimated total cost of $229,494.00, 
payable in increments of $45,899.00 over five (5) years; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
agreement pertaining to this purchase, once in acceptable form. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
E-16 Private Agreement for Eastridge Medical Office Facility – Project No. 06.937.3 
 
Resolution #2007-07-208-E-16 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Millcreek Building 
Company, for the installation of water main, asphalt approach, aggregate base, concrete curb 
and gutter and walkway on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City 
Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to 
the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
E-17 Private Agreement for the Troy Medical Office Facility – Project No. 06.937.3 
 
Resolution #2007-07-208-E-17 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Contract for the Installation of 
Municipal Improvements (Private Agreement) between the City of Troy and Vision Quest 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

Consulting, Inc., for the installation of water main, asphalt approach, aggregate base, concrete 
curb and gutter and walkway on the site and in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council 
 
Resolution #2007-07-209 
Moved by Beltramini    
Seconded by Stine   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2007-07-210 
Moved by Broomfield 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business and AUTHORIZES City Council to move forward agenda 
item, J-9 Communication from City Manager Phillip Nelson and City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm 
Regarding Refutation to Letter Challenging the Approval of Starbucks. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
J-9  Communication from City Manager Phillip Nelson and City Attorney Lori Grigg 

Bluhm Regarding Refutation to Letter Challenging the Approval of Starbucks 
 
  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No 
Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: c) City Council 
Appointments – Students: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 
Cable Advisory Committee; and Troy Daze Committee    

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled  
 
(b)  City Council Appointments – No Appointments Scheduled 
 
(c) City Council Appointments – Students 

 
Resolution #2007-07-211 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following students to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 
Daniel Chong Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Cable Advisory Committee  
Re-Appointed by Council - 1 Year Term 
 
Nancy Chen Term Expires 07/01/08 
 
Troy Daze Committee 
Re-Appointed by Council – 1 Year Term 
 
Kasey Wang Term Expires 07/01/08 
 

Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
F-2 Bid Waiver – Drain Improvements 
 
Resolution #2007-07-212 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, The City has two projects requiring storm sewer and culvert improvements located 
at the intersection of Ottawa and Peacock Streets, and 6116 Elmoor Street; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

WHEREAS, Contech Products, Inc., the manufacturer, has agreed to provide Contech storm 
sewer pipe and culvert products directly to the City of Troy at discounts greater than those of 
distributors; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES formal bidding 
procedures and APPROVES a contract to purchase storm sewer pipe and culvert materials 
from Contech Products, Inc. of Clinton Twp, MI, for an estimated total cost of $22,355.50, at 
unit prices as detailed on Appendix 1, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
F-3 Change Order #1 to Section 26 and 30 Bituminous Overlays for Eckford Street 

Paving, Contract 07-1 – Project No. 03.503.5 
 
Resolution #2007-07-213 
Moved by Fleming  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Change Order No. 1 to Contract No. 
07-1, Section 26 and 30 – Bituminous Overlays, and Asix Asphalt Paving, LLC, be 
AUTHORIZED to perform the work at an estimated total cost of $39,919.00; the approved 
contract amount is increased to $454,170.40; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That if additional work is required such additional work is 
AUTHORIZED in an amount not to exceed 10% of the change order amount. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
F-4 Rescind Bid Award/Re-award Contract – Printing and Distribution of Utility Bills 
 
Resolution #2007-07-213 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Stine  
 
WHEREAS, On January 22, 2007, the option to renew the contract for one additional year to 
provide laser printing/distribution of water and sewer bills was exercised with the lowest bidder 
meeting specifications, Automated Computer Methods, Inc. of McHenry, IL, (Resolution # 
2007-01-015-E-4a); and 
 
WHEREAS, Automated Computer Methods, Inc. has defaulted on the contract due to 
enforcement of liquidated damages as a result of the delayed distribution of the June water bills 
for District 3;  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RESCINDS with prejudice the 
contract to provide laser printing / distribution of the City’s water and sewer bills from 

Automated Computer Methods, Inc., and RE-AWARDS to the next lowest bidder meeting 
specifications, Lason Systems, Inc. of Troy, MI, at an estimated total cost of $11,890.00 per 
year, plus the actual cost of first class postage; at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened March 2, 2005, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with the contract expiring April 30, 2008.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
F-5 Annual Performance Evaluation of the City Manager and City Attorney 
 
(a) Scheduling of Closed Session for Performance Evaluation of the City Attorney 
 
Resolution #2007-07-215a 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a Closed Session for Monday, July 
9, 2007 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan for the 
purpose of performance evaluation of the City Attorney, pursuant to MCL 15.268 (a). 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Stine  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Lambert  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
(b) Scheduling of Closed Session for Annual Performance Evaluation of the City 

Manager 
 
Resolution #2007-07-215b 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a closed session for Monday, July 
23, 2007 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan for 
the purpose of performance evaluation of the City Manager, pursuant to MCL 15.268 (a). 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Broomfield, Fleming, Stine  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Lambert 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

F-6 Adult Use Businesses – Licensing Ordinance 
 
(a) Approval of Enactment of Chapter 76-Adult Business Use Licensing 
 
Resolution #2007-07-216a 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, It is recognized that there are some uses which, because of their very nature, have 
serious objectionable operational characteristics, particularly when several of them are 
concentrated under certain circumstances or when one (1) or more of them are located in near 
proximity to a residential zone, thereby having a deleterious effect upon the adjacent areas. 
Special regulation of these uses is necessary to ensure that these adverse effects will not 
contribute to the blighting or downgrading of the surrounding neighborhood. These controls are 
for the purpose of preventing a concentration of these uses within any one (1) area, or to 
prevent deterioration or blighting of a nearby residential neighborhood. These controls do not 
legitimatize activities that are prohibited by other applicable laws;  
 
WHEREAS, In regulating adult business uses, it is the purpose of this ordinance to promote the 
health, safety, and general welfare of the citizens of the City of Troy, and to establish 
reasonable and uniform regulations to prevent the deleterious secondary effects of adult 
business uses within the City of Troy. The provisions of this ordinance have neither the 
purpose nor effect of imposing a limitation or restriction on the content or reasonable access to 
any communicative materials, including sexually oriented materials. Similarly, it is neither the 
intent nor effect of this ordinance to restrict or deny access by adults to sexually oriented 
materials protected by the First Amendment, or to deny access by the distributors and 
exhibitors of sexually oriented entertainment to their intended market. Neither is it the intent nor 
effect of this ordinance to condone or legitimize the distribution of obscene material; and 
 
WHEREAS, Based on evidence of the adverse secondary effects of adult business uses 
presented in reports made available to the City Council, and on findings incorporated in the 
cases of City of Renton v. Playtime Theatres, Inc., 475 U.S. 41 (1986), Young v. American Mini 
Theatres, 426 U.S. 50 (1976), and other cases; and reports of secondary effects occurring in 
and around adult business uses, including, but not limited to, Tucson AZ, Garden Grove CA, 
Ellicottville NY, New York NY, Times Square (New York City) NY, Oklahoma City OK, Cleburne 
TX, Dallas TX, Houston TX, Newport News VI, and St. Croix County WI, the Troy City Council 
finds that adult business uses as a category of establishments are correlated with harmful 
secondary effects, and that the foregoing reports are reasonably believed to be relevant to the 
problems that the City of Troy is seeking to abate and prevent in the future; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Chapter 76, Adult Business Use Licensing, is hereby 
APPROVED and ENACTED, as recommended by City Administration and AMENDED by City 
Council by INSERTING “Economic Development” AFTER “Assistant City Manager for” under 

Section VII. Approval/Denial of License D., and a copy shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert   



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

(b) Approval of Amendment to Chapter 60-Fees and Bonds Required  
 
Resolution #2007-07-216b 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Section 60.03 of Chapter 60, Fees and Bonds 
Required, is hereby AMENDED, as recommended by City Administration, and a copy of the 
amendment shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
(c) Approval of Amendment to Chapter 3-Administrative Service 
 
Resolution #2007-07-216c 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Section 1.141 (6) of Chapter 3, Administrative 
Service, is hereby AMENDED, as recommended by City Administration, and a copy of the 
amendment shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 
F-7 Collins and Aikman Corporation, et al 
 
Resolution #2007-07-217 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Sandra S. Hamilton, of Nantz, Litowich, Smith, Girard and Hamilton, P.C., is 
hereby AUTHORIZED and DIRECTED to represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and 
damages in the matter of In re Collins and Aikman Corporation, et al; Collins and Aikman 
Corporation, et al v. City of Troy, to RETAIN any necessary expert witnesses to adequately 
represent the City, and BE REIMBURSED for any expenses in defense of this matter. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Lambert  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  
a) Request for Street Name Change Daley Street South of Big Beaver to Behr Drive  
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced  

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  
Mayor Schilling asked that the “Hookah” resolution be placed on the next agenda. City Attorney 
Bluhm responded that a resolution proposing licensing will be brought forward for the next 
meeting’s agenda.  
Council Member Stine expressed her concerns about the recent incident involving a private 
contractor who ruptured a gas main while working in the right-of-way. She believes this incident 
cost the city a great deal of money because many city departments were called to the scene. 
Council Member Stine continued by stating that this incident also inconvenienced motorists and 
caused a grave inconvenience to shop owners who were required to close their businesses 
because of their location near the scene. Council Member Stine requested that a report be 
prepared by City Staff listing all city costs associated with this incident. In addition, she 
requested information regarding who is responsible for paying the costs associated with the 
incident. City Manager Nelson advised that he will provide the requested information. 
Council Member Beltramini thanked City Council Members for providing her with the 
opportunity to attend the National League of City’s forum on “Future of Governments”. She 
explained that it gave her the opportunity to learn about various ways of getting more citizen 
input in a balanced fashion on a variety of issues. Council Member Beltramini noted that she is 
pleased to have already shared some this information with the City Manager. 
Council Member Beltramini further advised that the Michigan Municipal League’s board will 
hold their annual trustees strategic planning meeting this weekend with the guest speaker 
focusing on the topic of “Building Entrepreneurship in Your Community”. 
Council Member Beltramini was somewhat distressed upon reviewing the City’s Report Card. 
She explained that although she is pleased that many of the criticisms have already been 
forwarded to the appropriate departments and addressed, she is concerned about the negative 
comments made on the last two pages in regard to road improvements and the City’s website. 
She continued by stating that these two charts are the only charts that residents do not indicate 
that the city is doing a great job. She is especially concerned about the comments made about 
roads because roads are a core city service and that the city needs to work on obtaining an 
excellent rating in that area. 
City Council Member Beltramini asked staff to do further brainstorming on how to address and 
rectify this issue.  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 16 - 

Mayor Schilling believes that clarification needs to be provided to residents as to which roads 
fall under the city’s jurisdiction and which roads the county is responsible for.  
 
Mayor Schilling also believes residents must also be aware of what funding is received and 
sent out as a donor city so that they have a full understanding of the constraints the city is 
working under in terms of road maintenance. 
 
Council Member Beltramini reminded Council that they recently received correspondence from 
the Oakland County Road Commission regarding “What It Costs To Build A Road” and 
requested that it be posted on the city’s website. 
 
Council Member Broomfield asked that the website map delineating county and city controlled 
roads be displayed in a way that it is more noticeable to the public. 
 
Council Member Stine recalled that Livernois between 15 and 16 Mile Roads is being 
resurfaced and asked if the City of Clawson has committed to resurfacing the two lane half mile 
stretch south of 14 Mile Road? Assistant City Manager Brian Murphy replied that the City of 
Clawson has plans to resurface the area of Main Street from 14 to 15 Mile Road. He further 
explained that as part of the contract in 2008 construction season, the City of Clawson will 
resurface Troy’s portion as well. 
 
Council Member Stine asked if the quarter of mile road on Kirts between the Somerset hotel 
and Somerset South is being planned for resurfacing due to its deplorable condition. Assistant 
City Manager Murphy responded that the condition of the public road in that area is due to the 
overwatering of the lawns and as a result, the City required Somerset to install an under-drain 
just behind the curb line prior to the City resurfacing it in 1994. He continued by stating there 
has been some popping due to the water table and he is not sure where it falls on the entire 
OCI Index. Assistant City Manager Murphy added that it is a part of the entire local road 
network infrastructure.  
 
Council Member Broomfield commended City Management regarding the partnership with 
SOCRRA and the City of Troy’s vehicle maintenance agreement. 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Charter Revision Committee/Final – July 25, 2005 
b) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan & Trust /Final – March 14, 2007  
c) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – May 3, 2007 
d) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees Minutes/Final – May 9, 2007  
e) Library Advisory Board/Final – May 10, 2007  
f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – May 15, 2007 
g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – May 22, 2007 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 17 - 

h) Troy Daze Festival Committee/Final – May 22, 2007  
i) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 5, 2007  
j) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 5, 2007  
k) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – June 7, 2007 
l) Planning Commission/Draft – June 12, 2007  
m) Planning Commission/Final – June 12, 2007  
n) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – June 13, 2007  
o) Charter Revision Committee/Draft – June 15, 2007  
p) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – June 19, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Council Member Beltramini’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Forum on the Future of 

Governance  
b) City Attorney’s Office – 2007 Second Quarter Litigation Report  

Noted and Filed 
 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Chief Craft from Carol Stehle in Appreciation of the Kindness and Compassion 

of Officer Drewek and Officer Meinzinger  
b) Letter to Chief Nelson from Nancy Negohosian, HMS Products, Commending Lt. Janusz 

Bora for his Assistance  
c) Letter to Officer Harrison from Janet Martin, Wattles Creek Condominium Association, in 

Appreciation of the Presentation    
Noted and Filed 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Hooters v. Troy – 
Post Consent Judgment Update 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-7  Communication from City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew Regarding Charter Revision 
Committee Recommendations – Section 4.6 and 6.2 (e) – Excused Absences of 
City Council Members 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-8  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Liquor License 
Article in Oakland County Bar Association Publication 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-9  Communication from City Manager Phillip Nelson and City Attorney Lori Grigg 

Bluhm Regarding Refutation to Letter Challenging the Approval of Starbucks 
Moved Forward on the Agenda Resolution #2007-07-210 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft July 9, 2007 
 

- 18 - 

J-10  Communication from Human Resources Director Peggy Sears Regarding 
Revisions to 2007 Classified and Exempt Classification Plans 

Moved Forward on the Agenda Resolution #2007-07-204 
 

J-11  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding Papadelis v. City 
of Troy 

Noted and Filed 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session: Motion to enter Closed Session addressed in item F-5. 
 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:00 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:15 PM. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:55 PM. 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 23, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  
E-3 No Proposed City of Troy Proclamations  

campbellld
Text Box
E-03



 

 
 
July 5, 2007 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police    
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 9 – Membership Renewal – Macomb Criminal Justice 

Training Consortium   
 
Background 
 The Police Department has benefited as a member of the Macomb Criminal Justice Training 

Consortium for five years. 
 The Consortium provides a comprehensive and cost effective training protocol at a cost of 

$160.00 per Officer, per year. 
 The cost allows the Police Department to send employees to many different training classes at no 

additional cost or reduced rates as a member agency. 
 Included in the membership fee are priority enrollment in the Macomb Criminal Justice Training 

Center’s Basic Police Academy with reduced tuition, and access to their firearms range and 
Firearms Training Simulator. 

  
Financial Considerations 
 Funds, in the amount of $21,280.00, are available in the Police Department’s training account 

#321.7960 for the one-year membership renewal with the Macomb Criminal Justice Training 
Consortium for fiscal year 2007 – 2008. 

 
Legal Considerations 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations 
 Membership with the Macomb Criminal Justice Training Consortium allows the Police Department 

to provide training to employees at a reduced cost.  In addition, training contributes to the 
improved efficiency and effectiveness of performance of individual employees and the 
Department. (Goal II) 

 
Options 
 The Police Department is requesting a one-year membership renewal with the Macomb Criminal 

Justice Training Consortium for fiscal year 2007 – 2008 through Macomb Community College at 
an estimated cost of $21,280.00, and use of the training services provided for in-service and 
specialized training. 

 
G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 9-MacombCriminalJustice 06-07.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a



 

 
  July 11, 2007 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/ Finance and Administration  
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director   
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications –  

Troy Daze Tents 
 
Background 
 On April 16, 2007, bids were received to furnish and set up tents for the Troy Daze Festival. 
 38 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with three bidders responding, of which two companies did 

not meet specifications.  In addition, one statement of no bid was received. 
 S & R Event Rental’s proposal was incomplete, missing the proposal page that contained the pricing.    
 Colonial Party & Event Rental required the City to agree to a rental contract that was in direct conflict with 

the terms and conditions of the City’s bid documents.   
 The remaining vendor, Ace Canvas & Tent Inc, bid on all but the two larger sized tents.   
 Staff solicited bids from two other know suppliers of large tents. Dial Tent and Awning in Saginaw, the 

company that provided the large tents for last year’s Troy Daze Festival will be able to provide the two 
large tents (1 – 80’ x 100’ and 1 – 80’ x 240’) again this year, at the same cost as last year.    

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funding for the rental and set up of tents for the Troy Daze Festival is available in Parks and Recreation 

operating account #784.7942. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 07-13, to furnish and erect tents for the Troy Daze Festival was competitively bid and opened 

with three bidders responding. 
 All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest to provide and erect various 

tents for the Troy Daze Festival. 
 The award is contingent upon the recommended bidders’ submission of proper contract and bid 

documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Policy Considerations 
 The Troy Daze Festival is an annual event celebrating the community. (Goals I & III) 
 Business and community groups showcase their organizations under these tents at the event. (Goals III & 

IV) 
  
Options 
 City management and the Parks and Recreation Department recommend awarding contracts to furnish all 

labor, materials, and equipment to supply and erect tents for the Troy Daze Festival to the lowest bidders 
meeting specifications, Dial Tent & Awning Co., Inc., of Saginaw, MI for an estimated total cost of 
$11,176.00; and Ace Canvas & Tent of Detroit, MI for an estimated total cost of $5,340.00.  

 
jb  G:\Bid Award 06-07 NewFormat/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – TroyDazeTents05.07.doc  

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b





CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 07-13
Opening Date -- 04/16/07 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 07/05/07 TENT RENTALS - Troy Daze Festival

VENDOR NAME: Ace Canvas
& Tent

Inc
CHECK # 10807615181

   CHECK AMOUNT $100.00
EST UNIT

ITEM QTY DESCRIPTION PRICE
1. 1 TENT, 80' X 100'  (Entertainment) 80x120 N/A

2. 1 TENT, 80' X 240'   (Booths) N/A

3. 1 TENT, 10' x 10' (Outdoor Stage) 130.00$          

4. 3 TENT, 20' x 20' (Info Booth) 160.00$          

5. 2 TENT, 20' x 40' (Crafts, Dressing Tent) 250.00$          

6. 1 TENT, 20' x 40' (Waffle Breakfast) 250.00$          

7. 1 TENT, 40' x 100' (Photo/Student Art) 900.00$          

8. 1 TENT, 60' x 80' (Ethnicity) 60x90 1,200.00$       => 60x90

9. 1 TENT, 60' x 60' (Magic Entertainment) 800.00$          

10. 1 TENT, 40' x 40' (Picnic Area) 600.00$          
11. 2 Erect 20' x 40' Tents (Cart Storage) 140.00$          

12. 2 Erect 20' x 20' Tents (HQ, Special Children) 100.00$           
13. As Required Tent Stakes w/Plastic Covers NO CHARGE

14. As Required Provide 140 Lineal Feet of Additional Sidewalls NO CHARGE

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 5,340.00$       

INSURANCE: Can meet XX
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N No

SET UP & TEAR DOWN:
Can meet XX
Cannot meet

CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 7:30AM to 4:00PM
24 Hr Phone # 313-842-3011

Set up
DELIVERY REQUIREMENTS: Tear down

TERMS: Net 30 days

WARRANTY: Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Yes or No Yes
DMS:   S&R Event Rental - No bid proposal pricing page (1of 4)
   Colonial Party & Event Rental - ($13,440) T/C's of the Rental Agreement included as part of the vendor's bid were in direct conflict w/bid specs

NO BID:  Golden Crown Party Rental
ATTEST: BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDER
Jeff Biegler
Laura Campbell _______________________
Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein CPPB
G:ITB-COT 07-13 Tent Rentals - Troy Daze Festival Purchasing Director

Fri  9/7/07 & Mon 9/10
Monday, 9/17/07



campbellld
Text Box
E-04c







Page 1 of 6 

 

 
July 18, 2007 
 
TO:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

   
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award  – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications- 

Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Background 
 On May 10, 2007, bids were received and opened for IBT-COT 07-14 to provide three-year 

requirements of automobile, light truck, farm, and construction equipment replacement parts with 
an option to renew for three additional years for the City’s Fleet Division.  

 One Hundred Seventy-Three (173) vendors were notified via the MITN system with twenty (20) 
bidders responding, including one vendor who did not meet bid specifications for not submitting 
their pricing on the City of Troy bid proposal pages as specified.  In addition, one statement of no 
bid was received. 

  The bid document stated that in order to be considered for an award, a category group must be 
completed in full.  Several vendors did not meet this specification for the following product lines. 

 
VENDOR PRODUCT LINE 
  Alert Emergency Equipment Group   Back Rack System  
  Rowerdink Incorporated   GMC Medium Duty Truck Parts 
   Napa Filters 
  Motor City Truck Sales   Napa Filters 
   Synthetic Oil 
  John R Spring Service Inc   Western Plow Parts 
  Amsoil/Lubrication Specialist & Co   Chevrolet/GMC Parts 
 

 In addition, Kirks Automotive bid a brake chamber that did not meet specifications for the heavy-
duty brake parts product line.   

 A primary and secondary vendor was chosen for certain product lines in order to provide the City 
with optimal replacement parts coverage.   

 No bids were received for the following product lines:  Badger parts, Case parts, E.J. Ward parts, 
Federal Signal parts, Galion parts, JCB parts, John Deere parts, Monroe plow parts and New 
Holland parts. The product lines listed above will be re-bid at a later date. 

 The product lines listed below are used daily to service, repair and maintain over five hundred 
(500) pieces of City owned equipment.  

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



Page 2 of 6 

July 18, 2007 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and 

Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Financial Considerations 
 The department has funds budgeted in the Fleet Equipment/Operation and Maintenance account 

#550.7781.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 07-14, to furnish three-year requirements of automobile, light truck, farm, and 

construction equipment replacement parts with an option to renew for an additional three years 
was competitively bid and vendors were given the opportunity to respond with their level of 
interest in supplying replacement parts for the City.    

 
Policy Considerations 
 The Fleet Division on a daily basis to assure proper and proactive vehicle\equipment service, 

repair and maintenance uses the replacement parts. (Goal V) 
 The purchase of these replacement parts would assure the health and welfare of citizens and 

businesses and also reduce the liability for the City. (Goal I & V) 
 
Options 
 City management recommends awarding automobile, light truck, farm, and construction 

equipment replacement parts to the following low bidders meeting specifications under Proposal 
A, at prices and discounts contained in the bid tabulation opened May 10, 2007.  

 
Kirk’s Automotive, Detroit, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Brakes: Bendix Pads, Shoes Primary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Wausau Plow Parts  Primary Jobber (less) 5% 
Western Plow Parts   Primary Jobber (less) 5% 
Brakes:  A/C Delco  Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 
Brake Rotors – Bendix Secondary Jobber (less) 10% 
Seals – National Secondary  Jobber (less) 10% 

 
Rowerdink Incorporated, Grand Rapids, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Brakes:  A/C Delco  Primary 69% off List Price 
Brake Rotors – Bendix Primary 69% off List Price 
Chevrolet/GM  Primary 50% to 67% off List Price 
Brakes: Bendix Pads, Shoes Secondary 69% off List Price 

 
 
July 18, 2007 



Page 3 of 6 

 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and 

Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 

Terminal Supply Company, Troy, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Soundoff Signal  Primary  40% off Catalog  
Truck Lite Secondary  30% off Catalog  
Wires & Terminals  Secondary  30% off Catalog  

 
Coach & Motor Company, Clinton Township, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Batteries  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
GMC Medium Duty Truck Primary  31% to 50% off List Price 
Wiper Blades – Anco Primary 50% to 68% off Catalog  
Chevrolet/GM   Secondary 50% off List Price  

 
Motor City Truck Sales, Livonia, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Caterpillar Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Cummins  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Detroit Diesel  Primary  Cost Plus 15%  
Seals – National  Primary  Cost Plus 25% 
Sterling Heavy Duty  Primary  Wholesale 
Transmissions – Allison  Primary  Cost Plus 10% 
Truck Lite  Primary  Wholesale 
Ford Secondary Cost Plus 25% 
Heavy Duty Brake Parts Secondary Cost Plus 25% 

 
Start All Enterprises, Detroit, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Batteries  Secondary 10% off Catalog  
 
Lubrication Specialists & Company / Amsoil, Superior, Wisconsin 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Synthetic Oil  Primary  10% off Catalog  
July 18, 2007 



Page 4 of 6 

 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and 

Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Great Lakes Truck & Trailer, Westland, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Heavy Duty Brake Parts Primary  Jobber (less) 5% 
Seals – National  Secondary  Jobber (less)10% 
Wiper Blades – Anco  Secondary Jobber (less) 5% 

 
Elder Ford, Troy, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Ford Primary  34% off List Price  
 

Shults Equipment, Inc, Ithaca, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Bosch Rexroth Primary  Vendor Price Sheet 
Kennametal Blades Primary  Manufacturer List Price 

 
Ivan Gandrud Chevrolet, Green Bay, Wisconsin 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Dodge Primary  25% off List Price 
GMC Medium Duty Truck  Secondary  30% off List Price 

 
Lacal Equipment Inc., Jackson Center, Ohio  

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Tymco Sweeper Primary  29% off Tymco Price Sheet 
 

Alert Emergency Equipment Group, Portland, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Go Rhino  Primary  15% off List Price 
Soundoff Signal  Secondary  20% off List Price  

 
 
 
July 18, 2007 



Page 5 of 6 

 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and 

Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 

 
Old Dominion Brush, Richmond, Virginia  

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Tymco Sweeper Secondary  20% off Price Sheet 
 

Electrical Terminal Service, Royal Oak, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Wires & Terminals  Primary  Jobber (less) 25% 
 

John R Spring Service Inc., Troy, Michigan   
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Springs  Primary  Cost Plus 15% 
 
Options - continued   
 In addition, City management recommends awarding automobile, light truck, farm, and 

construction equipment replacement parts to the following low bidders meeting specifications 
under Proposal B, at prices and discounts contained in the bid tabulation for the following product 
lines to commence May 7, 2008, when the current contracts expire.      

 
Kirk’s Automotive, Detroit, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Filters     Primary Jobber (less) 50% 
Weatherhead    Secondary Jobber (less) 10% 

 
 

Terminal Supply Company, Troy, Michigan  
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

GE Bulbs  Primary  30% off Catalog  
Weatherhead  Primary  20% off Catalog  

 
 
 
 
 
July 18, 2007 



Page 6 of 6 

 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Lowest Bidder Meeting Specifications – Automobile, Light Truck, Farm, and 

Construction Equipment Replacement Parts 
 
Coach & Motor Company, Clinton Township, Michigan 

 
Product Line Primary/Secondary 

Vendor 
Discount 

Filters   Secondary Cost Plus 10% 
GE Bulbs  Secondary  Cost Plus 10% 

 
 

Shults Equipment, Inc, Ithaca, Michigan 
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Root Plow Parts Primary Manufacturer List Price 
Swenson Spreader Primary  Manufacturer List Price 

 
 

Jack Doheny Supplies, Inc., Northville, Michigan   
 

Product Line Primary/Secondary 
Vendor 

Discount 

Vactor  Primary  10% off List Price  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
SPL   G:/Bid Award 06-07 New Format/Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – Auto Parts 07-07.doc 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

VENDOR NAME

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet
Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet Pad #MKD459FM 101.16$     60.70$       40% Brake #17D1058C GM19111860 $93.40 51.37$       45% Front Rotor #145326 $199.38 119.63$       40%

Pad #473 103.36$     62.02$       40% Brake #17D1040AC GM19137362 $78.42 43.13$       45% Rear Rotor #145353 $78.78 47.27$         40%
Shoe #452 211.60$     126.96$     40% Brake #17D931C GM89050848 $74.00 40.70$       45%
Hardware #H5987 28.36$       17.02$       40% Brake #17D932C GM89050849 $74.00 40.70$       45%

$266.69 $175.90 $166.90

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

John R Spring
Service, Inc. Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

A

BRAKES: A/C Delco BRAKE ROTORS: BendixBRAKES: Bendix Pads; shoes



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

VENDOR NAME

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet
Elder Ford

Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326
Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326
/Amsoil Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353

Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Rowerdink Inc 
Pad #MKD459FM Delco 1704 79.65$       24.69$       69% Brake #17D1058C 100.08$     31.02$       69% Front Rotor #145326 Motorcraft B 121.08$     37.53$         69%
Pad #473 Delco 1747 65.79$       20.39$       69% Brake #17D1040AC 84.00$       26.04$       69% Rear Rotor #145353 Motorcraft B 102.93$     31.91$         69%
Shoe #452 Delco 1745 154.71$     47.96$       69% Brake #17D931C 90.63$       28.10$       69%
Hardware #H5987 Motorcraft 37.69$       11.68$       69% Brake #17D932C 88.65$       27.48$       69% Motorcraft

List
A/C Delco 5/1/07 A/C Delco Dtd: 4/1/07
Motorcraft 4/1/07 Dtd: 5/1/07

$104.73 $112.64 $69.44

Shults Equipment 
Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326
Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

A

BRAKE ROTORS: BendixBRAKES: Bendix Pads; shoes BRAKES: A/C Delco



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

VENDOR NAME

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet
Old Dominion Broom 

Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326
Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Interstate Batteries 
Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326
Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Terminal Supply Co. 
Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326
Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Electrical Terminal
Service Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

A

BRAKES: Bendix Pads; shoes BRAKES: A/C Delco BRAKE ROTORS: Bendix



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

VENDOR NAME

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet
St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326
Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Start All Enterprises 
Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326
Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Kirks Automotive Inc
Pad #MKD459FM 7260M 19.39$       17.45$       10% Brake #17D1058C Napa TS7965 29.12$       26.21$       10% Front Rotor #145326 Napa 880110 59.57$       53.61$         10%
Pad #473 473 Napa 19.12$       17.21$       10% Brake #17D1040AC Napa TS7835M 21.84$       19.66$       10% Rear Rotor #145353 Napa 880129 50.64$       45.58$         10%
Shoe #452 452 Napa 34.43$       30.99$       10% Brake #17D931C Napa AE7834M 60.20$       54.18$       10%
Hardware #H5987 83366 7.00$         6.30$         10% Brake #17D932C Napa AE7835M 58.89$       53.00$       10% Jobber-10%

Jobber-10% Jobber-10% Napa UP&TS
Napa UP&TS Napa UP&TS Dtd: 5/1/07
Dtd: 5/1/07 Dtd: 5/1/07

$71.95 $153.05 $99.19

Coach & Motor Co
Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C 93.40$       46.70$       50% Front Rotor #145326
Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC 78.42$       39.21$       50% Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C 74.00$       37.00$       50%
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C 74.00$       37.00$       50%

GM Price 
Guide

Apr-07

$0.00 $159.91 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

A

BRAKE ROTORS: BendixBRAKES: Bendix Pads; shoes BRAKES: A/C Delco



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 5 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

VENDOR NAME

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet
Lacal Inc. 

Pad #MKD459FM Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326
Pad #473 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Motor City Trucks 
Pad #MKD459FM $43.96 Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326 $55.30
Pad #473 $25.01 Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353 $62.27
Shoe #452 $94.19 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$163.16 $0.00 $117.57

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer Pad #MKD459FM Wagner $41.04 blank Brake #17D1058C Front Rotor #145326

Pad #473 Wagner $105.78 blank Brake #17D1040AC Rear Rotor #145353
Shoe #452 Brake #17D931C
Hardware #H5987 Brake #17D932C

$146.82 $0.00 $0.00
KEY: 
PrImary Vendor ATTEST: NO BIDS: 
Secondary Vendor Debra Painter D & D Auto Parts, Inc

Kathy Foster
Sam Lamerato DMS:  
Julie Hamilton Sterling Heights Dodge (Did not submit proposal using the bid proposal page) 

Susan Leirstein, 
G:\ITB-COT 07-14 Auto Parts Purchasing Director

PR
O

PO
SA

L 
A

BRAKE ROTORS: BendixBRAKES: Bendix Pads; shoes BRAKES: A/C Delco



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 6 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BATTERIES SEALS: National SYNTHETIC OIL: Amsoil



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 7 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40 $828.00 $828.00 10%
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30 $1,229.00 $1,229.00 10%
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140 $1,746.00 $1,746.00 10%

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55 $1,056.00 $1,056.00 10%

Catalog Price and Net Price Listed as same Dtd: 5/1/07

$0.00 $0.00 $4,859.00

Battery #65-875 AC Delco AC 85.48$       47.87$       44% Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 AC Delco AC 66.95$       37.49$       44% Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 AC Delco AC 108.81$     60.93$       44% Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55
AC Delco
List
Dtd: 4/1/07

$146.29 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BATTERIES SEALS: National SYNTHETIC OIL: Amsoil



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg  8 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 v65-6 $70.95 $54.63 Blank Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 V75-7 $54.95 $42.31 Blank Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 V31P-7G $80.95 $62.33 Blank Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55
Power Volt
V3
Dtd: 5/7/07

$159.27 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BATTERIES SEALS: National SYNTHETIC OIL: Amsoil



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 9 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 65-75 $52.67 $47.40 10% Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 75-65 $43.34 $39.01 10% Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 31A-100 $61.87 $55.68 10% Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55
Power source
CEN Auto Marine
Dtd: 5/6/07

$142.09 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Napa 7565 66.95$       60.26$       10% Seals #370003A Napa 47691 35.03$     31.53$       10% Oil SAE 15W40 75510 952.60$      857.34$        10%
Battery #75-690 Napa 7575 58.95$       53.06$       10% Seals #4739 Napa 19784 1.75$       1.58$         10% Oil 5W30 75520 952.60$      857.34$        10%
Battery #31A-1000 Napa 7238 72.95$       65.66$       10% Seals # 370014A Napa 31266 20.34$     18.31$       10% Gear Lube 75W140 982 3,289.00$   2,960.10$     10%

Seals #413470 Napa 21352 7.25$       6.53$         10% Auto Trans Fluid ATF55 360 1,053.80$   948.42$        10%
Jobber-10% Jobber-10% Jobber-10%
Napa Bat Napa NOS Napa NOS VO
Dtd: 5/1/07 Dtd: 5/1/07 Dtd: 5/1/07

$178.97 $57.93 $5,623.20

Battery #65-875 65-60 45.73$       10% Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 ACD75-60 33.68$       10% Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 ACD31TS 53.32$       10% Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55
C-Plus 10%

$132.73 $0.00 $0.00

BATTERIES SEALS: National SYNTHETIC OIL: Amsoil



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg  10 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Motorcraft $67.58 Seals #370003A $36.55 $22.71 Oil SAE 15W40 Rotella DMS DMS DMS
Battery #75-690 Motorcraft $56.00 Seals #4739 $1.98 $1.29 Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Motorcraft $69.50 Seals # 370014A $22.90 $14.85 Gear Lube 75W140 DMS DMS DMS

Seals #413470 $8.25 $5.41 Auto Trans Fluid ATF55 Motorcraft DMS DMS DMS

C-Plus 25%

$193.08 $44.26 $0.00

Battery #65-875 Seals #370003A $30.12 Blank Oil SAE 15W40
Battery #75-690 Seals #4739 $1.62 Blank Oil 5W30
Battery #31A-1000 Seals # 370014A $18.89 Blank Gear Lube 75W140

Seals #413470 $6.80 Blank Auto Trans Fluid ATF55

Jobber 
less 10%

$0.00 $57.43 $0.00

BATTERIES SEALS: National SYNTHETIC OIL: Amsoil



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 11 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509 DMS DMS DMS
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

WIPER BLADES: Anco TRANSMISSIONS: Allison BACK RACK SYSTEM



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 12 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 Wix 57740X $72.55 $72.55 Blank GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

Catalog Price and Net Price Listed as same

$0.00 $72.55 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

WIPER BLADES: Anco TRANSMISSIONS: Allison BACK RACK SYSTEM



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 13 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

WIPER BLADES: Anco TRANSMISSIONS: Allison BACK RACK SYSTEM



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 14 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 Napa 60205 8.49$          7.64$         10% Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Napa 60022 8.01$          7.21$         10% Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22 Napa 60225 13.52$        12.17$       10%
Blades #30-18 Napa 60185 6.58$          5.92$         10%

Jobber-10%
OL Napa WIP

Dtd: 5/1/07

$32.94 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 18.76$        8.16$         43% Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 14.70$        5.36$         36% Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22 18.76$        8.16$         43%
Blades #30-18 12.64$        5.46$         43%

minus 50-68% 
AN103 
April of 2005

$27.14 $0.00 $0.00

WIPER BLADES: Anco TRANSMISSIONS: Allison BACK RACK SYSTEM



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 15 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Blades #30-20 Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22
Blades #30-18

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Blades #30-20 $14.19 $8.87 Trans Filter #29540494 $100.00 $60.15 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 $9.74 $6.50 Filter suction #29544785 $46.30 $33.41 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22 $14.16 $8.87
Blades #30-18 $10.32 $6.44 C-plus 10%

C-plus 25%

$30.68 $93.56 $0.00

Blades #30-20 $7.94 Blank Trans Filter #29540494 GMC Sierra Sliverado #10509
Blades #31-22 $6.22 Blank Filter suction #29544785 Light bracket #91002
Blades #30-22 $7.94 Blank
Blades #30-18 $5.35 Blank

Jobber 
less 5%

$27.45 $0.00 $0.00

BACK RACK SYSTEMWIPER BLADES: Anco TRANSMISSIONS: Allison



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 16 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BADGER BOSCH REXROTH HEAVY DUTY BRAKE PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 17 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness 82.00$     82.00$       0% Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly 10.00$     10.00$       0% Brake chamber #MG3534051

2006 price
vendor 
sheet

$0.00 $92.00 $0.00

BOSCH REXROTH HEAVY DUTY BRAKE PARTSBADGER



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 18 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BADGER BOSCH REXROTH HEAVY DUTY BRAKE PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 19 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624 DMS DMS DMS DMs
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051 DMS DMS DMS DMS

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

BADGER BOSCH REXROTH HEAVY DUTY BRAKE PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 20 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624 Bendix $338.62 $204.25
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051 MGM $188.31 $84.75

C-plus 25%

$0.00 $0.00 $289.00

Wheel Oil Seal #L35032 Wiring harness Air dryer #BW065624 PRB Cor-$75.00 $78.40 Blank
Slave Cylinder #JS243750 Lid assembly Brake chamber #MG3534051 MG3534051 $95.73 Blank

Jobber
less 5%

$0.00 $0.00 $174.13

BOSCH REXROTH HEAVY DUTY BRAKE PARTSBADGER



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 21 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576 $39.58 25.73$          35%
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335 $530.12 344.58$        35%

$0.00 $0.00 $370.31

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CASE CATERPILLAR CHEVROLET/GM



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 22 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

Catalog Price and Net Price Listed as same

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576 40.48$       20.24$          50%
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335 Crosses to Fuel S 595.33$     196.46$        67%

MU153
AC Delco
List
Dtd: 4/1/07

$0.00 $0.00 $216.70

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CHEVROLET/GMCASE CATERPILLAR



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 23 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CASE CATERPILLAR CHEVROLET/GM



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 24 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576 39.58$       19.79$          50%
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335 530.12$     265.06$        50%

$0.00 $0.00 $284.85

CATERPILLAR CHEVROLET/GMCASE



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION Pg 25 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 $197.85 $147.64 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 $135.66 $84.85 Water pump #25314335

c-plus 10%

$0.00 $232.49 $0.00

Cutting edge Tensioner #211-7895 Trans Filter #24208576
Belt tensioner Idler #207-8118 Water pump #25314335

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CHEVROLET/GMCASE CATERPILLAR



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 26 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC $100.00 75.00$       25%
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210 $113.00 84.75$       25%

$0.00 $0.00 $159.75

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CUMMINS DETROIT DIESEL DODGE



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 27 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CUMMINS DETROIT DIESEL DODGE



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 28 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DETROIT DIESEL DODGECUMMINS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 29 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DODGECUMMINS DETROIT DIESEL



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 30 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Belt #3911557 5080560 $34.77 $24.83 Neutral safety switch $54.30 $40.70 Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 $141.03 $92.17 Gasket #8922786 $161.47 $114.61 EPC solenoid #4617210

C-plus 10% C-Plus 15%

$117.00 $155.31 $0.00

Belt #3911557 Neutral safety switch Wheel #4895425AC
Belt Tensioner #3978022 Gasket #8922786 EPC solenoid #4617210

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

CUMMINS DETROIT DIESEL DODGE



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 31 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

E.J. WARD FUELING FEDERAL SIGNAL FORD



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 32 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose $132.58 $87.50 34%
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub $149.45 $98.64 34%

Sheet 
Attached

Dtd: 5/9/07

$0.00 $0.00 $186.14

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

E.J. WARD FUELING FEDERAL SIGNAL FORD



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 33 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

FORDE.J. WARD FUELING FEDERAL SIGNAL 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 34 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

E.J. WARD FUELING FEDERAL SIGNAL FORD



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 35 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose $130.12 $97.59
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub $149.45 $111.68

C-plus 25%

$0.00 $0.00 $209.27

Crown Vic canceiver Unitrol Oil cooler hose
GM canceiver DynaMax speaker Front wheel hub

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

E.J. WARD FUELING FEDERAL SIGNAL FORD



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 36 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Steering control Wiper Motor $234.74 164.32$     30% Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 $429.21 300.45$     30% Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $464.77 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper $180.00 $180.00 15%
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper $184.70 $184.70 15%

Catalog Price and Net Price Listed as same Dtd: 5/8/07

$0.00 $0.00 $364.70

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

GALION PARTS GMC MEDIUM DUTY TRUCK GO RHINO



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 37 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor DMS DMS DMS Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

GMC MEDIUM DUTY TRUCK GO RHINOGALION PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 38 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

GALION PARTS GMC MEDIUM DUTY TRUCK GO RHINO



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 39 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor 234.74$     117.37$     50% Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 429.21$     296.15$     31% Wrap around pushbumper

GM Price
Guide
April of 2007

$0.00 $413.52 $0.00

GALION PARTS GMC MEDIUM DUTY TRUCK GO RHINO



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 40 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name Alt Part Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Steering control Wiper Motor Pushbumper
Console control Mirror #15124359 Wrap around pushbumper

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

GMC MEDIUM DUTY TRUCK GO RHINOGALION PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 41 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

JCB PARTS JOHN DEERE MOWER KENNAMETAL BLADES



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 42 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard 44.00$       
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 253.46$     

Manuf. List
Price

$0.00 $0.00 $297.46

KENNAMETAL BLADESJCB PARTS JOHN DEERE MOWER 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 43 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

JCB PARTS JOHN DEERE MOWER KENNAMETAL BLADES



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 44 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard V45 $229.50 $137.70 40%
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 78551WPTSB-P $434.40 $260.64 40%

7/8"x 5"x5' carbide insert
Stated
Dtd: 5/8/07

$0.00 $0.00 $398.34

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

KENNAMETAL BLADESJCB PARTS JOHN DEERE MOWER 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 45 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Link track rod Blade #M141786 Curb Guard
Hydrualic hose Cylinder #AM116872 5ft Blade 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

KENNAMETAL BLADESJCB PARTS JOHN DEERE MOWER 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 46 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar $3,267.00 $2,613.60 20%
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light $489.00 $391.20 20%

Dtd: 5/8/07

$0.00 $0.00 $3,004.80

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

MONROE SNOW PLOW/SPREADER PARTS NEW HOLLAND TRACTOR SOUNDOFF SIGNAL



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 47 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

MONROE SNOW PLOW/SPREADER PARTS NEW HOLLAND TRACTOR SOUNDOFF SIGNAL



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 48 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar 2,767.00$      1,660.20$     40%
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light 592.00$         355.20$        40%

Catalog
Dtd: 5/7/07

$0.00 $0.00 $2,015.40

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

NEW HOLLAND TRACTOR SOUNDOFF SIGNALMONROE SNOW PLOW/SPREADER PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 49 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

MONROE SNOW PLOW/SPREADER PARTS NEW HOLLAND TRACTOR SOUNDOFF SIGNAL



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 50 of 80 
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Plow leg Hose Light bar
Gear box Muffler Rear deck light

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

NEW HOLLAND TRACTOR SOUNDOFF SIGNALMONROE SNOW PLOW/SPREADER PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 51 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

STERLING HEAVY DUTY TYMCO SWEEPER WAUSAU PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 52 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

STERLING HEAVY DUTY TYMCO SWEEPER WAUSAU PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 53 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Temperature guage Hub $95.00 $76.00 20% Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve $105.00 $84.00 20% Cylinder pin

OBD Tymco
Dtd: 1/2/07

$0.00 $160.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

WAUSAU PLOW PARTSSTERLING HEAVY DUTY TYMCO SWEEPER 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 54 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder 374.20$     355.49$     5%
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin 40.65$       38.62$       5%

Jobber - 5%
Wausau 
Dtd: 1/1/07

$0.00 $0.00 $394.11

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

STERLING HEAVY DUTY TYMCO SWEEPER WAUSAU PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 55 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Temperature guage Hub $94.02 $66.75 29% Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve $81.74 $58.04 29% Cylinder pin

Lacal /  
Tymco Catalog

April of 2007

$0.00 $124.79 $0.00

Temperature guage $46.80 $32.16 Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler $1,336.83 $977.31 Water Valve Cylinder pin

Wholesale 

$1,009.47 $0.00 $0.00

Temperature guage Hub Reverse cylinder
Fuel cooler Water Valve Cylinder pin

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

STERLING HEAVY DUTY TYMCO SWEEPER WAUSAU PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 56 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Disc %
Price 

Sheet/Date

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand DMS DMS DMS Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front 43-698 C-Plus 15%
Plow shoe DMS DMS DMS 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear 50-301 C-Plus 15%

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge (Triangle Dist Net)
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam Hendrickson C-Plus 15%

      Walking Beams-46,000#
Dtd: May '06

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

WESTERN PLOW PARTS WIRES & TERMINALS REBUILT PARTS - INCLUDING LABOR 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 57 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Disc %
Price 

Sheet/Date

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

WIRES & TERMINALS REBUILT PARTS - INCLUDING LABOR WESTERN PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 58 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Disc %
Price 

Sheet/Date

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge B-239-10 0.18$         0.13$         30% Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector STC-B 0.57$         0.40$         30% Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge 14-7N-100 4.01$         2.81$         30%
Duplex primary wire 14-3D-100 0.68$         0.47$         30% Hendrickson Walking Beam

Catalog       Walking Beams-46,000#
Dtd: 5/7/07

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $3.81

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge BN-R10 0.046$       Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector BS-B 0.180$       Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge TC-7P 0.750$       
Duplex primary wire 14-3D-C 0.312$       Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#
Dtd: 5/9/07
Jobber Radiators (new & recored)
less 25%

$0.00 $1.29

WESTERN PLOW PARTS WIRES & TERMINALS REBUILT PARTS - INCLUDING LABOR 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 59 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Disc %
Price 

Sheet/Date

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand 12.90$     12.26$       5% Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge 721309 0.23$         0.22$         5% Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 29.77$     28.28$       5% 16-14 gauge butt-type connector 727616 2.10$         2.00$         5% Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge 735654 5.62$         5.34$         5%
Jobber - 5% Duplex primary wire 738453 0.90$         0.86$         5% Hendrickson Walking Beam
Napa PPW       Walking Beams-46,000#
Dtd: 5/1/07 Jobber - 5%

Napa BEL Radiators (new & recored)
Dtd: 5/1/07

$40.54 $8.41

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

WIRES & TERMINALS REBUILT PARTS - INCLUDING LABOR WESTERN PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 60 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name / 

# Disc %
Price 

Sheet/Date

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

Plow stand Eyelet terminal 16-14 gauge Springs: 20,000# Front
Plow shoe 16-14 gauge butt-type connector Springs 46,000# Rear

Trailer cable - 7wire/14 gauge
Duplex primary wire Hendrickson Walking Beam

      Walking Beams-46,000#

Radiators (new & recored)

$0.00 $0.00

REBUILT PARTS - INCLUDING LABOR WESTERN PLOW PARTS WIRES & TERMINALS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 61 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

B

GE LIGHT BULBS TRUCK LITE NAPA



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 62 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134 Amsoil EAA $23.05 $23.05 10%
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302 Amsoil EAA $23.05 $23.05 10%
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042 Amsoil EAO $10.45 $10.45 10%

Filter #1085 Amsoil EAO $10.45 $10.45 10%
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096 Catalog Price and Net Price Listed asDtd: 5/1/07

$0.00 $0.00 $67.00
AC Delco Dtd:
Motorcraft Dtd

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042 DMS DMS DMS DMS

Filter #1085 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Filter #3595 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Filter #4071 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Filter #1-8096 DMS DMS DMS DMS

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

B

NAPAGE LIGHT BULBS TRUCK LITE



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 63 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 6.71$            4.70$            30% Lights #TL-102 33.66$            23.56$          30% Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 1156L 0.31$            0.22$            30% Lights #TL-60204 7.06$              4.94$            30% Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 1157L 0.24$            0.17$            30% Lights #TL620W 18.56$            12.99$          30% Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 H-6054 5.50$            3.85$            30% Lights #TL15200R 2.41$              1.69$            30% Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Catalog Catalog Filter #3595
Dtd: 5/7/07 Dtd: 5/7/07 Filter #4071

Filter #1-8096
$8.93 $43.18 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 6.71$            Blank Lights #TL-102 29.75$          Blank Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 CEC 0.24$            Blank Lights #TL-60204 6.25$            Blank Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 CEC 0.18$            Blank Lights #TL620W ADV/LTZ-620W 5.70$            Blank Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 6.30$            Blank Lights #TL15200R ADV/LTZ-1500R 5.25$            Blank Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Dtd: 5/9/07 Dtd: 5/9/07 Filter #3595

Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$13.43 $46.95 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

B

GE LIGHT BULBS TRUCK LITE NAPA



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 64 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
5/1/2007 Dtd: 5/1/07

Jobber- 50%; Napa FIL
Bulb # 7400 14.81$          13.33$          10% Lights #TL-102 29.70$            26.73$          10% Filter #6134 7.72$       3.86$         50%
Bulb #1156 0.65$            0.59$            10% Lights #TL-60204 5.92$              5.33$            10% Filter #2843 12.71$     6.36$         50%
Bulb #1157 0.34$            0.31$            10% Lights #TL620W 20.91$            18.82$          10% Filter #6302 9.98$       4.99$         50%
Bulb #H6054 8.85$            7.97$            10% Lights #TL15200R 3.33$              3.00$            10% Filter #1042 5.88$       2.94$         50%

Filter #1085 5.34$       2.67$         50%
Jobber - 10% Jobber-10% Filter #3595 9.76$       4.88$         50%
Napa LMP NAPA LIT Filter #4071 11.54$     5.77$         50%
Dtd: 5/1/07 Dtd: 5/1/07 Filter #1-8096 30.57$     15.29$       50%

$22.19 $53.87 $46.75
C plus 10%

AC Delco Media 5/07
Bulb # 7400 GWL7400 5.83$            Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134 A29C 9.90$       3.82$         
Bulb #1156 GWL1156 0.39$            Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843 Wix 42843 10.17$       
Bulb #1157 GWL1157 0.21$            Lights #TL620W Filter #6302 A1208C 9.55$       4.94$         
Bulb #H6054 GWLH6054 6.42$            Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042 PF46F 4.19$       2.80$         

Filter #1085 PF13F 5.00$       2.78$         
C plus 10% Filter #3595 GF832 12.84$     6.25$         

Filter #4071 WF111 6.84$         
Filter #1-8096 TF304 39.50$     13.32$       

$12.85 $0.00 $50.92   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  P
R

O
PO

SA
L 

B

NAPAGE LIGHT BULBS TRUCK LITE



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 65 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Bulb # 7400 Lights #TL-102 Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 Lights #TL-60204 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 Lights #TL620W Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 Lights #TL15200R Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 $10.98 $6.86 Lights #TL-102 $29.34 $18.35 Filter #6134 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Bulb #1156 $0.60 $0.39 Lights #TL-60204 $6.67 $5.05 Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 $0.41 $0.26 Lights #TL620W $20.69 $12.95 Filter #6302 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Bulb #H6054 $10.08 $6.50 Lights #TL15200R $3.71 $1.32 Filter #1042 DMS DMS DMS DMS

Wholesale Filter #1085 DMS DMS DMS DMS
C-plus 25% Filter #3595 DMS DMS DMS DMS

Filter #4071 DMS DMS DMS DMS
Filter #1-8096

$14.01 $37.67 $0.00

Bulb # 7400 $9.52 Blank Lights #TL-102 $31.54 Blank Filter #6134
Bulb #1156 $0.62 Blank Lights #TL-60204 $5.32 Blank Filter #2843
Bulb #1157 $0.34 Blank Lights #TL620W $17.39 Blank Filter #6302
Bulb #H6054 $9.64 Blank Lights #TL15200R $1.70 Blank Filter #1042

Filter #1085
Filter #3595
Filter #4071
Filter #1-8096

$20.12 $55.95 $0.00   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
PR

O
PO

SA
L 

B

GE LIGHT BULBS TRUCK LITE NAPA



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 66 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing 30.77$          27.69$          10%
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder 272.50$        245.25$        10%

Vactor Dlr
Price List
Dtd: 1/07

$0.00 $0.00 $272.94

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ROOT PLOW PARTS SWENSON SPREADER VACTOR



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 67 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00
d: 5/1/07
d 4/1/07

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever 5.50$          5.50$           0% Auger insert 19.00$        19.00$         0% Bearing
Caster inner barrel 62.50$        62.50$         0% Bearing 39.00$        39.00$         0% Air Cylinder

Roots Part Swenson
PriceList PriceList

2/9/2007 4/16/2007

$68.00 $58.00 $0.00

ROOT PLOW PARTS SWENSON SPREADER VACTOR



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 68 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

SWENSON SPREADER VACTORROOT PLOW PARTS



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 69 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ROOT PLOW PARTS SWENSON SPREADER VACTOR



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 70 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Part Name
Alt Part 

Name / # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Caster adjusting lever Auger insert Bearing
Caster inner barrel Bearing Air Cylinder

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ROOT PLOW PARTS SWENSON SPREADER VACTOR



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 71 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

MITN DELIVERY DELIVERY MINIMUM TERMS WARRANTY

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Y/N STOCK EMER. SHIPMENT

Hydraulic Fitting Yes 48hours 24hours Blank Net 10 Min 12 mnth; 12,000 miles
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Blank Blank Blank $20.00 Net 30 Days 1 yr parts & labor - non led;
Hydraulic Fitting 5 yr parts on led products
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Hydraulic Fitting Yes Blank Blank Blank Net 30 Blank
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Hydraulic Fitting Page 2 Hours Blank $0.00 30 days 1 year
Hydrualic Hose Not

Incld
in Bid

$0.00

WEATHERHEAD 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 72 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

MITN DELIVERY DELIVERY MINIMUM TERMS WARRANTY

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Y/N STOCK EMER. SHIPMENT

Hydraulic Fitting
Hydrualic Hose Yes 1-2 Hours 1 Hour $0.00 Net 30 12 months or 12,000 miles

$0.00

Blank 1-24 hours 1-24 hours $.15 per Net 30 All / based on Analysis 
Hydraulic Fitting pound or 
Hydrualic Hose less

$0.00
Yes 1 Hour 1 Hour Blank Net 30 Blank 

Hydraulic Fitting
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Hydraulic Fitting Yes See See See Net 10 1 year 
Hydrualic Hose Exceptions Exceptions Exceptions

$0.00

WEATHERHEAD 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 73 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

MITN DELIVERY DELIVERY MINIMUM TERMS WARRANTY

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Y/N STOCK EMER. SHIPMENT

Hydraulic Fitting Yes 48-72 Hrs 24 hours $25.00 Net 30 Materials & workmanship 
Hydrualic Hose Standard FOB

Shipping Richmond
VA for 
Next Day
Availability

$0.00

Yes 2 Hours Immediate $0.00 Net 30 Blank 
Hydraulic Fitting Invoice
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Hydraulic Fitting W-16U-116 7.35$             5.88$            20% Yes As requested As requested $0 Net 30 Days Is available 
Hydrualic Hose W-H24516 8.81$             7.05$            20%

Catalog
Dtd: 5/7/07

$12.93

Hydraulic Fitting No 24 Hours 12 Hours $0.00 Net 30 1 Year 
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

WEATHERHEAD 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 74 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

MITN DELIVERY DELIVERY MINIMUM TERMS WARRANTY

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Y/N STOCK EMER. SHIPMENT

Hydraulic Fitting No 1,008 hours aft 672 hours $10,000.00 Net 30 Days None 
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Yes 72 hours 24 hours $0.00 Net 30 Blank
Hydraulic Fitting
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

Hydraulic Fitting 160116 12.99$           11.69$          10% Yes 24 Hours As required $25.00 Net 30 90 Days 
Hydrualic Hose 7.82$             7.04$            10%

Jobber -10%
Napa WH
Dtd: 5/1/07

$18.73

Hydraulic Fitting Yes 1 Hour 1 Hour $0.00 Net 10 Min 12 mnths; 12,000 miles
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

WEATHERHEAD 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07 BID TABULATION pg 75 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07 AUTOMOBILE PARTS

MITN DELIVERY DELIVERY MINIMUM TERMS WARRANTY

Part Name
Alt Part Name 

/ # Catalog Net Price
Disc/Price 

Sheet Y/N STOCK EMER. SHIPMENT

Hydraulic Fitting Not blank blank $25.00 Net 30 Days Same as OEM 
Hydrualic Hose Included

In Bid

$0.00

Not 3-5 hours 3-5 hours $0.00 blank 1 yr parts
Hydraulic Fitting Marked
Hydrualic Hose Need 

To 
Check

$0.00

No Same Day 0 $25.00 Net 30 Days Based on MFG Warranty
Hydraulic Fitting
Hydrualic Hose

$0.00

WEATHERHEAD 



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Ivan Gandrud
Chevrolet

Alert Emergency 
Equipment Group 

Jack Doheny
Supplies, Inc. 

John R Spring
Service, Inc. 

                                                                             CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07                                       BID TABULATION pg 76 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07                                      AUTOMOBILE PARTS

EXCEPTIONS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Y/N

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Elder Ford

Lubrication
Specialist & Co. LLC 
/Amsoil

Rowerdink Inc 

Shults Equipment 

                                                                             CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07                                       BID TABULATION pg 77 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07                                      AUTOMOBILE PARTS

EXCEPTIONS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Y/N

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Parts shipped commericially.  Will have freight chrgs prepaid and added Yes
Stock will ship same day as ordered depending on order
No freight for parts in area and usually shipped 7-10 days ARO



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Old Dominion Broom 

Interstate Batteries 

Terminal Supply Co. 

Electrical Terminal
Service

                                                                             CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07                                       BID TABULATION pg 78 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07                                      AUTOMOBILE PARTS

EXCEPTIONS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Y/N

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

St. Regis Culvert Inc. 

Start All Enterprises 

Kirks Automotive Inc

Coach & Motor Co

                                                                             CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07                                       BID TABULATION pg 79 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07                                      AUTOMOBILE PARTS

EXCEPTIONS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Y/N

Prices firm for 60 days Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes

Blank Yes



Opening Date -- 5/10/07
Date Prepared - 7/17/07

VENDOR NAME

Lacal Inc. 

Motor City Trucks 

Great Lakes 
Truck & Trailer

KEY: 
PrImary Vendor
Secondary Vendor

                                                                             CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 07-14
Opening Date -- 5/10/07                                       BID TABULATION pg 80 of 80
Date Prepared - 7/17/07                                      AUTOMOBILE PARTS

EXCEPTIONS ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Y/N

N/A Yes

Blank Yes

Bid prices are only for one year - May 31, 2008 Yes

Note:  Will not supply printed or electronic price sheets
Note:  Credit returns only within 7 days after purchase
Note:  Will supply new catalogs but not racks 



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

July 6, 2007 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
   Patricia A. Petitto, Real Estate Consultant, Greenstar & Associates, LLC 
 
SUBJECT: Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Square 

Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #34 & #35 – Sidwell #88-
20-02-427-022 & #88-20-02-427-023 – Joseph N. Haddad, Manar Haddad and Beatrice 
H. Haddad 

 
 
 
Background: 
 
 In connection with the proposed improvements to John R Road, from Square Lake Road to South 

Boulevard, the Real Estate & Development Department received a Purchase Agreement from Joseph N. 
Haddad, Manar Haddad and Beatrice H. Haddad.  These parcels are located on the west side of John R 
Road, between Square Lake and Atkins in the southeast ¼ of Section 2. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 An appraisal was prepared by Andrew Reed, State Certified Appraiser and reviewed by Kimberly Harper, 

Deputy Assessor and State Licensed Appraiser, and Larysa Figol, Limited Real Estate Appraiser.  Staff 
believes that $19,700, plus closing costs for the acquisition of the property described in the purchase 
agreement is a justifiable amount for this acquisition.   

 Eighty percent of these costs will be reimbursed from Federal funds.  Funds for the City of Troy’s share are 
included in the 2006-07 Major Road fund, account number 401479.7989.022045. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The format and content of the purchase agreement is consistent with documents previously accepted by 

City Council. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 The purpose of this project is to relieve congestion, improve safety and improve the flow of traffic.  (Goals I 

and V) 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-05



 
Options: 

  
Haddad and Beatrice H. Haddad, so that the City can proceed with the acquisition of 

this right-of-way.   

PAP\G\MEMOS TO MAYOR & CC\Haddad Purchase Agreement 

 
City Management recommends that City Council approve the attached Purchase Agreement from Joseph
N. Haddad, Manar 

 
 













campbellld
Text Box
E-06

































 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
July 11, 2007 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    Brian P. Murphy, Asst. City Manger/Economic Development Services 
    Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Private Agreement for Troy School District (Transportation 

Building) 
Project No. 07.920.03 

 
Background: 
 
 The Engineering Department has reviewed the plans for this project and recommends approval.  The plans 

include Detention Pond, Water Main, Concrete Approach and Culverts. 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The owner has provided the necessary escrow deposit and paid the cash fees in accordance with the 

attached Private Agreement. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Consistent with Goal #2 of the City of Troy 2006-2008 Goals & Objectives policy (Retain and Attract 

Investment While Encouraging Redevelopment). 
 
Options: 
 
 Council can approve or deny the recommendation. 

 
 
 
cc: Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk (Original Agreement) 
 James Nash, Financial Services Director 
 
Prepared by: Antonio Cicchetti, PE 
G:\Projects\Projects - 2007\07.920.3 - Transportation Bldg. - Troy Schools\Agenda Item Memo.doc 

campbellld
Text Box
E-07









campbellld
Text Box
E-08









 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

July 18, 2007 
 
 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
   Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
   Patricia A. Petitto, Real Estate Consultant, Greenstar & Associates, LLC 
 
SUBJECT: Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road Improvements, Square 

Lake Road to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel #66 – Sidwell #88-20-01-
151-002  – Russell W. Rush and Kimberly Jolley Rush 

 
 
 
Background: 
 
 In connection with the proposed improvements to John R Road, from Square Lake Road to South 

Boulevard, the Real Estate & Development Department received a Purchase Agreement from Russell W. 
Rush and Kimberly Jolley Rush.  This parcel is located on the east side of John R Road, between Lakeside 
and Alfred in the northwest ¼ of Section 1. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 An appraisal was prepared by Andrew Reed, State Certified Appraiser and reviewed by Kimberly Harper, 

Deputy Assessor and State Licensed Appraiser, and Larysa Figol, Limited Real Estate Appraiser.  Staff 
believes that $54,950, plus closing costs for the acquisition of the property described in the purchase 
agreement is a justifiable amount for this acquisition.   

 Eighty percent of these costs will be reimbursed from Federal funds.  Funds for the City of Troy’s share are 
included in the 2006-07 Major Road fund, account number 401479.7989.022045. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The format and content of the purchase agreement is consistent with documents previously accepted by 

City Council. 
 Section 30.10.05 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance requires a minimum lot size of 8,500 square feet for a 

single-family dwelling in the R-1D Zoning District.  The portion of the parcel remaining after the acquisition 
of the John R Road right of way will be 8,100 square feet.  This agreement was contingent upon the Troy 
Zoning Board of Appeals granting a variance for non-conforming lot area.  Said variance was approved by 
the Board of Zoning Appeals on July 17, 2007. 

 
 
Policy Considerations: 

campbellld
Text Box
E-09



 
The pur pose of this project is to relieve congestion, improve safety and improve the flow of traffic.  (Goals I 
and V) 

ptions

 
 
O : 

 ment from Russell 
W. Rush and Kimberly Jolley Rush so that the City can proceed with this acquisition.   

PAP\G\MEMOS TO MAYOR & CC\Rush Purchase Agreement 

 
City Management recommends that City Council approve the attached Purchase Agree

 
 











       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 23, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in 
accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City 
Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-99 PC



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 23, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral 
Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council 
Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 
Historical Commission; Historic District Commission; Municipal 
Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board c) City Council 
Appointments – Students:  Cable Advisory Committee    

 

campbellld
Text Box
F-01



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
  July 5, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

 
RE:  Bid Waiver – Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program – 

 
Background 

• On October 18, 2004, Troy City Council approved a contract for the Pavement 
Seam and Fracture Sealing Program with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional one-year periods, to the low bidder, Scodeller Construction, Inc. at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation opened September 29, 2004. {Resolution # 
2004-10-546-E7}.  

• The options to renew were exercised in September of 2005 and 2006. 
{Resolutions 2005-09-416-E4e and 2006-09-367-E4e respectively} 

• The current contract expired June 30, 2007. 
• Scodeller Construction, Inc has agreed to amend the construction quantities 

under the same prices, terms, and conditions as 2004. 
• Scodeller Construction, Inc has been producing a quality product for the 

City. 
• A favorable market survey was conducted by the Purchasing Department 

and determined the City would not benefit from soliciting additional sealed 
bids. 

 
Financial Considerations  

• Funds for this project are available in the 2007/08 Capital Accounts for 
Public Works Construction. 

• Major Roads, Account #401479.7989.200 ($100,000.00)  
• Local Roads, Account #401499.7989.120 ($400,000.00)  

 
Legal Considerations  

• The pavement seam and fracture-sealing program was competitively bid 
and vendors were given an opportunity to respond with their level of 
interest in 2004. 

• Formal bidding procedures are waived, as no benefit would be derived 
from soliciting additional sealed bids.   

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



Page 2 of 2 

July 5, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re Bid Waiver – Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program 
 
 
Policy Considerations  

• Pavement seam and fracture sealing preserves infrastructure and would 
improve public safety and also reduce liability for the City. (Goal I & V) 

 
Options 

• City management and the Public Works Department are requesting a 
waiver of the formal bid process and authorization to establish a new 
contract with Scodeller Construction of Wixom, MI, for the pavement seam 
and fracture-sealing program under the same prices, terms and conditions 
as detailed on the attached bid tabulation for ITB-COT 04-40 to expire 
June 30, 2008. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:/BidAward 06-07 New Format/Regular Business - WaiverPavementSealProgram 07-07.doc 
 



 
 

   June 22, 2007 
 
 

TO:      Susan A. Leirstein  
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:    Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – PAVEMENT SEAM & FRACTURE SEALING 
 
 
MICHIGAN JOINT SEALING ,INC – Jerry                                                        (248) 476-4120 
According to Jerry, all prices will be the same for pavement sealing materials.  Work is slow and 
there is need for work.  Even though fuel costs are high, he is going to keep the prices the same 
so he can get work.  As for new products coming out, he has not heard of any for this year. 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offer to 
extend the contract for Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing to Scodeller Construction 
because their labor/material costs are $50,000.00 lower than their closest competitor, Michigan 
Joint Sealing, who made no indication that they are willing to reduce costs any further.   
 
 
 
 
CC: File 









CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-40
Opening Date -- 9-29-04 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 10/7/04 PAVEMENT SEAM & FRACTURE SEALING

VENDOR NAME: *
 

Ck Number
Ck Amount

Proposal:  City of Troy Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing Program with an Option to Renew for
Two (2) Additional One-Year Periods

Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing 
for Material for Major
and Local Roads

4 Traffic Control Included ------ Included ------ Included
ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL *  $  657,500.00  $  708,250.00 

INSURANCE:                        Can meet XX XX
                                               Cannot Meet

CONTACT INFORMATION:

                                         Hrs of Operation 7AM-7PM 7AM-4PM
                                         Contact Number (248)787-1139 (248)476-4120

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Y or N

COMPLETION SCHEDULE:
                                               Can Meet XX XX
                                               Cannot Meet

TERMS: NET 30 NET 30

WARRANTY: 1 YEAR 1 YEAR

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES

VENDOR QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N YES YES

LEGAL STATUS OF BIDDER Y or N YES YES
NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT Y or N YES YES

ATTEST: * DENOTES LOW BIDDER
MaryAnn Hays
Marina Basta-Farouk Jeanette Bennett
Tom Rosewarne Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz

G:ITB-COT 04-40 Pavement Seam & Seal

$2,500.00

MICHIGAN JOINT SEALING
INC

233619886 649171894

UNIT 
PRICE

INC
SCODELLER CONSTRUCTION

Yes, Bi-Weekly

$2,500.00

EXTENSION UNIT 
PRICE

EXTENSION

1 Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing 
for   Major Roads - Labor

350,000 
L.F.

 $    0.665 

ITEM DESCRIPTION Estimated 
Quantities

 $  232,750.00 

2 Pavement Seam & Fracture Sealing 
for   Local Roads - Labor

500,000 
L.F.

 $    0.635 

 $     0.67  $  234,500.00 

 $  317,500.00  $     0.70  $  350,000.00 

First Year by June 30, 2005

3 275,000 
LBS.

 $      0.39  $  107,250.00  $     0.45  $  123,750.00 

Upon Completion



 

 
 
July 12, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Request for Street Name Change 
    Daley Street south of Big Beaver to Behr Drive 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 We have received a request from Behr America, Inc. to change the name of that portion of Daley 

Street located south of Big Beaver Road to Behr Drive.  The street naming committee reviewed 
this issue and agrees that the industrial portion of the street south of Big Beaver should have a 
different name than the residential portion of the street located north of Big Beaver.  However, 
choosing to name the street after a company located on that street when they are not the only 
owner/tenant on the street would be without precedent in the City of Troy.  While there is no 
objection from the street naming committee based upon a conflict with existing street names there 
is also some concern that there may be some confusion with using the non-traditional spelling of 
Behr versus Bear or Bare.  Although this item does not require a public hearing on the matter we 
did send out letters to all the owners/tenants on the street to notify them of the request and gather 
their input.  The letter and their responses are attached for your reference. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The owners and occupants on the street will have the expense of changing addresses with their 

suppliers and customers and the cost of new stationary and letterhead. 
 The city will have the cost of staff time to change all the records on the properties to reflect the 

new street name. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Under the Provisions of the Land Division Act (P.A. 288 of 1967 as amended, MCL 560.256) and 

Chapter 2 of the Troy City Code, City Council has the authority to change the name of a platted 
public street. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Wherever possible we try to avoid non-continuous segments of streets with the same name. 

 
Options: 
 
 City Council can deny the request. 
 City Council can approve the name change to Behr Drive. 
 City Council can approve a name change to some other name.  If this option is chosen the name 

should be referred to the Street Naming Committee for review prior to final action. 
 







Portion of Daley 
Street Proposed to 

be Renamed to 
Behr Drive



June 14, 2007 
 
«Contact_Name» 
«Owner_Name» 
«Owner_Address» 
«Owner_City», «Owner_State» «Owner_Zip» 
 
Re: «Street_Number» «Street_Name» 
 
Dear Daley St Property Owner/Tenant: 
 
The City of Troy has received a request from a neighbor of yours, Behr 
America, to change the name of the portion of Daley Street located south 
of Big Beaver Road.  Their request is to rename the street to Behr Drive.  
In general, staff is in favor of renaming the southern portion of the street 
since that would end the possible confusion with the residential portion 
that is located north of Big Beaver Road.  However, it would be unusual 
for the City to name a street after a particular adjacent property owner 
when they are not the only business addressed on that street. 
 
This item will be forwarded to the Troy City Council at their July 23, 2007 
meeting.  We are interested in your comments on this matter so that we 
can forward them to City Council at the same time.  Please feel free to 
send any comments to me by July 13, 2007, so that I can include them 
with the request. 
 
Should City Council decide to change the street name, that action would 
include an “effective date” approximately 90 days out so that change of 
address notices could be accomplished before the change would take 
effect. 
 
Please feel free to contact me at 248-680-7229 if you have any questions 
regarding this matter. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
Mark Stimac, R.A., C.B.O. 
Director of Building and Zoning 
 



1

Mark S Stimac

From: James Saliba [jsaliba@burkevideo.com]
Sent: Tuesday, June 19, 2007 3:55 PM
To: Mark S Stimac
Subject: Daley St. name change

Hello Mr. Stimac,

I received your notice in the mail today concerning the request from 
Behr to change the name of our street from
Daley St. to Behr Drive.

For the record I am completely against the renaming of our street.

My first objection is that changing the name of the street will cost me 
time and money.
Changing business cards, letterhead, envelopes, websites, etc. is a cost 
that I will have to bear.
Why? Not for the good of the City of Troy; not for the good of my company;
it will only be because of the vanity of the Behr company. I will never 
believe that changing
the name will make any impact on Behr at all. They’ll get no extra 
business because of the name change.
Nor will I. It will only cost me money, which in these difficult days is 
a cost that I’m not willing to take on.

My second objection is that it is a public street, paid for and 
maintained by not only Troy residents,
but all of the businesses in Troy that pay taxes. I don’t believe the 
City of Troy should be naming
public property after private business. What happens if Behr decides to 
move out or if it goes out
of business or if it changes ownership? In today’s world that’s more and 
more likely.
Picture this: you go ahead and mandate the name change; I spend 
thousands of dollars to
keep my business running, and six-months later Behr is sold (as is often 
the case in the automotive industry,
just look at Chrysler) to a different company. They change names. Are we 
then expected to come up
with more money when they petition you to change the street name again?

Please let’s keep Daley St. Daley St. It’s a great name, easy for my 
clients to remember.
And please let’s not give preferential treatment to one business when 
there are several businesses on
the same street that will be have to spend money unneccesarily.

Thank you for your time and consideration in this matter.

Sincerely,

James Saliba
President
Burke Video Company
2877 Daley St.
Troy, MI 48083







campbellld
Text Box
F-04





TO: Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: July 17, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Personnel Evaluation   
 

 
Historically, City Council conducted the personnel evaluations of the City Council appointees, 
the City Manager and the City Attorney, in January or as soon as possible thereafter.  Any 
salary adjustments were effective in the middle of the City’s fiscal year.  Evaluations of all 
other City employees were consistently scheduled so that any salary adjustments would 
occur in the new budget year, which starts in July.   
 
As a result of the recent resolutions of the Troy City Council, the annual personnel 
evaluations of the City Manager and the City Attorney will now also correspond to the City’s 
fiscal year.  At the July 9, 2007, City Council conducted my evaluation in closed session.  As 
a follow up to my evaluation, I am requesting a salary increase for the fiscal 2007-2008 year.     
 
In support of a requested salary increase, I am attaching the First and Second Quarterly 
Litigation Reports, which highlight the achievements during the first half of 2007.  I have 
also included my biographical information, as set forth below.  Please let me know if you 
require further information.  
   

Biographical Information  
 

Lori Grigg Bluhm is the City Attorney for the City of Troy.  She received her B.A. from Albion 
College in 1989, and her J.D. in 1992 from Wayne State University.  She is one of approximately 
50 persons who have received the prestigious designation as a Local Government Fellow from 
the International Municipal Lawyer’s Association (2004).  In 2004, she was recognized as a 
Crain’s Detroit Business 40 Under 40, which identifies persons who achieved success in business 
before turning 40 years of age (2004).   Martindale-Hubbell has repeatedly awarded her with a 
peer review AV rating, which signifies that she is a lawyer with “very high to preeminent legal 
ability”, and also that she  “demonstrate(s) the highest professional and ethical standards.”   

 
She recently completed her term as Chair of the Public Corporation Section of the State Bar of 
Michigan, and remains a board member, as well as serving as a board member of the Michigan 
Association of Municipal Attorneys, and the Michigan Municipal League Legal Defense Fund.  She 
serves as vice chair of the Michigan Municipal League’s Land Use Committee.  She is a past chair 
of the Oakland County Bar Association’s Municipal Law Committee and the Public Service 
Committee.  She is also involved in several other professional organizations, such as the 
International Municipal Lawyers’ Association, American Bar Association State and Local 
Government Law Section, State Bar of Michigan Real Property Law Section, Women Lawyers’ 
Association of Michigan, and past chair of By-laws Committee for Inforum (A Professional 
Women’s Alliance).  She also is a past president (2005-2006) of the Troy Kiwanis Club.  She has 
been a frequent presenter and writer on municipal law issues.  She practices municipal law 
exclusively, representing her sole client, the City of Troy. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL 
FROM: LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY 

ROBERT F. DAVISSON, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
CHRISTOPHER J. FORSYTH, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY  
SUSAN M. LANCASTER, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
ALLAN T. MOTZNY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 

DATE: April 10, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: 2007 FIRST QUARTER LITIGATION REPORT 
 

 
The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters of 

interest.  The accomplishments during the FIRST quarter of 2007 are in bold. 
 

A. ANATOMY OF THE CASE 
 

Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City Attorney’s 
office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that time, our office 
requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the employees.  Our office then 
engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts for several months, and involves 
interrogatories, requests for documents, and depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases 
are required to go through case evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three 
attorneys evaluate the potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be 
accepted by both parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case 
evaluation award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version of the 
facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable claim against 
the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year before a case will be 
presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before a case will be finalized in 
the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
 

B. ZONING CASES 
 

These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for which 
the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to require 
compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 

2. Troy v. Papadelis and Papadelis v. Troy - This is a case filed by the City 
against Telly’s Nursery, seeking to enjoin the business from using the 
northern parcel for commercial purposes.  After a lengthy appellate history, 
an order was entered in the Oakland County Circuit Court, requiring 
compliance on or before April 29, 2002.  The Papadelis family failed to 
comply with the court’s order, and therefore a Contempt Motion was filed.  
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Colleen O’Brien determined that the 
defendants were in contempt of court, and required them to pay $1,000 to 
the City of Troy.  However, the court also determined that the defendants 



were in compliance with the City of Troy zoning ordinances as of the date 
of the court decision.  The Troy City Council authorized an appeal of this 
decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals.  It was filed on September 27, 
2002. The neighbors filed an application for leave to appeal, which was 
denied by the Michigan Court of Appeals on 2/10/03.   After receiving 
criminal citations from the City for expansion of the business, Papadelis 
filed a federal lawsuit against the City of Troy, alleging civil rights violations 
and seeking an injunction against the prosecution and/or further expansion.  
The neighboring property owners filed a Motion to Intervene, which was 
granted by Federal US District Court Judge Arthur Tarnow.  Troy filed a 
counterclaim in the Federal Court case but it was dismissed by Judge 
Tarnow, who refused to exercise jurisdiction over the counter-complaint, 
since it would require him to interpret the opinion of the Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge.  Troy has subsequently filed two separate motions to 
dismiss the Papadelis complaint. One of the motions asserted the same 
jurisdictional claim that was raised against the counter-complaint.  The 
Court granted Troy’s motion based on jurisdictional issues and dismissed 
the case without prejudice.  The court did not rule on the other motion, but 
instead, directed the Papadelises to re-file their case in state court.  The 
Papadelis family then re-filed its lawsuit in Oakland County Circuit Court.  
Troy filed an answer and a counterclaim.  Troy also immediately filed a 
motion for summary disposition seeking dismissal of the complaint and a 
judgment in favor of Troy. The counterclaim seeks an order requiring the 
Papadelis family to remove two greenhouses and other structures that 
have been built upon the property without approvals that are required 
under the zoning ordinance.  The Court scheduled an early intervention 
conference (settlement conference) for October 18, 2005.  The Court has 
set the hearing date for the Motion for Summary Disposition for January 4, 
2006.  Subsequent to the filing of Troy’s Motion for Summary Disposition, 
Plaintiffs’ filed a Cross Motion for Summary Disposition, and the hearing 
was rescheduled for January 18, 2006.  On February 17, 2006, the Court 
entered its written Opinion and Order, dismissing the Papadelis claim for 
money damages and their claim for injunctive relief.  However, the Court 
also granted Summary Disposition in favor of the Plaintiffs on their claim for 
declaratory relief, and held that “retail” activity was not occurring on the 
northern parcel, and that the “agricultural” activities on the northern parcel 
were protected under the Right to Farm Act.  Additionally the Court ruled 
the Plaintiffs’ were exempt from City permitting requirements under the 
agricultural building permit exemption of the State Construction Code Act.  
The Court also dismissed the City’s counterclaim.  Troy has filed an appeal 
with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Plaintiffs’ have filed a cross appeal 
challenging the dismissal of their claims for money damages and injunctive 
relief.  All the required briefs have been filed with the Court of Appeals, 
which will either schedule an oral argument or will inform the parties that 
the case will be decided without oral argument.  Since this case was 
assigned to the expedited track for summary disposition appeals, a final 
decision on appeal is expected before the end of September of this year. 

 2



On June 16, 2006, the Building Department discovered that the Papadelis 
family was erecting a new, large pole barn structure on the property at 
3301 John R. Road.  This structure was likely in violation of local and/or 
state law.  The Building Department followed the procedure for issuing a 
Stop Work Order.  In addition, our office filed an emergency motion with the 
Court of Appeals, seeking to enjoin construction of the building pending 
final outcome of the appeal.  On June 21, 2006, the Court of Appeals 
granted the motion for immediate consideration, but denied the motion to 
enjoin construction of the building.  The denial of the motion has no bearing 
on the final outcome of this appeal, and if Troy ultimately prevails on 
appeal, the new building will have to be removed.  Despite the issuance of 
the Stop Work Order, the construction continued on the new building.  The 
Papadelis Family then filed a Motion to hold the City Attorney and the 
Director of Building and Zoning in contempt of court.  In this Motion, the 
Papadelis family argued that the Circuit Court ruling (Judge Colleen 
O’Brien) allows the construction of the new building without a permit and 
without having to comply with the zoning ordinance provisions regulating 
the size and location of buildings.  Judge O’Brien denied this Motion on 
June 28, 2006, and ruled that her earlier ruling (the ruling on appeal) was 
limited to the buildings on the property at the time of the ruling, and did not 
extend to allow for new construction on the site.  On September 19, 2006, 
the Court of Appeals affirmed the decisions of the Circuit Court.  Thus, the 
Court affirmed the declaratory judgment in favor of the plaintiffs, but it also 
affirmed the dismissal of plaintiff’s civil rights claims against the City, Mark 
Stimac, and Marlene Struckman.  Troy has filed an Application for Leave to 
Appeal with the Michigan Supreme Court.  The Michigan Municipal League 
is also filing an amicus brief in support of the City’s Application for Leave to 
Appeal.  The Papadelis family filed a Cross Application for Leave to 
Appeal.  If the Supreme Court denies both the Application for Leave to 
Appeal and the Cross Application for Leave to Appeal, the Court of 
Appeals decision becomes the final decision in this case.  The Supreme 
Court may grant both the Application and Cross Application for Leave to 
Appeal, or it may grant one and deny the other, or it may grant either 
Application in part and limit the issues that it will review.  The Michigan 
Municipal League (MML) has prepared an Amicus Brief in support of 
the municipal position, and the Papadelis family has opposed the 
MML’s Motion for Leave To File the Amicus Brief.  The parties are now 
waiting for the Michigan Supreme Court to take action.   

 
2. Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Ltd.Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al. –The 

lawsuit was filed, seeking a Declaratory Judgment that a 43-foot easement is a 
“public” roadway easement under the control of the City of Troy.  Garrett 
Family Ltd. Partnership has an option to purchase an outlot that is currently 
owned by Mr. and Mrs. Karagiannakis.  The property would be a part of a 
proposed site condominium project.  However, Troy’s Zoning Ordinance 
requires that there be public street access for all new residential development.   
Therefore, this lawsuit was filed to convert the 43- foot wide driveway into a 

 3



“public roadway.”   Our office filed an immediate Motion for Summary 
Disposition, arguing that there is no authority for the Court to grant the 
requested relief, since the Land Division Act requires a re-plat action to 
accomplish what the Plaintiffs propose.  In a re-plat action, the Plaintiffs would 
file the case against all property owners within 300 feet, as well as the utilities 
and the units of government.  Plaintiffs filed their Brief in Response to our 
Motion for Summary Disposition, and also filed a First Amended Complaint, 
adding two new claims against the Defendants.  In the first additional claim, 
Plaintiffs allege that the Court should order the City to allow the Plaintiffs to 
construct a private driveway from their property to the nearest public road.  In 
the second additional count, Plaintiffs argue that the City has violated Plaintiffs’ 
due process rights.  This alleged due process violation stems from the City’s 
failure to allow the use of an easement for roadway purposes for a public or 
private driveway for their development.  The City filed a new Motion for 
Summary Disposition requesting dismissal of all claims, including the additional 
claims.  Oral arguments on this new Motion were scheduled for February 14, 
2007.  Prior to the oral arguments, the Plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed the 
lawsuit without prejudice, and will now pursue a plat revision lawsuit in 
the Oakland County Circuit Court.  This new lawsuit would necessarily 
be served on the neighboring property owners, as well as the utilities 
and governing entities.   

 
3. Milano Development Company, Inc. v. City of Troy, et. al. – This lawsuit 

was filed on December 11, 2006.  It seeks to amend part of a plat to vacate an 
easement reserved on the original plat of the Square Acres Subdivision Plat, 
located in Section 14.  The Plaintiff is proposing to develop a 13-unit site 
condominium project on Lot 17.  The City has already granted preliminary site 
plan approval of the proposed Athens Park Site Condominium Project.   
However, the development cannot be completed in accordance with the 
approved site plan unless the private roadway easement is vacated.  
The City has filed an answer and discovery is continuing.  

 
 
 

C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES 
 

These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 
improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 
compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the City 
obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for major projects to 
be completed.    

 
1.  Parkland Acquisition (Section 36) 

 
1. Troy v. Premium Construction, L.L.C. – The City has filed this lawsuit against 

Premium Construction, L.L.C. (John Pavone and Mukesh Mangala) to acquire 
property for a park in Section 36.  After a prolonged discovery process, a 

 4



bench trial began on February 22, 2005.  The Court had to interrupt the bench 
trial proceedings with a number of other matters, including criminal jury trials, 
and had the parties on stand by and/or took limited testimony for several 
months.  The last testimony in the lengthy bench trial was taken on June 10, 
2005.  After the testimony, the Judge required the parties to submit post-trial 
“Finding of Facts and Conclusion of Law” and a summary Memorandum, 
which were timely submitted by July 13, 2005.  Replies to those briefs were 
due July 20, 2005.  The parties are now anxiously waiting for the Judge’s 
decision.   It is unknown when the decision will be rendered.  After several 
months, Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Mark Goldsmith requested 
portions of the transcript of the lengthy trial proceedings.  Unfortunately, this 
request has been unexpectedly delayed, since the transcribing court reporter 
broke his wrist, and is unable to complete the work himself and/or have others 
complete it for him.  The parties continue to wait for the Court’s decision.   The 
Court issued his written opinion on February 3, 2006.  The Defendants filed a 
Motion for Attorney Fees, and a hearing on that request was scheduled for 
April 5, 2006.  The Court issued a written order on June 9, 2006 determining 
the amount of attorney fees.  An appeal of the Court’s decisions was filed with 
the Michigan Court of Appeals on June 30, 2006.  The Michigan Court of 
Appeals subsequently ordered mandatory facilitation, which is continuing.  The 
trial transcript was completed and filed with the Court of Appeals.  The City’s 
appellate brief is due on March 30, 2007. 

  
D. CIVIL RIGHTS CASES 

 
 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. Section 
1983.  In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that the City and/or police officers of the City of 
Troy somehow violated their civil rights.   

 
1. Hooters v. Troy- Hooters filed this lawsuit against the City in Federal 

District Court after its state court case was dismissed, and after the 
Michigan Court of Appeals denied Plaintiff’s motion for peremptory 
reversal. Hooters alleges that in denying its request to transfer a Class C 
Liquor License, Troy City Council violated its constitutional freedom of 
speech, equal protection, and due process rights. City Council’s action, 
according to the federal complaint, has caused Hooters to delay the 
opening of its new restaurant at Rochester and Big Beaver, and to lose 
significant profits. Consequently, Hooters has requested damages in 
excess of a million dollars. On November 22, 2006 we filed a motion for 
summary judgment asking District Court Judge Julian A. Cook to dismiss 
the case. On February 28, 2007, Judge Cook heard our motion, and 
abstained on the case, which now stays all proceedings on the 
federal case until there is a final resolution in the state court lawsuit.   

 
2. Gerald Molnar v. Janice Pokley, the City of Troy et al.-  Plaintiff filed 

this lawsuit against the City and Troy Detective Janice Pokley, after a 
jury found him not guilty of the charge of Criminal Sexual Conduct in 

 5



the Second Degree. Plaintiff alleges that the City and Detective Pokley 
violated his constitutional rights to be from an unreasonable seizure, 
due process, and equal protection.  These constitutional violations 
allegedly occurred during the criminal sexual conduct investigation of 
Plaintiff.   Plaintiff also claims that the Troy defendants conspired 
with other named defendants to violate his constitutional rights, and 
intentionally inflicted emotional distress on Plaintiff.  Plaintiff is 
requesting an unspecified amount of compensatory, exemplar, and 
punitive damages. On February 27, 2007, Troy filed a motion to 
dismiss, or in the alternative summary judgment.  District Court 
Judge Gerald E. Rosen will set the hearing date on this motion.     

 
   

E. PERSONAL INJURY AND DAMAGE CASES 
 

These are cases in which the Plaintiff claims that the City or City employees were 
negligent in some manner that caused injuries and/or property damage.  The City enjoys 
governmental immunity from ordinary negligence, unless the case falls within one of four 
exceptions to governmental immunity:  a) defective highway exception, which includes 
sidewalks and road way claims; b) public building exception, which imposes liability only 
when injuries are caused by a defect in a public building; c) motor vehicle exception, 
which imposes liability when an employee is negligent when operating their vehicle; d) 
proprietary exception, where liability is imposed when an activity is conducted primarily 
to create a profit, and the activity somehow causes injury or damage to another; e)  
trespass nuisance exception, which imposes liability for the flooding cases.     

 
1. Norma Robertson v. City of Troy- Plaintiff has filed this lawsuit, 

claiming that the City is liable for injuries she sustained after falling 
on a sidewalk in front of 392 Hickory. The complaint alleges that the 
city is liable under the defective highway exception. According to the 
complaint, on January 10, 2006, Plaintiff was walking on the 
sidewalk when she tripped over a raised portion of concrete. This 
raised portion, she alleges, caused severe injuries, including a 
broken right arm.  We filed our answer to the complaint and are 
exchanging discovery with the Plaintiff. 

 
2. Mary Ann Hennig v. City of Troy- Plaintiff has filed this lawsuit, 

claiming that the City is liable for injuries she sustained after 
her vehicle was struck by a Troy Police Officer as he was 
pursuing a suspected drug dealer.  Her complaint alleges 
serious impairment of a bodily function, in that she has 
neurological damages.  The City has filed an answer to the 
complaint, and the parties are now conducting discovery.   

 
 

 

 6



F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES 
 

1. In Re Hooters of Troy Inc. – Hooters has filed this lawsuit to challenge the June 
19, 2006 City Council denial of their application to transfer a liquor license and 
entertainment permit.  Hooters was seeking to re-locate their business from 
John R to Rochester Road, to the building that was previously occupied by the 
Wagon Wheel Saloon.   Hooters has signed agreements with the former 
owners (Sign of the Beef Carver- Wagon Wheel), for the building and also the 
liquor license with entertainment permit.  Pursuant to state law, local legislative 
approval is required for a transfer of Class C Liquor License and entertainment 
permit.  In their complaint, Hooter’s alleges that the City Council denial of the 
transfer of the liquor license violates their equal protection rights and due 
process rights.  They are asking the Court for an order of superintending 
control, which means they are asking a Circuit Court Judge to overrule City 
Council’s decision.  Hooters is also asking for costs, attorney fees, and 
incidental damages as a result of the delay in moving its operation to 
Rochester Road.  Shortly after filing their complaint, Hooter’s filed a motion 
requesting a superintending control order. On July 26, 2006 Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge John McDonald, after hearing argument, denied Hooter’s 
motion and dismissed their case. Judge McDonald in making his ruling, stated 
that municipalities are afforded broad discretion in review applications for new 
or transferred liquor licenses, and that Troy City Council exercised this 
discretion properly in denying Hooter’s request for to transfer a Class C Liquor 
License and new entertainment permit.  On August 4, 2006, Hooters filed a 
claim of appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals. They also filed a motion for 
immediate consideration and motion for peremptory reversal arguing that 
Judge McDonald’s decision was so blatantly wrong that immediate reversal is 
warranted. On August 16, 2006, the Court of Appeals granted Hooter’s motion 
for immediate consideration but denied their motion for peremptory reversal. 
Hooter’s appeal is still pending, and all the required briefs have been filed with 
the Court of Appeals.  The Court of Appeals has not yet set the date for oral 
argument.  

2. Troy v. George Roberts – This nuisance abatement action was filed after the 
City received multiple complaints from neighbors about the unsafe and 
unsanitary conditions existing at Defendant’s residence, located at 6791 
Livernois Rd., in the City of Troy.  According to reports from his neighbors, 
Defendant accumulated a large amount of trash, papers and debris inside his 
residence.  There also was a concern that the residence did not have working 
plumbing.  These reports were confirmed by subsequent inspections by Troy 
Building Inspectors, who observed multiple ordinance violations at Defendant’s 
home.  On November 17th, our office filed a lawsuit and a motion for a 
preliminary injunction with the Oakland County Circuit Court. Judge Mark A. 
Goldsmith entered an order on November 29, 2006, precluding Defendant 
from occupying the home until the first floor of the property was brought in 
compliance with the City’s Property Maintenance Code.  The order allows 
Defendant to clean his residence in phases, but requires completion of the 

 7



entire project by January 10, 2007.  Defendant substantially complied with 
the Court’s order, and cleaned most of his property.  However, since 
there were still violations, some of which were impacted by the winter 
weather, the Court ordered another inspection for March 7th.  After this 
inspection, Troy’s Building Inspectors reported that all violations were 
corrected.  We then prepared a proposed consent judgment to finalize 
the case.  Under the terms of the consent judgment, the City would 
continue to monitor Defendant’s property by conducting inspections 
every quarter for a period of one year.  On March 14, 2007, Mr. Roberts 
agreed to the terms of the proposed consent judgment.  The Consent 
Judgment was approved by Troy City Council at the April 2, 2007 City 
Council meeting.     

          3.          Nardi v Troy, et al.  - Plaintiff Leroy S. Nardi named the City of Troy, the 
County of Oakland, and the State of Michigan as Defendants in this 
lawsuit filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District 
of Michigan.  The Plaintiff owns a parcel of land located at 97 East 
Wattles.  On April 26, 2001, he received a letter from the Building 
Department, advising him that public sanitary sewer would soon be 
available to service his property, since there was a new subdivision 
that abutted his property.  The letter informed Mr. Nardi of Chapter 20, 
which at that time required connection to the newly available public 
sewer within 18 months.  This mandatory connection included a 
$200.00 Interceptor Connection fee (tap fee) and a $3,400.00 Lateral 
Benefit Charge.  These costs could be financed over a 40- year period 
of time, through a Sewer Contract with the City.  In November 2001, 
Plaintiff’s septic system on the property was showing signs of failure, 
and the Oakland County Health Department was investigating the 
matter.  On November 21, 2001, the Plaintiff signed a Sewer Contract 
with the City, where he agreed to pay the sewer connection fees for 
the hook up in quarterly installments of $57.00 each.   Pursuant to the 
contract, unpaid installments are collected in the same manner as 
taxes, which means that all delinquent payments are forwarded to 
Oakland County for collection and/or foreclosure proceedings.  As a 
result of Plaintiff’s failure to pay the quarterly installments, Oakland 
County initiated foreclosure proceedings for the property. 

In the lawsuit, Plaintiff seeks an injunction to stop the foreclosure 
proceeding, as well as reimbursement for all sewer fees previously 
paid, and punitive damages in the amount of $500,000.00.  Plaintiff filed 
the complaint without the assistance of an attorney, and his basis for 
relief is not exactly clear.  He contends all defendants have violated his 
rights under the 5th, 7th, and 14th Amendments of the United States 
Constitution and he alleges fraud, extortion, a violation of Article VI, 
Section 2 of the Constitution, and a taking of property without due 
process of law.  Essentially, he claims the Sewer Contract is not valid 
because he signed it under duress.  He did make a note on the contract 

 8



when signing that said that he was signing it under duress.  However, 
without such a contract, the entire collection fee would have been 
immediately due, rather than financing the payments over a 40 year 
period.  Plaintiff also challenges the City’s ability to collect a Benefit 
Charge, because a private developer constructed the portion of the 
sanitary sewer system to which his property is connected.  The Benefit 
Charge is designed to reimburse the City for the proportional cost of 
operating the entire system.  The City has filed a Motion to Dismiss, 
which is scheduled for April 23, 2007. 

 

G.  CRIMINAL APPEALS  
 

People v Aileen Grace Potter – Ms. Potter was charged with operating a 
motor vehicle while intoxicated.  Her attorney filed a Motion to Dismiss the 
complaint, arguing that the Defendant was not “operating” a motor vehicle 
pursuant to the statute.   Visiting Judge Levy granted the Defendant’s 
Motion.  The City filed a Claim of Appeal with the Oakland County Circuit 
Court.  On February 15, 2007, the Oakland County Circuit Court 
affirmed the trial court’s dismissal.  

 
On March 8, 2007 the City filed an Application for Leave to Appeal 
with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  This case involves the 
application of the fairly recent amendments to the drunk driving 
statute, which allow for an arrest when an officer has probable cause 
to believe a defendant drove a vehicle while drunk.  Previously, police 
officers were required to actually observe a defendant drive, unless 
there was an accident.  The Application is pending in the Court of 
Appeals. 

 
If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   

 9



TO: MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF CITY COUNCIL 
FROM: LORI GRIGG BLUHM, CITY ATTORNEY 

ROBERT F. DAVISSON, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
CHRISTOPHER J. FORSYTH, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY  
SUSAN M. LANCASTER, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 
ALLAN T. MOTZNY, ASSISTANT CITY ATTORNEY 

DATE: July 2, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: 2007 SECOND QUARTER LITIGATION REPORT 
 

 
The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters 

of interest.  The accomplishments during the SECOND quarter of 2007 are in 
bold. 
 

A. ANATOMY OF THE CASE 
 

Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City 
Attorney’s office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that 
time, our office requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the 
employees.  Our office then engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts 
for several months, and involves interrogatories, requests for documents, and 
depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases are required to go through case 
evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three attorneys evaluate the 
potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be accepted by both 
parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case evaluation 
award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version 
of the facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable 
claim against the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year 
before a case will be presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before 
a case will be finalized in the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme 
Court.   

 
B. ZONING CASES 

 
These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for 
which the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to 
require compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 
1. Troy v. Papadelis and Papadelis v. Troy - This is a case filed by the City 

against Telly’s Nursery, seeking to enjoin the business from using the 
northern parcel for commercial purposes.  After a lengthy appellate history, 
an order was entered in the Oakland County Circuit Court, requiring 
compliance on or before April 29, 2002.  The Papadelis family failed to 
comply with the court’s order, and therefore a Contempt Motion was filed.  
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Colleen O’Brien determined that the 



defendants were in contempt of court, and required them to pay $1,000 to 
the City of Troy.  However, the court also determined that the defendants 
were in compliance with the City of Troy zoning ordinances as of the date 
of the court decision.  The Troy City Council authorized an appeal of this 
decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals.  It was filed on September 27, 
2002. The neighbors filed an application for leave to appeal, which was 
denied by the Michigan Court of Appeals on 2/10/03.   After receiving 
criminal citations from the City for expansion of the business, Papadelis 
filed a federal lawsuit against the City of Troy, alleging civil rights violations 
and seeking an injunction against the prosecution and/or further expansion.  
The neighboring property owners filed a Motion to Intervene, which was 
granted by Federal US District Court Judge Arthur Tarnow.  Troy filed a 
counterclaim in the Federal Court case but it was dismissed by Judge 
Tarnow, who refused to exercise jurisdiction over the counter-complaint, 
since it would require him to interpret the opinion of the Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge.  Troy has subsequently filed two separate motions to 
dismiss the Papadelis complaint. One of the motions asserted the same 
jurisdictional claim that was raised against the counter-complaint.  The 
Court granted Troy’s motion based on jurisdictional issues and dismissed 
the case without prejudice.  The court did not rule on the other motion, but 
instead, directed the Papadelises to re-file their case in state court.  The 
Papadelis family then re-filed its lawsuit in Oakland County Circuit Court.  
Troy filed an answer and a counterclaim.  Troy also immediately filed a 
motion for summary disposition seeking dismissal of the complaint and a 
judgment in favor of Troy. The counterclaim seeks an order requiring the 
Papadelis family to remove two greenhouses and other structures that 
have been built upon the property without approvals that are required 
under the zoning ordinance.  The Court scheduled an early intervention 
conference (settlement conference) for October 18, 2005.  The Court has 
set the hearing date for the Motion for Summary Disposition for January 4, 
2006.  Subsequent to the filing of Troy’s Motion for Summary Disposition, 
Plaintiffs’ filed a Cross Motion for Summary Disposition, and the hearing 
was rescheduled for January 18, 2006.  On February 17, 2006, the Court 
entered its written Opinion and Order, dismissing the Papadelis claim for 
money damages and their claim for injunctive relief.  However, the Court 
also granted Summary Disposition in favor of the Plaintiffs on their claim for 
declaratory relief, and held that “retail” activity was not occurring on the 
northern parcel, and that the “agricultural” activities on the northern parcel 
were protected under the Right to Farm Act.  Additionally the Court ruled 
the Plaintiffs’ were exempt from City permitting requirements under the 
agricultural building permit exemption of the State Construction Code Act.  
The Court also dismissed the City’s counterclaim.  Troy has filed an appeal 
with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Plaintiffs’ have filed a cross appeal 
challenging the dismissal of their claims for money damages and injunctive 
relief.  All the required briefs have been filed with the Court of Appeals, 
which will either schedule an oral argument or will inform the parties that 
the case will be decided without oral argument.  Since this case was 

 2



assigned to the expedited track for summary disposition appeals, a final 
decision on appeal is expected before the end of September of this year. 
On June 16, 2006, the Building Department discovered that the Papadelis 
family was erecting a new, large pole barn structure on the property at 
3301 John R. Road.  This structure was likely in violation of local and/or 
state law.  The Building Department followed the procedure for issuing a 
Stop Work Order.  In addition, our office filed an emergency motion with the 
Court of Appeals, seeking to enjoin construction of the building pending 
final outcome of the appeal.  On June 21, 2006, the Court of Appeals 
granted the motion for immediate consideration, but denied the motion to 
enjoin construction of the building.  The denial of the motion has no bearing 
on the final outcome of this appeal, and if Troy ultimately prevails on 
appeal, the new building will have to be removed.  Despite the issuance of 
the Stop Work Order, the construction continued on the new building.  The 
Papadelis Family then filed a Motion to hold the City Attorney and the 
Director of Building and Zoning in contempt of court.  In this Motion, the 
Papadelis family argued that the Circuit Court ruling (Judge Colleen 
O’Brien) allows the construction of the new building without a permit and 
without having to comply with the zoning ordinance provisions regulating 
the size and location of buildings.  Judge O’Brien denied this Motion on 
June 28, 2006, and ruled that her earlier ruling (the ruling on appeal) was 
limited to the buildings on the property at the time of the ruling, and did not 
extend to allow for new construction on the site.  On September 19, 2006, 
the Court of Appeals affirmed the decisions of the Circuit Court.  Thus, the 
Court affirmed the declaratory judgment in favor of the plaintiffs, but it also 
affirmed the dismissal of plaintiff’s civil rights claims against the City, Mark 
Stimac, and Marlene Struckman.  Troy has filed an Application for Leave to 
Appeal with the Michigan Supreme Court.  The Michigan Municipal League 
is also filing an amicus brief in support of the City’s Application for Leave to 
Appeal.  The Papadelis family filed a Cross Application for Leave to 
Appeal.  If the Supreme Court denies both the Application for Leave to 
Appeal and the Cross Application for Leave to Appeal, the Court of 
Appeals decision becomes the final decision in this case.  The Supreme 
Court may grant both the Application and Cross Application for Leave to 
Appeal, or it may grant one and deny the other, or it may grant either 
Application in part and limit the issues that it will review.  The Michigan 
Municipal League (MML) has prepared an Amicus Brief in support of the 
municipal position, and the Papadelis family has opposed the MML’s 
Motion for Leave To File the Amicus Brief.  The parties are now waiting for 
the Michigan Supreme Court to take action.  On June 29, 2007, in lieu of 
granting leave to appeal, the Michigan Supreme Court ruled in favor 
of the City, and reversed the decisions of the Oakland County Circuit 
Court and the Court of Appeals.  The case will now be remanded back 
to the Oakland County Circuit Court for an order requiring the 
Papadelis family to comply with Troy’s zoning ordinances.  The 
Michigan Supreme Court declared that the greenhouses and pole 
barn are not “incidental to the use for agricultural purposes of the 

 3



land on which they are located.”  Plaintiff’s cross appeal against the 
City was denied.      

 
2. Milano Development Company, Inc. v. City of Troy, et. al. – This lawsuit 

was filed on December 11, 2006.  It seeks to amend part of a plat to vacate an 
easement reserved on the original plat of the Square Acres Subdivision Plat, 
located in Section 14.  The Plaintiff is proposing to develop a 13-unit site 
condominium project on Lot 17.  The City has already granted preliminary site 
plan approval of the proposed Athens Park Site Condominium Project.   
However, the development cannot be completed in accordance with the 
approved site plan unless the private roadway easement is vacated.  
The Plaintiff is currently working on a proposed Consent Judgment, 
which will incorporate the requests of the attorneys of record.   Once 
finalized, the proposed Consent Judgment will be forwarded to City 
Council for action. 

 
3. Karagiannakis and Garrett Family Ltd.Partnership v. City of Troy, et. al.  

The Plaintiffs, Nick and Leslie Karagiannakis, are the owners of property 
that is designated as “Outlot B” in the Troy Villas Subdivision No. 1 
(north of Square Lake Road, west of Rochester Road).  The Co-Plaintiff, 
Garrett Family Limited Partnership (hereinafter “Garrett”) has a purchase 
agreement with the Karagiannakis family for a portion of this property, 
which has or will be combined with the rear portions of other parcels that 
front on Square Lake Road. Garrett proposes to build a 12-unit site 
condominium on this approximately 6.04 acre parcel, which is currently 
landlocked and is located behind several homes that front on Ottawa and 
Donaldson.  The plat for the property does not expressly designate a 
public roadway easement that would allow for a roadway to be 
constructed over the property owned by co-defendants Arthur and 
Delphine Lubiarz (480 Ottawa) and James and Cynthia Smith (536 
Ottawa- actually on the adjoining plat).  The express language of the plat 
grants only a 43-foot private easement- not a public road. In 1981, a 
private driveway agreement over this 43-foot private easement allowed 
for the construction of the Karagiannakis’ residence (500 Ottawa).  
However, this agreement is extremely limited, and authorizes only a 
private driveway to a single-family residence.   It could not be used to 
service a 12-unit condominium site.  Plaintiffs seek to convert the private 
easement to a public road, which is required for the proposed 
development.  The Plaintiffs previously filed an action for Declaratory 
Judgment, and the City argued that the complaint was not correctly filed, 
since the requested relief could only be granted through a re-plat lawsuit 
under the Michigan Subdivision Control Act.  Under this law, a plat 
revision complaint needs to be filed against all persons having an 
interest that could be impacted by revisions to the plat.  Plaintiffs 
thereafter agreed to voluntarily dismiss their Declaratory Judgment 
action lawsuit, and have now filed this plat revision lawsuit.  In the 
alternative, Plaintiffs have also pled a count asking the Court to allow it 

 4



to put in a public or private road that is less than the 60- foot width 
required by City ordinance. The City has filed an Answer to the 
Complaint and discovery is continuing. 

 
C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES

 
These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 

improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 
compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the 
City obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for 
major projects to be completed.    

 
1.  Parkland Acquisition (Section 36)

 
1. Troy v. Premium Construction, L.L.C. – The City has filed this lawsuit 

against Premium Construction, L.L.C. (John Pavone and Mukesh Mangala) 
to acquire property for a park in Section 36.  After a prolonged discovery 
process, a bench trial began on February 22, 2005.  The Court had to 
interrupt the bench trial proceedings with a number of other matters, 
including criminal jury trials, and had the parties on stand by and/or took 
limited testimony for several months.  The last testimony in the lengthy 
bench trial was taken on June 10, 2005.  After the testimony, the Judge 
required the parties to submit post-trial “Finding of Facts and Conclusion of 
Law” and a summary Memorandum, which were timely submitted by July 
13, 2005.  Replies to those briefs were due July 20, 2005.  The parties are 
now anxiously waiting for the Judge’s decision.   It is unknown when the 
decision will be rendered.  After several months, Oakland County Circuit 
Court Judge Mark Goldsmith requested portions of the transcript of the 
lengthy trial proceedings.  Unfortunately, this request has been 
unexpectedly delayed, since the transcribing court reporter broke his wrist, 
and is unable to complete the work himself and/or have others complete it 
for him.  The parties continue to wait for the Court’s decision.   The Court 
issued his written opinion on February 3, 2006.  The Defendants filed a 
Motion for Attorney Fees, and a hearing on that request was scheduled for 
April 5, 2006.  The Court issued a written order on June 9, 2006 
determining the amount of attorney fees.  An appeal of the Court’s 
decisions was filed with the Michigan Court of Appeals on June 30, 2006.  
The Michigan Court of Appeals subsequently ordered mandatory 
facilitation, which is continuing.  The trial transcript was completed and filed 
with the Court of Appeals.  The City’s appellate brief was due on March 30, 
2007.  Just prior to this filing deadline, the parties reached a 
settlement of this case, which resulted in a significant savings in the 
statutory attorney fees.  The case on appeal has been dismissed and 
this case is now closed. 
 

 

 5



D. CIVIL RIGHTS CASES
 
 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. 
Section 1983.  In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that the City and/or police officers of 
the City of Troy somehow violated their civil rights.   

 
1. Hooters v. Troy- Hooters filed this lawsuit against the City in Federal 

District Court after its state court case was dismissed, and after the 
Michigan Court of Appeals denied Plaintiff’s motion for peremptory 
reversal. Hooters alleges that in denying its request to transfer a Class C 
Liquor License, Troy City Council violated its constitutional freedom of 
speech, equal protection, and due process rights. City Council’s action, 
according to the federal complaint, has caused Hooters to delay the 
opening of its new restaurant at Rochester and Big Beaver, and to lose 
significant profits. Consequently, Hooters has requested damages in 
excess of a million dollars. On November 22, 2006 we filed a motion for 
summary judgment asking District Court Judge Julian A. Cook to dismiss 
the case. On February 28, 2007, Judge Cook heard our motion, and 
abstained on the case, which now stays all proceedings on the federal 
case until there is a final resolution in the state court lawsuit.  On May 21, 
2007, Troy City Council approved a consent judgment, which settled 
the case. 
 

2. Gerald Molnar v. Janice Pokley, the City of Troy et al.-  Plaintiff filed this 
lawsuit against the City and Troy Detective Janice Pokley, after a jury 
found him not guilty of the charge of Criminal Sexual Conduct in the 
Second Degree. Plaintiff alleges that the City and Detective Pokley violated 
his constitutional rights to be from an unreasonable seizure, due process, 
and equal protection.  These constitutional violations allegedly occurred 
during the criminal sexual conduct investigation of Plaintiff.   Plaintiff also 
claims that the Troy defendants conspired with other named defendants to 
violate his constitutional rights, and intentionally inflicted emotional distress 
on Plaintiff.  Plaintiff is requesting an unspecified amount of compensatory, 
exemplar, and punitive damages. On February 27, 2007, Troy filed a 
motion to dismiss, or in the alternative summary judgment.  Plaintiff filed 
his response to our motion to dismiss on May 21, 2007.  The parties 
are now waiting for U.S. District Court Judge Gerald E. Rosen to set a 
hearing date.     
 

3.   Kenneth Morrell v Troy, et al.  Plaintiff Kenneth Morrell filed a lawsuit 
against the City of Troy and Troy Police Officer Meghan Broderick.  In the 
complaint, Mr. Morrell alleges a count of assault, gross negligence, a 
violation of Michigan’s Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act 
(PWDCRA), Constitutional violations, false imprisonment, and racial 
discrimination.  The lawsuit was filed in Oakland County Circuit Court 
and assigned to Judge Steven N. Andrews. 

 6



According to the complaint, the Plaintiff is a disabled person who is 
African-American.  He contends that the PWDCRA entitles him to have 
employees of self-service gas stations pump gasoline into his car on 
demand.  He alleges that on April 28, 2006 he drove to the BP gas station 
at Maple and John R., seeking some gasoline for his car.  Plaintiff claims 
that his request for gasoline was denied, and that the gas station owner/ 
operator instead contacted the Troy Police, who sent Officer Broderick to 
the scene.  In his complaint, he alleges that Officer Broderick aided and 
abetted the gas station employees in violating his rights under the 
PWDCRA.  He also complains that Officer Broderick drew a weapon (a 
handgun) on the Plaintiff without justification.  Officer Broderick denies 
that she drew a handgun, although the circumstances may have justified 
it. She did take her department issued taser out of the holster, but did not 
use it. Plaintiff also complains that another unidentified Troy police 
sergeant told him he was permanently barred from the BP gas station, 
and that he would be arrested for trespassing if he returned.  He claims 
the incident resulted in emotional agitation, forcing him to seek medical 
help, including medication for his nerves. He is seeking over $25,000 in 
damages, plus attorney fees and costs. Plaintiff has also named the gas 
station owners and its manager as co-defendants in this lawsuit.  Troy 
has filed a Motion for Summary Disposition.  The hearing on the motion 
is scheduled for July 11, 2007. 

   
E. PERSONAL INJURY AND DAMAGE CASES 

 
These are cases in which the Plaintiff claims that the City or City 

employees were negligent in some manner that caused injuries and/or property 
damage.  The City enjoys governmental immunity from ordinary negligence, 
unless the case falls within one of four exceptions to governmental immunity:  a) 
defective highway exception, which includes sidewalks and road way claims; b) 
public building exception, which imposes liability only when injuries are caused by 
a defect in a public building; c) motor vehicle exception, which imposes liability 
when an employee is negligent when operating their vehicle; d) proprietary 
exception, where liability is imposed when an activity is conducted primarily to 
create a profit, and the activity somehow causes injury or damage to another; e)  
trespass nuisance exception, which imposes liability for the flooding cases.     

 
1. Norma Robertson v. City of Troy- Plaintiff has filed this lawsuit, claiming 

that the City is liable for injuries she sustained after falling on a sidewalk in 
front of 392 Hickory. The complaint alleges that the City is liable under the 
defective highway exception. According to the complaint, on January 10, 
2006, Plaintiff was walking on the sidewalk when she tripped over a raised 
portion of concrete. This raised portion, she alleges, caused severe 
injuries, including a broken right arm.  We filed our answer to the 
complaint and engaged in limited discovery. In response to a 
discovery request, we received a photograph from Plaintiff, showing 

 7



the area of the sidewalk where Plaintiff allegedly tripped and fell. This 
photograph showed that there was a small discontinuity defect 
between two slabs of sidewalk that was less than two inches.  Under 
Michigan law, if sidewalk discontinuities are less than 2 inches, there 
is a presumption that the sidewalk is in reasonable repair.  Since 
governmental immunity is pierced only when sidewalks are not kept 
in reasonable repair, we immediately filed a motion for summary 
disposition. On June 6, 2007, the Court granted the City’s motion for 
summary disposition, and the Plaintiff’s case against the City has 
now been dismissed without liability.   

 
2. Mary Ann Hennig v. City of Troy- Plaintiff has filed this lawsuit, claiming 

that the City is liable for injuries she sustained after her vehicle was struck 
by a Troy Police Officer as he was pursuing a suspected drug dealer.  Her 
complaint alleges serious impairment of a bodily function, in that she has 
neurological damages.  The City has filed an answer to the complaint, and 
the parties are now conducting discovery.  Discovery is continuing.   
 

 
F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES

 
1. In Re Hooters of Troy Inc. – Hooters has filed this lawsuit to challenge the June 

19, 2006 City Council denial of their application to transfer a liquor license and 
entertainment permit.  Hooters was seeking to re-locate their business from 
John R to Rochester Road, to the building that was previously occupied by the 
Wagon Wheel Saloon.   Hooters has signed agreements with the former 
owners (Sign of the Beef Carver- Wagon Wheel), for the building and also the 
liquor license with entertainment permit.  Pursuant to state law, local legislative 
approval is required for a transfer of Class C Liquor License and entertainment 
permit.  In their complaint, Hooter’s alleges that the City Council denial of the 
transfer of the liquor license violates their equal protection rights and due 
process rights.  They are asking the Court for an order of superintending 
control, which means they are asking a Circuit Court Judge to overrule City 
Council’s decision.  Hooters is also asking for costs, attorney fees, and 
incidental damages as a result of the delay in moving its operation to 
Rochester Road.  Shortly after filing their complaint, Hooter’s filed a motion 
requesting a superintending control order. On July 26, 2006 Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge John McDonald, after hearing argument, denied Hooter’s 
motion and dismissed their case. Judge McDonald in making his ruling, stated 
that municipalities are afforded broad discretion in review applications for new 
or transferred liquor licenses, and that Troy City Council exercised this 
discretion properly in denying Hooter’s request for to transfer a Class C Liquor 
License and new entertainment permit.  On August 4, 2006, Hooters filed a 
claim of appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals. They also filed a motion for 
immediate consideration and motion for peremptory reversal arguing that 
Judge McDonald’s decision was so blatantly wrong that immediate reversal is 
warranted. On August 16, 2006, the Court of Appeals granted Hooter’s motion 

 8



for immediate consideration but denied their motion for peremptory reversal. 
Hooter’s appeal is still pending, and all the required briefs have been filed with 
the Court of Appeals.  Pursuant to the approved consent judgment in the 
federal court case, Hooters has dismissed its appeal in the Michigan 
Court of Appeals, and the case is now closed.   

2. Troy v. George Roberts – This nuisance abatement action was filed after the 
City received multiple complaints from neighbors about the unsafe and 
unsanitary conditions existing at Defendant’s residence, located at 6791 
Livernois Rd., in the City of Troy.  According to reports from his neighbors, 
Defendant accumulated a large amount of trash, papers and debris inside his 
residence.  There also was a concern that the residence did not have working 
plumbing.  These reports were confirmed by subsequent inspections by Troy 
Building Inspectors, who observed multiple ordinance violations at Defendant’s 
home.  On November 17th, our office filed a lawsuit and a motion for a 
preliminary injunction with the Oakland County Circuit Court. Judge Mark A. 
Goldsmith entered an order on November 29, 2006, precluding Defendant 
from occupying the home until the first floor of the property was brought in 
compliance with the City’s Property Maintenance Code.  The order allows 
Defendant to clean his residence in phases, but requires completion of the 
entire project by January 10, 2007.  Defendant substantially complied with the 
Court’s order, and cleaned most of his property.  However, since there were 
still violations, some of which were impacted by the winter weather, the Court 
ordered another inspection for March 7th.  After this inspection, Troy’s Building 
Inspectors reported that all violations were corrected.  We then prepared a 
proposed consent judgment to finalize the case.  Under the terms of the 
consent judgment, the City would continue to monitor Defendant’s property by 
conducting inspections every quarter for a period of one year.  On March 14, 
2007, Mr. Roberts agreed to the terms of the proposed consent judgment.  The 
Consent Judgment was approved by Troy City Council at the April 2, 2007 City 
Council meeting.  Although the case has now been dismissed, the City is 
obligated to conduct periodic inspections.  In June, the inspection 
revealed that the property is still in compliance with the City ordinances.    

          3.         Nardi v Troy, et al.  - Plaintiff Leroy S. Nardi named the City of Troy, 
the County of Oakland, and the State of Michigan as Defendants in this 
lawsuit filed in the United States District Court for the Eastern District of 
Michigan.  The Plaintiff owns a parcel of land located at 97 East Wattles.  
On April 26, 2001, he received a letter from the Building Department, 
advising him that public sanitary sewer would soon be available to service 
his property, since there was a new subdivision that abutted his property.  
The letter informed Mr. Nardi of Chapter 20, which at that time required 
connection to the newly available public sewer within 18 months.  This 
mandatory connection included a $200.00 Interceptor Connection fee (tap 
fee) and a $3,400.00 Lateral Benefit Charge.  These costs could be 
financed over a 40- year period of time, through a Sewer Contract with the 
City.  In November 2001, Plaintiff’s septic system on the property was 

 9



showing signs of failure, and the Oakland County Health Department was 
investigating the matter.  On November 21, 2001, the Plaintiff signed a 
Sewer Contract with the City, where he agreed to pay the sewer connection 
fees for the hook up in quarterly installments of $57.00 each.   Pursuant to 
the contract, unpaid installments are collected in the same manner as taxes, 
which mean that all delinquent payments are forwarded to Oakland County 
for collection and/or foreclosure proceedings.  As a result of Plaintiff’s failure 
to pay the quarterly installments, Oakland County initiated foreclosure 
proceedings for the property. 

In the lawsuit, Plaintiff seeks an injunction to stop the foreclosure proceeding, 
as well as reimbursement for all sewer fees previously paid, and punitive 
damages in the amount of $500,000.00.  Plaintiff filed the complaint without 
the assistance of an attorney, and his basis for relief is not exactly clear.  He 
contends all defendants have violated his rights under the 5th, 7th, and 14th 
Amendments of the United States Constitution and he alleges fraud, 
extortion, a violation of Article VI, Section 2 of the Constitution, and a taking 
of property without due process of law.  Essentially, he claims the Sewer 
Contract is not valid because he signed it under duress.  He did make a note 
on the contract when signing that said that he was signing it under duress.  
However, without such a contract, the entire collection fee would have been 
immediately due, rather than financing the payments over a 40 year period.  
Plaintiff also challenges the City’s ability to collect a Benefit Charge, because 
a private developer constructed the portion of the sanitary sewer system to 
which his property is connected.  The Benefit Charge is designed to 
reimburse the City for the proportional cost of operating the entire system.  
The City has filed a Motion to Dismiss, which is scheduled for April 23, 2007.  
After receiving Troy’s Motion to Dismiss, Plaintiff hired an attorney to 
represent him.  Plaintiff filed a response to the motion, and oral 
argument was held.  Judge Anna Diggs Taylor granted the Motion in 
part and dismissed Plaintiff’s state law (fraud, contract, duress, 
extortion and common law) claims.  With regard to Plaintiff’s federal 
claims, the Court indicated it would grant the Motion to Dismiss unless 
Plaintiff filed an amended complaint within 20 days.  The Plaintiff filed 
an amended complaint and Troy has filed its Answer and Affirmative 
Defenses.  The case is now in the discovery phase. 

4. In re Collins and Aikman Corporation et al. -- Collins and Aikman has 
filed this complaint for an adversary proceeding against the City of 
Troy in connect with its Chapter 11 bankruptcy case.  According to the 
allegations contained in this complaint, Collins and Aikman is seeking 
to have the 2004 and 2005 City property taxes (totaling $201,997.83) 
declared as unsecured liens.  The taxes have already been paid.  
Similar adversary proceeding complaints were filed against other 
Michigan municipalities.  We have asked for an immediate dismissal of 
the case.  Our response to the complaint is due on or before July 16, 
2007. 

 10



G.  CRIMINAL APPEALS  
 

1. People v Aileen Grace Potter – Ms. Potter was charged with operating a 
motor vehicle while intoxicated.  Her attorney filed a Motion to Dismiss the 
complaint, arguing that the Defendant was not “operating” a motor vehicle 
pursuant to the statute.   Visiting Judge Levy granted the Defendant’s 
Motion.  The City filed a Claim of Appeal with the Oakland County Circuit 
Court.  On February 15, 2007, the Oakland County Circuit Court affirmed 
the trial court’s dismissal.  On March 8, 2007 the City filed an Application 
for Leave to Appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  This case 
involves the application of the fairly recent amendments to the drunk 
driving statute, which allow for an arrest when an officer has probable 
cause to believe a defendant drove a vehicle while drunk.  Previously, 
police officers were required to actually observe a defendant drive, unless 
there was an accident.  The Application is still pending at the Michigan 
Court of Appeals. 

 
 

H. ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS 
  

1. In the Matter of the Application of International Transmission 
Company, d/b/a ITCTransmission, for a Certificate of Public 
Convenience and Necessity for the Construction of a Major 
Transmission Line Running From and Through Sterling Heights, Troy, 
Clawson, and Royal Oak, MI.   ITCTransmission has requested 
permission to construct a new major transmission line- the Bismark- 
Troy Project.  After meeting with City Administration, ITC’s proposed 
location for this new transmission line is primarily through industrial 
properties, and underground.  Previously, a route traversing Maple 
Road was considered.  Before any construction can commence, 
ITCTransmission needs to obtain a Certificate of Public Convenience 
and Necessity from the Public Service Commission (PSC).  In this 
proceeding, the PSC determines whether the public benefits justify 
the construction of the new transmission line; whether the proposed 
route is feasible and reasonable; and whether the proposed line 
presents an unreasonable threat to public health or safety.  In this 
particular case, Detroit Edison and Consumers Power filed to 
intervene.  On appeal, these petitions were granted.  The parties are 
now conducting discovery.      

 
 

If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   

 11



 1

 
 
 
DATE: July 6, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Announcement of Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: 

ZOTA 231) – Article XXVIII – Restaurants in the M-1 Light Industrial District 
 
 
Background: 
 
• A public hearing is scheduled for the August 6, 2007 City Council meeting. 
 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing for this item at the June 12, 2007 Regular 

meeting and recommended approval of ZOTA 231.   
 
• The proposed amendment permits Restaurants with Special Use Approval in the M-1 

District.  Outdoor seating will be permitted provided there is access to the outdoor seating 
area through the interior of the restaurant.  The amendment will improve usability and 
marketability of M-1 property. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The proposed amendment is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and 

safety of the community) and Goal III (Retain and attract investment while encouraging 
redevelopment). 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-01a



 2

Options: 
 
• City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 
• No action until public hearing on August 6, 2007. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 231 City Council Public Hearing Draft. 
2. Minutes from June 12, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Minutes from May 22, 2007 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting. 
4. Minutes from April 24, 2007 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting. 
5. Minutes from March 27, 2007 Planning Commission Special/Study meeting. 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 231 Restaurants in M-1\Announce CC Public Hearing 07 23 07.doc 



 1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXVIII of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended to permit 
restaurants subject to Special Use Approval in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District, 
to read as follows: 
 
28.30.11 Restaurants, including outdoor seating, subject to the following: 

 
  A. Outside seating areas shall be enclosed by masonry walls, or 

decorative fencing elements, or shall otherwise be physically 
delineated and limited in a manner acceptable to the Planning 
Commission.   

  B. Access to the outdoor seating area shall be from the interior of the 
restaurant. 

  C. Drive through windows shall be prohibited. 
 
28.30.120 Other uses of a similar character to those permitted above, and which 

will not be injurious or have an adverse effect on adjacent areas, and 
may therefore be permitted subject to such conditions, restrictions 
and safeguards as may be deemed necessary in the interest of public 
health, safety and welfare. 

 
   
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 



 2

prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2007. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 231 Restaurants in M-1\Restaurants in M-1 Draft ZOTA 06 21 07.doc 











 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
July 11, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Economic Development Services 

Mark Stimac, Director of Building and Zoning 
 
SUBJECT:   Proposed Revision to Chapter 85, Sign Ordinance 
    Subdivision Entranceway Signs 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 We have received sign permit applications for two signs to replace the existing subdivision 

entranceway signs for the Lake Charnwood Subdivision.  The applications are for 27 square foot signs 
to be placed symmetrically at the intersection of Killarney and South Boulevard.  Unfortunately, we 
have to deny these permit applications because the current provisions of the Troy Sign Ordinance 
allow for only one sign for a subdivision entrance.  This is not the first time that such a request has 
been submitted and denied.  The applicant, as others have in the past, does have the option of 
applying for a variance before the Building Code Board of Appeals to allow for two signs.  We however 
believe that this is an unnecessary burden on the applicant and that the Sign Ordinance should be 
revised in such a way that would allow two signs to be installed while still maintaining the maximum 
100 square foot sign area.  We have prepared and attached proposed language revising Section 
85.02.05 C of the Sign Ordinance that will accomplish this task.  This item is proposed to appear on 
your agenda for the meeting of August 6, 2007 for final action. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 City Council has the authority to amend the Sign Ordinance per Section 5.3 of the City Charter. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community (Goal 1) 
 Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of City government. (Goal 2) 

 
Options: 
 
 There are no options at this time. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



REVISE Section 85.02.05 C of the Troy Sign Ordinance to read as follows: 
 
C. Specific Zoning District Regulations  

1. R-1 and R-2 Districts: Signs in single-family and two-family districts shall be 
allowed as follows:  
a. For Special Approval Uses listed in Chapter 39, Section 10.30.00 of 

the Troy City Code: One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in 
area.  

b. For Subdivision Entrances: A maximum of two signs not exceeding a 
total of One sign not to exceed 100 square feet in area.  

c. For Subdivisions Under Development: One sign not to exceed 100 
square feet in area is allowed until such time as a certificate of 
occupancy is issued for all homes in the subdivision.  

 



TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council    
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: July 18, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Proposed Smoking Lounge Ordinance 
 

 

 At the last regular City Council meeting, members of Council requested that our 
office present an ordinance that would regulate hookah cafes and other establishments 
that promote the smoking of tobacco on the premises. This request was initially made by 
the Troy Community Coalition, and was based on concerns that minors were increasing 
their use of tobacco.  This increase in the unlawful use of tobacco could be linked to the 
increasing popularity of hookah or smoking lounges in the City of Troy.  A licensing 
requirement for smoking or hookah lounges provides the City with some preventative 
safeguards to address the unlawful use of tobacco by minors. Upon information and 
belief, Troy is one of only a few jurisdictions in the State to consider a Smoking Lounge 
License for those businesses in the City.   
 

As set forth in the attached propose ordinance, the license requirement would only 
apply to those establishments that, as one of its principal business purposes, promotes the 
smoking of tobacco and other legal substances on the premises.  Prior to any license being 
issued, a prospective smoking lounge operator would be subject to an investigation and 
background check by City staff, which is designed to screen the proposed operators of these 
types of businesses.  If the proposed operators or the proposed location do not meet the 
City’s criteria for a Smoking Lounge License, then the City can deny a license application.   
For example, a person who was convicted of furnishing tobacco or alcohol to a minor may be 
denied a smoking lounge license, and a license may be denied when the premises is in 
violation of the zoning or building ordinances.  

 
Violation of the provisions of this ordinance would be a misdemeanor, punishable by 

up to 90 days in jail and /or a fine of up to $500.  This includes the operation of a smoking 
lounge without a license. 

 
The proposed ordinance, and corresponding necessary amendments to Chapters 

3 and 60 are attached for your review. This item is for informational purposes, and is 
planned to be an action item on the next City Council agenda.  If you have any questions 
concerning the above, please let us know.   

 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02b



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO ADD A NEW CHAPTER TO THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY WHICH CHAPTER SHALL BE 
DESIGNATED AS CHAPTER 77 

 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as Chapter 77, Smoking Lounges, 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2. Adoption of Article VII, Chapter 77 
 
Chapter 77 of the Code of the City of Troy, to provide for the licensing of smoking 
lounges, to provide for definitions of smoking lounges, to provide for application 
for a license, to provide for specific requirements and conditions for smoking 
lounges and to provide for a penalty for violation thereof, is hereby adopted as 
set forth below: 
 
Section 3. Smoking Lounge Ordinance 

 
1. Definitions. The following definitions shall apply in this Chapter.  
 

a. “Smoking Lounge” means an establishment, which, as one of its 
principal business purposes, promotes the smoking of tobacco 
products or other legal substances on its premises. The term 
“Smoking Lounge” includes, but is not limited to: cigar lounges, 
hookah cafés, tobacco lounges, tobacco clubs or tobacco bars. 

 
b. “Principal business purpose” means: 

 
i. The devotion of more than 50 percent of its interior floor 

space for the promotion of smoking tobacco products or 
other legal substances at the establishment; or 

 
ii. The receipt of more than 35 percent of its revenues from the 

smoking of tobacco products or other legal substances at the 
establishment; or 

 
iii. The devotion of more than 35 percent of its advertising 

expenditures to the promotion of smoking tobacco products 
or other legal substances at the establishment.  

 



c. “Tobacco Products” mean cigars, cigarettes, or non-cigarette 
smoking tobacco. 

 
d. “Other Legal Substances” include clove cigarettes, kreteks, herbal 

cigarettes, and any other legal substance that can be consumed by 
smoking.  

 
2. License Required 

 
No person shall operate a Smoking Lounge in the City of Troy without first 
obtaining a smoking lounge license issued pursuant to the provisions of this 
Chapter. 
 

3. Application for Smoking Lounge License 
 

a. An applicant shall submit to the City Clerk a fully completed 
application, on a form that is prepared and furnished by the City 
Clerk. 

 
b. The application shall include at least the following information: 

 
i. The full and complete name and current address of the 

applicant(s). 
  

1. If the applicant is a partnership, the name and 
address of each partner shall be listed, and a copy of 
any partnership agreement shall be attached to the 
application. 

  
2. If the applicant is a privately held corporation, the 

name and address of each corporate officer, member 
of board of directors, and stockholder shall be listed , 
and a copy of the articles of incorporation shall be 
attached to the application.  

 
3. If the applicant is a publicly held corporation, the 

name and address of each corporate officer, each 
member of the board of directors and each 
stockholder who owns ten (10) percent or more of the 
corporate stock shall be listed on the application. 

 
4. If the applicant is a limited liability company, the name 

and address of each member, manager and assignee 
of a membership interest shall be listed, and the 
articles of organization shall be attached to the 
application. 



 
ii. The complete name, address, and telephone number of the 

proposed licensed business; 
 

iii. Written statement as to the applicant’s experience in 
operating similar businesses; 

 
iv. A concise statement as to the individual applicant’s past 

employment; 
 

v. Any other information pertinent to the applicant and the 
operation of the proposed licensed business. 

 
c. An applicant shall attach to the completed application a floor plan, 

drawn to scale, showing the interior of the proposed business, and 
uses of the proposed spaces.  

 
4.  Licensing  

 
Smoking Lounge Licenses shall be subject to the provisions of Chapter 59 of this 
Code.  
 

5. License Fees 
 

The fee for a Smoking Lounge License shall be as specified in Chapter 60 of this 
Code. 

 
6. Investigation 
 

a. After the City Clerk has received a completed application, it  shall 
be, at a minimum, forwarded to the following City Departments for 
review and investigation: 

 
i. Police 
 

ii. Fire 
 

iii. Building Inspection 
 

b. During City business hours or at another mutually agreeable time, 
the applicant shall allow the representatives of the above 
referenced City Departments onto the property and into the 
proposed licensed premises to complete an investigation. 

 



c. If all of the above listed City Departments approve the application, 
and it conforms to the provisions of this Chapter, the City Clerk 
shall issue a Smoking Lounge License to the applicant.  

 
7. Reasons for Denial 
 

a. Requirements for Applicants.   A license may be denied as a result 
of one or more of the following factors:  

 
i. An individual applicant, who has previously received a 

Smoking Lounge License, has had the license revoked for 
cause, as defined in Chapter 59 of this Code. 

 
ii. If the applicant is a co-partnership, and any of the members 

of the co-partnership fail to qualify to obtain a Smoking 
Lounge License.   

 
iii. A corporation if any officer, manager or director or a stock 

owner or stockholders owning in the aggregate more than 
ten (10) percent of the stock of such corporation, would not 
be eligible to receive a license or related permit hereunder 
for any reason. 

 
iv. If the applicant proposes to hire a manager or agent to 

handle the business operations, and the proposed manager 
or agent does not possesses the same qualifications as 
those required of the licensee. 

 
v. If any of the individuals who are required to be identified on 

the application, as set forth in section 3 above, have been 
convicted or found responsible for a violation of any federal, 
state, or local law involving moral turpitude, dishonesty, 
fraud, violence, controlled substances, the sale, distribution, 
or furnishing of tobacco, or the sale, distribution, or 
furnishing of alcoholic liquors. 

 
vi. If an applicant does not own the premises for which a 

Smoking Lounge License is sought or does not have a lease 
or other right of exclusive possession of the premises 
proposed for the business for the full period for which the 
license is issued. 

 
b. Requirement for the Proposed Licensed Premises.  Smoking 

Lounge License shall not be issued if there are any violation(s) of 
the applicable building, electrical, mechanical, plumbing, or fire 
prevention codes, applicable zoning regulations, or applicable 



public health regulations, unless such violation can be remedied 
within a stated period of time as determined by the Fire Department 
or Building Department.   

 
c. Location. No license shall be issued to a business located within 

500 feet (500’), from the nearest lot line to the nearest lot line, on a 
straight line basis, of a school. 

  
8. Display of Smoking Lounge License 

 
A Smoking Lounge License issued pursuant to the provisions of this Chapter 
shall be prominently displayed near the entrance of the licensed premises. 

 
9. Revocation and Suspension of a License 

 
The City Manager, or his or her designee, may immediately revoke or suspend a 
Smoking Lounge License, upon the applicant’s violation of any provisions of this 
Ordinance or for other good cause.  The procedure for the suspension and 
revocation of the license shall be governed by the provisions of Chapter 59 of 
this Code.  

 
10. Violations and Penalties 

 
Any person, firm or corporation convicted of violating any provision of this 
Chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable by a fine not to exceed 
$500 and/or 90 days in jail, as well as the penalties provided herein.  
 
Section 4. Repeal 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only 
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect. 
 
Section 5. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 



 
Section 6. Severability Clause
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 7. Effective Date
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the ________ day of ________, ________. 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

  
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  

CHAPTER 3 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 3 
of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Section 1.141 (6) of Chapter 3
 
Section 1.141 (6) is hereby amended to provide that a City of Troy Building 
Inspector shall have authority to issue and serve appearance tickets to Smoking 
Lounges if he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person has 
committed a violation of Chapter 77. 
 
Section 1.141 (6) is amended by the addition of the following: 
 

Section 1.141 (6)   A City of Troy Building Inspector shall have authority to 
issue and serve upon a person an appearance ticket, a Municipal Civil 
Infraction notice of violation and/or a Municipal Civil Infraction citation, if 
he/she has reasonable cause to believe that the person has committed a 
violation of any of the following provisions of the Troy City Code. 
 
Chapter 77: Smoking Lounges              

 
 
Section 3. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes effect are hereby saved.  Such 
proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This Ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 
repealed or amended by this Ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 
of this Ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any 
ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 



Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be 
held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date. 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or 
upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, MI, on the______day of ________,2007. 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, MMC 
      City Clerk 
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND  

CHAPTER 60 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
 

The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1. Short Title 
 
This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 60 
of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Section 60.03 – Fee Schedule of Chapter 60. 
 
Section 60.03 - Fee Schedule is hereby amended to provide a license fee and 
renewal fee for Adult Use Businesses. 
 
Section 60.03 - Fee Schedule. Is amended by the addition of the following new 
fees:    
 
 
ITEM/SERVICE:     FEE: 
 
Smoking Lounges  
 
Annual License Fee     $100.00 
 
 
Section 3. Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or 
incurred, at the time this Ordinance takes effect are hereby saved.  Such 
proceedings may be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force 
at the time such proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be 
construed to alter, affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent 
prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance specifically or impliedly 
repealed or amended by this Ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this Ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date 
of this Ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective 
date of this Ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any 
ordinance in force at the time of the commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 



Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be 
held invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this Ordinance shall 
remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or 
upon publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver Road, Troy, MI, on the______day of ________,2007. 
 
 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
      ___________________________ 
      Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 23, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
H-01



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 23, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-01



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             MARCH 12, 2007  

 Page 1 of 4 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, March 
12, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Kelsey Brunette, Student Representative 

Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
    Chris Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Christopher Stout 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Patrick C. Hall 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Hall & Ukrainec 
 
Resolution #LC2007-03-007 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Hall and Ukrainec at the 
Liquor Advisory Committee meeting of March 12, 2007 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Hall, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of February 12, 2007 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2007-03-008 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Payne 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01a



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             MARCH 12, 2007  

 Page 2 of 4 

RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the February 12, 2007 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Hall, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
 
1. ESM Inc., requests to transfer location of 2006 SDM from 219 N. Eton 

Birmingham, MI 48009, Oakland County to 164 E. Maple Troy, MI 48083 
Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ# 387930] Maple Market 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was Kimberly Madajczyk, owner 
of the business for ten years.  Over the past few years, her business has declined 
in the Birmingham location due to the changing economy.  She anticipates an 
increase in her business with this improved location.  Her market will sell beer, 
wine, lottery, grocery items, and fresh deli items.  Her staff will remain the same. 
 
Resolution #LC2007-03-009 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that ESM Inc., be allowed to transfer location of 2006 SDM from 219 
N. Eton Birmingham, MI 48009, Oakland County to 164 E. Maple Troy, MI 48083 
Oakland County.   
 
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Hall, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
 
2. Logan’s Roadhouse, Inc. (A Tennessee Corporation) requests to transfer 

all stock in 2006 Class C licensed business, located at 86 W. Fourteen Mile, 
Oakland Mall, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County, through transfer of 1000 
shares from existing stockholder, CBRL Group, Inc., to new stockholder, 
LRI Holdings, Inc. (A Delaware Corporation). [MLCC REQ# 386245] 
Logan’s Roadhouse 

 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             MARCH 12, 2007  

 Page 3 of 4 

Present to answer questions from the Committee was attorney Patrick Howe.  This 
is a stock transfer with no change in operations.  Basically, the public ownership of 
the restaurant changes to private ownership by various private equity firms.   
 
Resolution #LC2007-03-010 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that Logan’s Roadhouse, Inc. be allowed transfer all stock in 2006 
Class C licensed business, located at 86 W. Fourteen Mile, Oakland Mall, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County, through transfer of 1000 shares from existing 
stockholder, CBRL Group, Inc., to new stockholder, LRI Holdings, Inc. (A 
Delaware Corporation).  
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Hall, Ukrainec 
 
 
 
 
3. Wellington Corp., requests to transfer ownership of 2006 Class C licensed 

business from Ichibang Corporation, Inc., located at 1129 E. Long Lake, 
Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County. [MLCC REQ# 389442}  

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Leonara Ivezaj and 
Alexander Camaj.  Ms. Ivezaj has 11 years experience working for her parents at 
Wellington Pub in Sterling Heights as a manager/waitress/bartender.  This new 
establishment will be a first business venture for Ms. Ivezaj.  Her cousin, Mr. 
Camaj, will act as manager of the restaurant.  Ms. Ivezaj indicated that she is 
making only minor interior renovations and the restaurant will be open for both 
lunch and dinner.  All employees will be TIPS trained prior to opening.   
 
The inspection results have not been received from the Building Department.   
 
Resolution #LC2007-03-011 
Moved by Payne 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, that Wellington Corp. be allowed to transfer ownership of 2006 Class 
C licensed business from Ichibang Corporation, Inc., located at 1129 E. Long 
Lake, Troy, MI 48098, Oakland County.  
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Hall, Ukrainec 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL             MARCH 12, 2007  

 Page 4 of 4 

 
 
 
Mr. Forsyth stated that there were no updates from the Legal Department. 
 
Sergeant Stout stated that this would be his last meeting.  Sergeant Cantlon will 
represent the Police Department at all future Liquor Advisory Committee meetings. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



1 

TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL MARCH 20, 2007 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was held Tuesday, March 
20, 2007 at City Hall. Barbara Chambers called the meeting to order at 7:40 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT Barbara Chambers 
   Muriel Rounds 
   Paul Lin 
   Ann Partlan 
   Gary Castile 
   Nishita Parmar, Student Representative 
                        Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager            
 
    ABSENT Sabah Jihad  
    
  
Resolution #HDC-2007-03-001 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Partlan 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Jihad be excused. 
Yes: 5  Chambers, Rounds, Lin, Partlan, and Castile. 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2007-03-002 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Castile 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the February 20, 2007 meeting be approved. 
Yes: 5  Chambers, Rounds, Lin, Partlan, and Castile  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Review/comparison of Troy and Birmingham Preservation Ordinances 
The Commission was advised that the SHPO (State Historic Preservation Office) 
recently approved the City of Birmingham’s historic preservation ordinance in that 
community’s application for Certified Local Government. However, SHPO rejected Troy’s 
ordinance in its Certified Local Government application. The Commission therefore 
compared both ordinances, and prepared questions and suggestions for Allan Motzny.  
 
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



2 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Dynamic Business Associates= Tower Site No. 305516 

The Commission reviewed a request by Dynamic Environmental Associates, Inc. 
regarding impact of proposed modifications to the existing Monopole Tower at 
3838 Livernois Rd (Walsh College). This property is adjacent to the historic 
resource at 3864 Livernois (Wattles House). The Commission felt that the 
enhancements to the area around the structure would not negatively impact the 
historic resource. Paul Lin requested that Dynamic Environmental Associates be 
asked to paint the tower white and maintain the structure and fence at the base 
of the tower in brown tones. This will make the facility blend in with the 
environment and less obvious to the historic resource. Loraine Campbell will mail 
a letter with these recommendations to Dynamic Environmental Associates. 
 
 

The Troy Historic District Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:20 PM. The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, April 17, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. at City Hall in Conference 
Room C. 

 
                  
Barbara Chambers 
Chairperson 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



1 

TROY HISTORIC COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL MARCH 27, 2007 
 
The regular meeting of the Troy Historic Commission was held Tuesday, March 27, 
2007 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. Rosemary Kornacki called the meeting to 
order at 7:35 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:     Rosemary Kornacki 

Vera Milz 
Roger Kaniarz 
Terry Navratil  
Remedios Solarte 
Brian Wattles 
Janice Chen, Student Rep. 
Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 

 
  ABSENT: Kevin Lindsey 
 
 
Resolution #HDC-2007-03-001 
Moved by Navratil  
Seconded by Kaniarz 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Lindsey be excused 
Yes: 6 Kornacki, Milz, Kaniarz, Navratil, Solarte, and Wattles 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution #HDC-2007-03-002 
Moved by Navratil  
Seconded by Lindsey 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of January 23, 2007 be approved as amended 
Yes: 6 Kornacki, Milz, Kaniarz, Navratil, Solarte, and Wattles  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

    
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Capital Projects 
Roofs 
The contract to replace the cedar shake roofs on the Log Cabin, Caswell shed, 
General Store (except the porch), and the Print Shop was awarded to Ingram 
Roofing Inc. for $37,576.00. Work will be completed before June 30, 2007.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



2 

Electrical Repairs 
Following the completion of temporary repairs to the underground wiring between 
the Church and General Store, Shoreview Electric was hired to complete a load 
study for the Church. Their report states that single-phase wiring is adequate for 
the electrical needs in the building. We will now get prices to change out the 
electrical panel to single-phase to complete the repairs. Water leaks into the 
church basement through the conduit will be addressed in separate repairs later 
this spring. 
 
Wagon Shop 
Loraine received preliminary bid specs from Steve Stier to complete restoration 
of that building. She will forward these to Mark Stimac for review. 
 

B. Programs 
See Attendance Reports.  
 
Copy for the summer Troy Today will be submitted this week.  
 
Grant applications to the Michigan Council for the Humanities have been 
submitted for this summer’s Music in the Air Concerts. 
 
To date the Historical Society and Museum have received 10 car applications 
and 5 antique bicycle applications for the 2007 Motoring Memories Car Show. 
Last week application packets were mailed to 14 area car clubs. Car show 
volunteers will also distribute applications at swap meets this spring. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Grants 
We have received the final report from the MAP evaluator. 
 

B. New Acquisitions 
No reports this month. Bill Boardman is ill. 
 
We have submitted records on the stained glass windows in the Church to the 
Michigan Stained Glass Census. Copies of the report prepared by Anne Nagrant 
are available at the Museum. 
 

 
C. Troy Historical Society Liaison Report 

The City will close on the property at 100 W. Wattles Road on April 4, 2007. The 
balance due by the campaign is $162,000 plus closing costs. Total purchase 
price was $180,000. 
 
Kona Grill, a new restaurant in Troy will provide all the food and beverage for a 
Heritage Campaign fundraiser on Saturday, March 31, 2007. The Society will sell 
135 tickets at $50 each. All proceeds will go directly to the campaign. They will 



3 

also announce major gifts and a major challenge grant at the dinner. The goal is 
to secure $250,000 in gifts and pledges during the month of April. 

 
D. Reports and Communications 

a. Staff  
Tim McGee submitted his resignation in February. Two new Museum Aid 
Interpreters were hired to fill his and Michele Dunham’s vacancies. The 
new employees are Laura Bunting and Cindianne Johnson. Both will work 
20 hours/week. 
 

b. Visitors 
No report 

 
The Troy Historic Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:15 p.m.  The next regular 
meeting will be held Tuesday, June 26, 2007 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. 
This meeting will begin at 7:00 PM with an annual inspection tour of the buildings. 
 
 

 
                  
Rosemary Kornacki 
Chairperson 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES MAY 8, 2007  

 

 
TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD 

TUESDAY, MAY 8, 2007 
TROY CITY HALL - CONFERENCE ROOM C 

 
I. Call to Order 7:05 p.m. 
 
II. Roll Call: 
 

Present:  
Michelle Haight 
Kelly Jones 
Hailu Robele 
Gladson Remos 
Grigore Buia 
Mayada Fakhouri 
 Cindy Stewart, City Liaison 
 
Absent: 
Tony Haddad 
Helen Yang 
Lulu Guo 
Anju Brodbine 
Reuben Ellis 
 
Intro: 
Karen Yelder, resident of Troy, with two students at Athens High. She is on the Boys & 
Girls’ Club Board and Troy Schools Sex Education Advisory Board.  
 
 

III. Approval of Minutes – April 3, 2007 
Motion by Gladson Remos to approve the April 3, 2007 minutes, seconded by Hailu 
Robele.  Approved unanimously. 

 
 

IV. Correspondence / Articles  
“Mosque expects worship, peace” – Detroit Free Press May 2007 
“Words that divided also could help unite” – Detroit Free press May 2007 
 
Panel Discussion 
Tuesday, May 15, 2007 
“Improving Communication in Hamtramck – Overcoming the Language Barrier and the 
Political Barrier” 

 
V. New Business  

a. Report on healing Racism Workshop - Tabled to June meeting. 
  

VI. Old Business  
a. Recommendations re: Board vacancies and absences –  

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES MAY 8, 2007  

 

 
Approved 2-year term for Board Chair at April meeting.  Kelly said it is a good idea for 
prospective members to attend 1-2 meetings before Board recommends them to the 
Board.  Members agree that it should be a minimum of two meetings, so people are 
sure this is the Board they would like to serve on.  
 
Add to process for Recommendation of new E.I.A. Board Members to City Council.  
Minimum of attendance at 2 E.I.A. Board meetings.  

 
Process 
Upon confirmation of an opening on the E.I.A. Board: 

• The Advisory Board chairman will announce the opening at the next Advisory 
Board meeting. 

• The Advisory Board chairman will contact the City and request the application 
forms of individuals who have indicated an interest in becoming members of the 
E.I.A. Board.  

• The Board as a whole will review the available application forms from the City and 
other application forms that may be given to them and create a “short list” of 
possible candidates to be interviewed for recommendation. 

• Minimum of attendance at two E.I.A. Board meetings 
• Applicants must have a background or interest in promoting diversity in our 

community. 
• Applicants must be a citizen of the United States and a registered voter. 
• Applicants must live in the City of Troy. 
• Maximum of two representatives of a specific ethnic group may be on the Advisory 

Board at any one time. 
• Upon Advisory Board selection, the Advisory Board chairman will send a letter to 

the Troy City Council proposing the selected candidate. 
 

But how do we know whom to recommend to City Council? 
Input to recommend people who will volunteer to our major events.  
 
Criteria for all E.I.A. Board Members 

• Attendance at scheduled E.I.A. Board meetings. After 3 meeting absences, 
discussion with the Board member will be held regarding scheduling conflicts and 
possible Board removal.  

• Attendance is required at most major events sponsored by the Board. 
• The Board will consist of 9 (nine) members representing different ethnic groups, a 

maximum of 2 (two) student representatives, and a liaison from the City of Troy. 
 

b. Troy School District Update 
Meeting on Monday, May 14 from 2 pm - 3 pm at 4400 Livernois  
with Dr. Fowler, Tim McAvoy, Steve Matthews and representatives from E.I.A. 
(Michelle, Hailu, Anju, and Cindy) and Troy Interfaith Group (Padma Kuppa, Pastor 
Rich Peacock).  

 
 Draft Agenda  

1. Welcome & Introductions 
2. EIA & TIG Mission & Goals 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES MAY 8, 2007  

 

 
 

3. Troy School District initiatives addressing issues of diversity and inclusion 
• staff diversity training 
• student LINC project 
• Resources available to students related to diversity, inclusion, 

discrimination 
• Hiring a diverse population of staff, teachers, counselors 

4. Collaboration opportunities for Ethnic Issues Advisory Board, Troy Interfaith Group 
and the Troy School District. 

• Offering workshops related to understanding different cultures and customs 
for staff and students. 

• Teaching tolerance materials (free curriculum materials – tolerance, 
inclusion, acceptance) 

• Bridging the Racial Divide: more staff involvement. 
• Being liaison to the schools for MI Roundtable and Institute for Healing 

Racism 
• Diversity newsletter and possibility of sending it home with all elementary 

students 
• More notification from schools re: their diversity events, programs 

 
5. Upcoming Ethnic Issues Advisory Board and Troy Interfaith Group Events –  
Bridging the Racial Divide, Tuesday May 29, 2007 at Walsh College 
Ethnicity September 15 & 16 at Troy Daze. 
 
Michelle’s conversation with Tim and Steve – they are very interested and open-
minded re: diversity training.  Ethnic Issues Advisory Board and Troy Interfaith Group 
have similar goals and visions related to diversity issues, religious harmony, etc. so 
the schools wanted to meet with both groups together.  
 
Members will report back at June meeting. 
 
 

c. Troy Daze – Ethnicity 
Working on updating Resource Guide before mailing out EthniCity booth applications.  
After applications go out, Board will follow up with calls to groups.  Kelley offered to 
call groups not previously involved.  
 
Michelle will contact the foreign language clubs re: involvement.  
 
Michelle purchased musical instruments and games for an event at Barnard. They 
can be used for EthniCity for kids to play with. Instruments from Vietnam, Cameroon, 
India, Kenya, Indonesia. We can have adult volunteers work with kids in EthniCity 
tent.  
 
Michelle has a template for a booklet for kids to cut and color listing ways to say hello 
in many languages.  
 

d. Bridging the Racial Divide –  



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD FINAL MINUTES MAY 8, 2007  

 

Tuesday May 29 at Walsh College, 6-9 pm 
 
 
Michelle Height and Barb Ford are the coordinators 
 
Board members please promote this event.  
Michelle, Kelley, Cindy will attend.  
 

e. Translation of City Brochures 
 

Companies would not do this for free, but they will quote prices.  
 

VII. Public comment – Karen Yelder feels this Board is doing wonderful work. Karen met 
Michelle and Padma at the MLK event. She is excited to work with this Board.  

 
 
VIII. Adjournment  

 Motion to adjourn by Gladson Remos, seconded by Hailu Robele.  Meeting adjourned at 
 9:05 pm.     

 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Michelle Haight, EIA Chair 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT MINUTES June 5, 2007 

Call to Order 
 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:08 pm in Conference Room C at 
Troy City Hall 
 
Roll Call 
 Present:  Mayada Fakhouri  Lulu Guo, student 

Reuben Ellis  Helen Yang, student  
Grigore Buia  Tony Haddad  
Gladson Remos Cindy Stewart, Staff Liaison  

 
 Absent: Anju Brodbine 
   Kelly Jones 
   Michelle Haight 
 
 Guests: Karen Yelder 
   Sushma Shrestha    
 
 
Approval of Minutes  
 
Moved by Gladson Remos seconded by Mayada Fakhouri  
that the minutes of May 7, 2007 be approved with one change -  Mayada 
Fakhouri was not at the Troy School District meeting.  Approved unanimously. 
 
New Business 
 

a. Report on Healing Racism:  tabled until July meeting 
 

b. Report on meeting with school district: 
 

Attending the meeting with the school district were:  Michelle Haight, 
Anju Brodbine, Padma Kuppa, Rev. Rich Peacock, Jan Staton, Reema 
Butt, Tim McAvoy, Dr. Fowler, Michael Silverstein, Hailu Robele, Dr. 
Steve Matthews, Cindy Stewart and JesPal Elan.  The following topics 
were covered: 
 
Staff Diversity Training – Such training is past due in the district.  
Training will be offered in 2007-08 for new teachers and mentor 
teachers, and tenured teachers later.  Representatives from Oakland 
Schools have met with Steve Matthews.  Diversity training will be a 
required part of the new teacher orientation.  It will also be a required 
subject in staff meetings, to alleviate the need for substitute teachers.   
 
Student LINC Project – 100 kids participated in 2005-06.  The bottom 
line of the project evaluation was that it needs to be stronger.  In the 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT MINUTES June 5, 2007 

2006-07 school year, 50 students participated.  They will work with 
mentors/ombudsmen to continue the training.  Kids will create goals for 
their schools and with help from Michigan Roundtable Mentors will 
implement goals. 
 
Resources – Unstructured activities related to diversity and cultural 
awareness:  calendar/fairs (Hamilton), cultural community (Barnard) 
and clubs at the middle and high schools.  Structured activities include 
curriculum guidelines and content review.  Dr. Fowler challenged the 
community to come to schools if a book is incorrect or they have a 
problem with it.   
 
Hiring a diverse population – Very difficult, they would love for more 
people to apply for jobs.  Until a diverse staff is in place, training is 
critical. 
 
TIG – Religious holiday education and policies.  Room to review. 
 
EIA Collaboration – 
A. Diversity Training 
B. Bridging the Racial Divide 
C. Teaching Tolerance 
D. EIAB as liaison 
E. Cultural Diversity Connection newsletter 
 
How to incorporate diversity in elementary schools?  Encourage during 
“all about me” section sharing culture. 
 
Help with translations of website and brochures.  
 
Very difficult to be sure info on web is accurate. 
 
Any parent can review books at school libraries. 
 

c. Bridging the Racial Divide was tabled.  Cindy passed out comments 
from students who attended. 
 

d. Tony Haddad made a motion to change the July meeting from July 3 to 
July 10.  The motion was seconded by Reuben Ellis.  Approved 
unanimously. 

 
 
Old Business 
  

A. Recommendations regarding board vacancies and absences. 
 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT MINUTES June 5, 2007 

Gladson suggested the following policy: 
Ethnic Issues- Recommendations to be an advisor 

 
1. Must be a US citizen  

 
2. Must be a resident of Troy for a minimum period of two years 

 
3. To be an advisor to a certain ethnic group, the person should: 

a. Belong to a certain ethnic group which does not have 
more than two representatives on the board  

b. Be currently involved with activities of the ethnic group 
they are representing 

c. Preferably be someone who migrated to the US and has 
a good understanding of the ethnic group’s culture they 
are representing 

d. Have leadership qualities and be a team player 
 

4. There must be an equal number of males and females in the 
advisory group. Gender selection is necessary so views of both 
gender perspectives can be shared 

 
5. Must attend minimum two board meetings 

 
The EIA Members voted to postpone this topic to the July meeting. 
 
 
B. Update on Troy Daze – Ethnicity 
 
Applications have been mailed out and we are waiting for returns.  Need 
volunteers to call groups.  Would we charge a school group?  Board said 
no.   Board needs to commit to volunteering at the Troy Daze Ethnicity 
Tent.  Cindy will bring a schedule to the next meeting. 
 
C. Translation of Brochures 
 
Cindy Stewart is waiting for quotes to translate brochures. 

 
 
Member Comment 
 
Tony Haddad voiced a concern with students at the High School speaking 
their language at school and using it to hurt others.  Some Staff at school 
tell students they can only speak English.  Is this right?  Reuben Ellis said 
they would have a problem if staff told kids they can not speak their own 
language.  There just needs to be more diversity training.  This is a 
“freedom of speech” issue.  If students are told not to speak their own 



ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT MINUTES June 5, 2007 

language, they should go to their principal or their parents should to talk to 
the principal or Dr. Fowler.  We can bring this up the next time we meet 
with Dr. Fowler and ask about the school policy.  Cindy will call Tim 
McAvoy and ask what the school policy is regarding students speaking 
languages other than English during school. 
 
Helen will be at a summer program at Michigan State University 
researching environmental science. 
 
Lulu will be at a summer program at Harvard researching molecular 
biology pharmacology. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Karen Yelder is working with Michelle Haight dealing with Athens High 
School staff.  One essay assigned to Karen’s daughter was very 
insensitive to African Americans.  This, along with some literature they feel 
is insensitive, has been brought to the attention of Tim McAvoy and the 
Athens principals.  They’re also working on finding individuals from 
different cultures to apply as teachers.  There are five positions available 
at Athens.  Karen is finding applicants to turn into John Toma, Athens 
Principal.  The school district is serious about finding teachers from other 
cultures.  
 
Sushma Shrestha, from Nepal, is a Troy resident for nine years with sons 
in kindergarten and sixth grade. 

 
 Adjournment 
 
 Motion to adjourn by Reuben Ellis, seconded by Gladson Remos. 
 Meeting is adjourned at 8:04 pm. 
 
 Next meeting: July 10 at 7 pm. 
 
 

___________________________ 
Mayada Fakhouri, EIA Board Member 

 
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, EIA Recording Secretary 

 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final June 7, 2007 
 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Thursday, June 7, 2007, at Troy 
City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chairman McGinnis 
called the meeting to order at 7:35 AM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   

Commissioner David Cannon    
 Commissioner Patrick Daugherty (Arrived 7:37 AM) 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Peggy E. Sears, Human Resources Director 
 Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Charles Craft, Police Chief 
 William Nelson, Fire Chief     
 Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 
 Dane Slater, Police Captain 

Jeanette Menig, Human Resources Specialist 
Sergeant Robert Redmond, TCOA President 
Rodney, Bovensiep, Fire Lieutenant 
David Quaiatto, Police Officer 
Donald Mouch, Fire Lieutenant  
Keith Lenderman, Fire Lieutenant 
Paul Firth, Fire Lieutenant 
John Higgins, EMPCO, Inc. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 
a. Approval of Minutes of Wednesday, March 6, 2007  
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-006 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
the meeting of Wednesday, March 6, 2007 as presented. 
 
Yes: All-2 
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:  
 
a. Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Division Assistant Chief  
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-007 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-01f



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final June 7, 2007 
 

-2- 

RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Division Assistant Chief as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-2 
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
Commissioner Daugherty arrived at 7:37 AM. 
 
b. Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Fire Staff Technician 
 
Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director advised that the city and union are in full agreement 
in regard to the new position of Fire Staff Technician and this will now create a method to begin 
recruiting. 
 
Bill Nelson, Fire Chief gave a brief description of the newly proposed Fire Staff Technician 
position and explained how it will be integrated into the department’s hierarchy. 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-008 
Moved by Cannon  
Seconded by Daugherty 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Fire Staff Technician as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
c. Approval of Eligible List – Police Captain 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-009 
Moved by Daugherty 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the eligible list for 
Police Captain as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
 d. Approval of Eligible List – Police Lieutenant  
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-010 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final June 7, 2007 
 

-3- 

RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the eligible list for 
Police Lieutenant as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3  
 
e. Approval of Eligible List – Police Sergeant 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-011 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the eligible list for 
Police Sergeant as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
f. Revisions to Hearing Rules Article IV – Filling Vacancies, Section 3 – Initial 

Appointment and Section 4 – Promotions  
 
Peggy Sears, Human Resources Director explained that the first proposed revision is a 
housekeeping modification that strikes the “I” and “II” designations from the Police Service Aide 
position. Ms. Sears continued by stating that the second revision amends the Fire Staff 
Lieutenant position to the newly formed Fire Staff Technician position. 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-06-012 
Moved by Daugherty 
Seconded by Cannon 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the revisions to 
the hearing rules as PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-3 
 
NEW BUSINESS: None 
 
OLD BUSINESS:  None 
 
ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 7:46 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 11, 2007  

 Page 1 of 3 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, June 
11, 2007 in the Lower Level Conference Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big 
Beaver Road.  Chairman Max K. Ehlert called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Henry W. Allemon 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
    Sergeant Robert Cantlon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 

ABSENT: Patrick C. Hall 
  Kelsey Brunette, Student Representative 

Clark Yuan, Student Representative 
 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Hall 
 
Resolution #LC2007-06-012  
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee member Hall at the Liquor Advisory 
Committee meeting of June 11, 2007 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Hall 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of March 12, 2007 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2007-06-013 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Payne 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 11, 2007  

 Page 2 of 3 

RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the March 12, 2007 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be approved. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Hall 
 
 
 
There were no items on the Agenda for this meeting.  The following Informational 
Items were briefly discussed. 
 

Informational Items 
 

1. NCJ Acquisitions, Inc requests a new additional bar permit (for a total of 2 
bars) to be held in conjunction with 2006 Class C-SDM licensed business 
with dance permit and official permit (food) located at 1090 Rochester, Troy 
MI 48084, Oakland County. {MCLL Req #416254} Does not require any 
action from Committee or Council 

 
This request is from Norm’s Field of Dreams for a second bar area to be 
used during their busy hours. 
 
 

2. Mayur Indian Cuisine, Inc.  Requesting a new outdoor service area (1 
area) on 2006 Class C licensed business with official permit (food) located 
at 5113 Rochester, Troy, MI 48085, Oakland County.  {MLCC Req 
#415323} Does not require any action from Committee or Council 

 
This Is a request is waiting for final inspection approval by the Building 
Department. 

 
 
3. Rochester Road Ventures, LLC, 3946 Rochester, Troy, Oakland County, 

Request to transfer interest on 2006 Class C licensed business with 
Sunday Sales Permit and permission for sales, service, and consumption of 
alcoholic liquors outdoors (1 area), by dropping Scott Forbes as a member 
thru transfer of 30% interest to existing member, Giancarlo (John) 
Deangelis. Approved by MLCC on March 21, 2007. Subject to verification of 
all membership interest. {MLCC Req #382341}  Does not require any action 
from Committee or Council 

 
This transfer has been completed. 
 

 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JUNE 11, 2007  

 Page 3 of 3 

4. 1555 E. Maple LLC requests to transfer ownership of 2005 Class C 
licensed business with dance permit, located in escrow at 1555 E. Maple, 
Troy, Mi 48084, Oakland County, from jumbo Investment, Inc.; with license 
to be held in escrow. {MLCC req #367206}  Awaiting return of applicant 
questionnaire 

 
Applicant has not returned the questionnaire. 
 

 
5. Atlas Blue Sky, Inc. requests to transfer ownership 2007 SDD and SDM 

licensed business located at 36949 Dequindre, Troy, Mi 48084, Oakland 
County, from MJMN, Inc. {MLCC req #417140}  Awaiting return of applicant 
questionnaire 

 
Applicant has not returned the questionnaire. 
 

 
 
There was a brief discussion about the recent sale to minor violations issued to 
Nino Salvaggio’s, CVS, and Macy’s. 
 
The Committee congratulates student representative Kelsey Brunette on her 
graduation from Athens High School, extends their best wishes for her future 
endeavors, and thanks her for serving on the Liquor Advisory Committee. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                   JUNE 13, 2007 

 1

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the Special Meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:34 A.M. on Wednesday, June 13, 2007 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Tim Richnak 
   Dave Roberts 
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Mitch Grusnick, Residential Plan Analyst 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JUNE 6, 2007 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Zuazo 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of June 6, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  JOSEPH KYRIAKOZA, 3617 SANDBURG, for 
relief of Chapter 83 to install a fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 
fence.  This property is a double front corner lot.  It has front yard setback requirements 
along both Sandburg and Stonetree.  Chapter 83 limits the height of fences in front 
setbacks on this property to 30”.  The site plan submitted indicates a 4’ high non-
obscuring fence setback 7’ and parallel to the property line along Stonetree. 
 
Mr. Joe Kyriakoza was present and stated that there are large trees and landscaping in 
place, which would prohibit them from putting this fence in another location.  The current 
fence is right across the front part of the lot and is in a state of disrepair.  Mr. Kyriakoza 
said that they are concerned about the traffic along Stonetree and neighborhood dogs 
coming into the yard. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked for clarification of why the plans submitted indicated that the fence 
was 8’ from the sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the property line is 1’ from the sidewalk; therefore the 
proposed fence would actually be 7’ from the petitioner’s property line. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                   JUNE 13, 2007 

 2

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the fence was going to be angled up near the house. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza stated that it would be straight and they were planning to put in a gate in 
this location. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Phyllis Slattery, 1235 Stonetree was present and stated that she has lived on this street 
for 30 years.  The previous family had a 30” high fence and five children and never had 
a problem.  This property backs up to 4 acres of woods and she is upset about the 
aesthetics involved with putting up this fence.  The neighbors have always wanted the 
area to be open.  Ms. Slattery also said that the dogs in the neighborhood are very well 
behaved and does not believe they would be a problem for the petitioner. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that he more concerned about the traffic speeding down Stonetree, 
and is worried that a ball could easily be thrown over a 30” high fence. 
 
Ms. Slattery said that she believes the 30” fence would prevent the children from 
running into the street and does not like the design of the fence.  Ms. Slattery said that 
she speaks for the other neighbors and they are concerned about this fence having 
points at the top rail. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza explained that there are no sharp points along the top of the fence.  The 
fence is vinyl and the caps on the top of the fence are vinyl. 
 
Ms. Slattery said that she is opposed to the height of this proposed fence. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written approval and one written objection on file. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what height this proposed fence comes in. 
 
Mr. Kyriakoza said that it comes in 30”, 36” and 48” heights.  Although the fence 
appears to be wrought iron, it is actually a vinyl fence. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the petitioner could put up a 6’ high fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that if the fence was not in the front yard, the petitioner could in 
fact put up a 6’ high privacy fence. 
 
Motion by Kessler 
Supported by Richnak 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                                   JUNE 13, 2007 

 3

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
 
MOVED, to grant Joseph Kyriakoza, 3617 Sandburg, relief of Chapter 83 to install a 4’ 
high non-obscuring fence setback 7’ and parallel to the property line along Stonetree. 
 

• Small shrubs, such as Hostas, will be planted approximately 8’ to 10’ apart 
along the south side of fence line to minimize the look of the fence. 

• 4’ high fence will help to provide security for Mr. Kyriakoza’s children. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeal meeting adjourned at 8:55 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-01i





BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              JUNE 19, 2007 

 1

The Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, June 19, 2007 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Michael W. Bartnik 

Glenn Clark    
Kenneth Courtney 
Marcia Gies 
Matthew Kovacs 
Mark Maxwell 
Wayne Wright 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
  Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
  Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF MAY 15, 2007 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of May 15, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas: 6 – Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Clark, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 - Bartnik 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE RENEWAL.  MNAD PROPERTY II LLC, 3236 ROCHESTER 
ROAD, for relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the south property 
line where non-residential property abuts residential zoning. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief of a six-foot high 
screening wall required by Section 39.10.01 along the south property line where the 
property abuts residentially zoned land.  The variance was originally granted in 1968 
and annually renewed for a number of years.  In 1994 it was reported to the Board of 
Zoning Appeals that the variance was no longer necessary.  A review of the records 
indicates that was not the case.  The petitioner is asking that the original variance be 
renewed on the property.       
 
Mr. Stimac further explained that in 1963 this property was zoned R-1D (Single Family 
Residential).  In October 1967, Council passed a re-zoning request and re-zoned the 
western portion of this property to B-2.  At the time of re-zoning it was still used as a 
single family residence.  In 1968 the owner of the property petitioned to convert this 
property from a single family residence to an office building.  As part of the conversion 
the screen wall requirement was imposed.  At that time the petitioner applied to the 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              JUNE 19, 2007 

 2

 
ITEM #2 – con’t. 
Board of Zoning Appeals for relief of the screen wall.  That relief was granted in 1968 
and annually renewed for a number of years.  In 1994 the eastern residential portion of 
the property was sold off and developed as a single family residential subdivision and a 
screen wall was constructed at the eastern boundary of the B-2 Zoning.  At that time it 
was reported to the Board that a variance was no longer required.   However, the south 
property line still abuts to residential zoning and there has been no action taken on that 
portion of the property.  A 6’ high screen wall would be required along approximately the 
eastern 105’ of the south property line.   
 
Because this request is different from a regular variance renewal, a Public Hearing has 
been published and notices sent to surrounding property owners to inform them that a 
variance is required. 
 
Mr. Maged Michail, the owner of the property was present and stated that he believes 
the variance should be continued.  There is an existing screen wall along the east side 
of the property and a fence along one-third of the property on the south side.  There is 
also existing landscaping along the property line. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Karen and Mike Walzak, 1031 Boyd were present.   Ms. Walzak stated that the trees 
have been cut down and the area has not been taken care of.  Ms. Walzak said that she 
would like to see something put up in this area. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked what type of screening she would like in this area. 
 
Ms. Walzak stated that she would like to see something permanent put up as people cut 
through her property. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if she would like a wall. 
 
Ms. Walzak said that she would like to see a screening wall put up. 
 
Mr. Clark asked if Ms. Walzak would be opposed to the Board granting renewal of this 
variance. 
 
Ms. Walzak said that she would be opposed to a variance without a wall. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if she was the owner of the property. 
 
Ms. Walzak said that she has lived here for twenty (20) years and does own the 
property. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              JUNE 19, 2007 

 3

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Michail said that he has owned this property since October and the landscaper cut 
the bushes and trees too much.  He would be more than willing to re-install the 
landscaping to make Ms. Walzak happy.  Mr. Michail went on to say that he owns the 
property running along Rochester Road to the south and at one time the City had trucks 
from the Engineering Department parked on the site.  Relief of the screening wall was 
granted between 1968 and 1994 and he would like to see this relief continued. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that the City requires some type of screening between a business 
and residential property.  They can grant relief of a variance that will run between one 
and three years.  Mr. Maxwell stated that he would like the opportunity to go and view 
this property again. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked Ms. Walzak if she thought they could come to an equitable 
agreement with the property owner. 
 
Ms. Walzak said that she wants a wall separating the properties. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked if Ms. Walzak owned the property to the south of this site. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that Ms. Walzak’s property was to the south of this site.  Mr. Stimac 
also stated that the Rochester Road frontage property to the south did have a building 
on it and as part of the development of that property was required to have a screening 
wall constructed.  When Rochester Road was widened the City bought the property and 
tore the building down.  As a vacant site, the wall was no longer required but remained 
until it fell down on a wind storm in 2003.  Although no separation was required, the City 
agreed to put in a wooden fence.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if the Board could require a screening wall. 
 
Ms. Stimac said that according to the Ordinance a 6’ high masonry screen wall is 
required.  The Board can grant renewal of relief of this requirement.  The Board can 
also deny this request and require construction of a masonry wall or the Board could 
require the petitioner to put up a berm or landscaping in lieu of the wall.   
 
Mr. Stimac also said that in making that determination the Board can consider the 
current and future use of the adjacent property.  Mr. Stimac did not have a written 
document from the Planning Director regarding this adjacent property.  However, the 
Future Land Use Plan of the area shows that the Rochester Road frontage is planned 
for retail commercial use.  At the current depth of the zoning, the corner of Rochester 
and Boyd is not large enough to build anything.   
 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              JUNE 19, 2007 

 4

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that in his opinion a masonry-screening wall would be out of place 
and he would like to see the fence extended.  A fence would keep people from 
trespassing onto the Walzak’s property and would solve the property. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to postpone the request of MNAD Property II LLC, 3236 Rochester Road, for 
relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the south property line where 
non-residential property abuts residential zoning until the meeting of July 17, 2007. 
 

• To allow Board members to look at property in question. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL JULY 17, 2007 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  RANDALL A. WHINNERY, 2078 TUSCANY, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of an existing residence that 
will result in a 29’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum 
rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that he received a letter from the petitioner asking that this request 
be withdrawn. 
 
Mr. Maxwell stated that this item had been postponed to allow the petitioner the 
opportunity to determine if there was any way to decrease the size of the original 
variance request.  The petitioner did not respond to the request of the Board. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to accept the withdrawal request of Randall A. Whinnery, 2078 Tuscany, for 
relief of the Ordinance to construct an addition on the rear of an existing residence that 
will result in a 29’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.05 requires a 40’ minimum 
rear yard setback in R-1D Zoning Districts. 
 

• At the request of the petitioner. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO ACCEPT WITHDRAWAL CARRIED 
 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              JUNE 19, 2007 

 5

ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. MICHAEL LARCH, 91 BILTMORE, 
for relief of the Zoning Ordinance to construct a detached garage that will result in a 3’ 
setback from the west property line. 

 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a detached garage.  The site plan submitted indicates the construction of a detached 
garage with a setback of 3’ from the west property line.  Section 40.56.02 (D) requires a 
6’ minimum setback to any side or rear property line. 
 
Mr. Bartnik asked what the distance from the property lines of the homes to the west 
were.   
 
Mr. Stimac said that he thought the setback of the duplex at 103-105 Biltmore appeared 
to be about 10’.  He also thought that the house at 81 Biltmore was approximately 16’ to 
the property line and the garage appears to be between 3’ and 5’. 
 
Mr. David Calcaterra, of Miller Garages, representing Mr. & Mrs. Larch was present.  
Mr. Calcaterra said that this is a very narrow lot and the 3’ difference would make a 
large difference in the area of the yard they would be able to utilize.  Mr. Calcaterra also 
said that they would be willing to put in a firewall on the side of the garage that is next to 
the fence. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if this was the usual setback for detached garages in other Cities. 
 
Mr. Calcaterra said because the lot is so narrow, this is what they had proposed. 
 
Mr. Courtney said that he did not have a problem with the 3’ side yard setback. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written approvals on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he thought that most of the garages in this area are closer to the 
side yards than 6’. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Mr. & Mrs. Michael Larch, 91 Biltmore, relief of the Zoning Ordinance 
to construct a detached garage that will result in a 3’ setback from the west property 
line. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• This lot is a very narrow lot. 

 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                              JUNE 19, 2007 

 6

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 

• Literal enforcement of the Ordinance would preclude full enjoyment and would 
be unnecessarily burdensome. 

• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that he has seen a number of structures available at retail stores that 
would be construed as gazebos and asked if the City would allow them. 
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the placement of these structures would still have to comply with 
the setback requirements of permanent structures.  Mr. Stimac also stated that he has 
attempted to determine whether or not these structures would be able to withstand wind 
or a snow loads.  He has been unable to get any of this information from the 
manufacturers and would be concerned, that although they are heavy, they may not be 
able to withstand a strong wind. 
 
Mr. Kovacs asked if the City would approve them. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that as long as they met the Ordinance requirements they would be 
approved. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 8:11 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
              
      Mark Maxwell, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 26, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on June 26, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Thomas Strat 
Mary Kerwin Mark J. Vleck 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-108 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Strat and Vleck are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-109 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 26, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-110 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 5, 2007 Special/Study meeting and June 12, 
2007 Regular meeting minutes as published.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
BZA Representative Wright presented a brief report on the June 19, 2007 meeting. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported that there was no DDA meeting in June. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items that were approved by City Council: 
 

o DDA Plan #6 
o Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, 11 units/lots proposed, South Side of 

Big Beaver Road, East of Adams, Section 30, Zoned R-1C (One Family 
Residential) District – Preliminary Site Condominium Approval  

o Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – Articles IV 
and XXII – Adult Business Uses 

o Village of Big Beaver Planned Unit Development (PUD-7) - Final Approval 
o Rezoning Request (Z 722) - Retail Development, Northwest Corner of Maple 

Road and Thorncroft, Section 29 - From R-C (Research Center) to B-3 
(General Business) District 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 26, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Miller reported on the Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT) 
Workshop held on June 21, 2007, as part of the public input efforts for the Master 
Plan. 

 
POSTPONED ITEM 

 
8. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 351) – Proposed Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant, 

Southwest corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge, Section 30, Zoned O-S-C (Office-
Service-Commercial) District 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the changes made to the site plan since the June 12, 2007 
Regular meeting. 
 
Larry Nemer, 4559 Raune Drive, Bloomfield Hills, described the project. 
 
Mark Knauer, Project Architect, Knauer, Inc., 720 N. Waukegan Road, Deerfield, IL, 
described the project and presented building materials. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-111 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required parking spaces to 2,871 when a total of 3,228 spaces are 
required on the site based on the off-street parking space requirements for offices 
and restaurants, as per Article XL.  This 357 space reduction meets the standards 
of Article 40.20.12 given the parking demands of the restaurant and office 
complex. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 26.30.05 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested 
for the proposed Ocean Club Restaurant, located on the southwest corner of Big 
Beaver and Coolidge, in Section 30, within the O-S-C zoning district, is hereby 
granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Kerwin noted that the applicant was very responsive and did a great job 
addressing Planning Commission concerns. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 26, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented this item. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
The Planning Commission was unable to reach consensus on screening 
requirements.  After much discussion, the Planning Commission agreed that 
commercial vehicles needed to be parked indoors in an attached garage or 
detached accessory structure. 
 
Mr. Miller stated the Planning Department would have a draft ready for the July 24, 
2007 Special/Study meeting.  
 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 230) – Freestanding Tower 
Structures and Antennas in Parks and on School Property 
 
Mr. Savidant presented this item.  The text amendment would permit freestanding 
towers and antennas on public school and City park sites in the R-1A through R-1E 
and C-F zoning districts.  Additionally, it would reduce the required setback from five 
(5) times the height of the tower to two (2) times the height of the tower. 
 
General discussion followed.   
 
There is a public hearing scheduled for the July 10, 2007 Regular meeting. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There was general discussion about the SGRAT Workshop held on June 21, 2007.  
Those who attended the workshop thanked Mr. Miller for a well-planned event. 
 
Ms. Kerwin expressed concern about drop-off boxes for clothes that seem to be 
appearing in increasing numbers throughout the City. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT JUNE 26, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\06-26-07 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 26, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on June 26, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Thomas Strat 
Mary Kerwin Mark J. Vleck 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-108 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Strat and Vleck are excused from attendance at this 
meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-109 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 26, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-110 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 5, 2007 Special/Study meeting and June 12, 
2007 Regular meeting minutes as published.   
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
BZA Representative Wright presented a brief report on the June 19, 2007 meeting. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported that there was no DDA meeting in June. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller reported on the following items that were approved by City Council: 
 

o DDA Plan #6 
o Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, 11 units/lots proposed, South Side of 

Big Beaver Road, East of Adams, Section 30, Zoned R-1C (One Family 
Residential) District – Preliminary Site Condominium Approval  

o Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 207) – Articles IV 
and XXII – Adult Business Uses 

o Village of Big Beaver Planned Unit Development (PUD-7) - Final Approval 
o Rezoning Request (Z 722) - Retail Development, Northwest Corner of Maple 

Road and Thorncroft, Section 29 - From R-C (Research Center) to B-3 
(General Business) District 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 26, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

Mr. Miller reported on the Smart Growth Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT) 
Workshop held on June 21, 2007, as part of the public input efforts for the Master 
Plan. 

 
POSTPONED ITEM 

 
8. SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 351) – Proposed Mitchell’s Ocean Club Restaurant, 

Southwest corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge, Section 30, Zoned O-S-C (Office-
Service-Commercial) District 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the changes made to the site plan since the June 12, 2007 
Regular meeting. 
 
Larry Nemer, 4559 Raune Drive, Bloomfield Hills, described the project. 
 
Mark Knauer, Project Architect, Knauer, Inc., 720 N. Waukegan Road, Deerfield, IL, 
described the project and presented building materials. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-06-111 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in the 
total number of required parking spaces to 2,871 when a total of 3,228 spaces are 
required on the site based on the off-street parking space requirements for offices 
and restaurants, as per Article XL.  This 357 space reduction meets the standards 
of Article 40.20.12 given the parking demands of the restaurant and office 
complex. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 26.30.05 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested 
for the proposed Ocean Club Restaurant, located on the southwest corner of Big 
Beaver and Coolidge, in Section 30, within the O-S-C zoning district, is hereby 
granted. 
 
Yes: All present (7) 
No: None 
Absent: Strat, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Ms. Kerwin noted that the applicant was very responsive and did a great job 
addressing Planning Commission concerns. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 26, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

STUDY ITEMS 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Savidant presented this item. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
The Planning Commission was unable to reach consensus on screening 
requirements.  After much discussion, the Planning Commission agreed that 
commercial vehicles needed to be parked indoors in an attached garage or 
detached accessory structure. 
 
Mr. Miller stated the Planning Department would have a draft ready for the July 24, 
2007 Special/Study meeting.  
 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 230) – Freestanding Tower 
Structures and Antennas in Parks and on School Property 
 
Mr. Savidant presented this item.  The text amendment would permit freestanding 
towers and antennas on public school and City park sites in the R-1A through R-1E 
and C-F zoning districts.  Additionally, it would reduce the required setback from five 
(5) times the height of the tower to two (2) times the height of the tower. 
 
General discussion followed.   
 
There is a public hearing scheduled for the July 10, 2007 Regular meeting. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There was general discussion about the SGRAT Workshop held on June 21, 2007.  
Those who attended the workshop thanked Mr. Miller for a well-planned event. 
 
Ms. Kerwin expressed concern about drop-off boxes for clothes that seem to be 
appearing in increasing numbers throughout the City. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL JUNE 26, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 9:15 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\06-26-07 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on July 10, 2007, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Wayne Wright 
Mary Kerwin 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Richard Carlisle, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-113 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Wright is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
It was requested by Chair Schultz and the Planning Department staff to add the Troy 
Master Plan Progress Report to the Agenda, as item 4.b. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-114 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To add Agenda item 4.b., Troy Master Plan Progress Report. 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES 

 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-115 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the June 26, 2007 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

4.b. TROY MASTER PLAN PROGRESS REPORT 
 
Richard Carlisle of Carlisle/Wortman Associates reviewed the Smart Growth 
Readiness Assessment Tool (SGRAT) and Master Plan update.  
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 727) – Proposed Office Use, West 
side of Rochester Road, South of DeEtta (6493 Rochester Road), Section 3 – From 
R-1 B (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning request.  Mr. Miller reported that although the application is not consistent 
with the intent of the Future Land Use Plan, it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the rezoning application.  He reported that the request is 
consistent with the general character of the area and compatible with adjacent 
zoning districts and land uses.  Mr. Miller indicated it is bad planning to leave the 
single family residential parcel to the north, but noted the Planning Commission 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

conducted themselves reasonably by requesting the petitioner to assemble that 
piece of property.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked what would be required of the petitioner to bring the property in 
compliance with the O-1 office zoning district.   
 
Mr. Miller said the petitioner would be required to go through site plan approval 
because the office use has not been approved for that site.  
 
Mr. Vleck addressed site improvements that would be required in relation to quality 
and long-term development.  Mr. Vleck asked if the City could initiate a rezoning on 
the property to the north.   
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed the City could initiate a rezoning for any property.  She 
indicated City Council could rezone the parcel by going through the appropriate 
approval process.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the existing property owner would be allowed to continue as 
residential.   
 
Mr. Miller said the use would be allowed to continue and the property would be 
considered a true nonconforming use.  He noted the site would lose its 
nonconforming status should it be abandoned as a single family use.  Mr. Miller said 
the greater issue for the property to the north is that it would be very unlikely that it 
could be developed as office.   
 
Mr. Vleck asked if the subject property could continue its operation as it exists, 
without site improvements, should it be rezoned to O-1.   
 
Mr. Miller replied that technically the use has not been approved for the subject 
property and is not permitted in that zoning district.  He said the owner would have 
to show good faith in moving forward with site plan approval to have an office at that 
location. 
 
The owner, Robin Siegel of 283 W. Square Lake Road, Troy, was present.  Ms. 
Siegel addressed the existing screening to the west along the residential area.   
 
Chair Schultz explained different screening requirements would have to be met 
should the site be zoned office.  He informed the petitioner that should the rezoning 
go forward, the site would have to be redeveloped as an office and go through the 
site plan approval process. 
 
Ms. Siegel said they would be more than happy to do that and would make every 
effort to fully comply with all zoning ordinance requirements.  She confirmed that the 
site is currently being used as office only.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
There was discussion on the screen wall requirements for O-1 zoning.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he is not 100% comfortable with the proposed rezoning.  He 
addressed the petitioner’s attempt to consolidate the property to the north, the cost 
involved for site improvements that would be required for office, its relation to the 
Rochester Road corridor, and the developable status of the residential property to 
the north.  Mr. Vleck said a conditional rezoning might be a favorable option. 
 
Mr. Littman addressed the small size of the subject parcel should it be developed as 
office.  He said it might very well be a problem for both the petitioner and the City.   
 
Mr. Vleck said the property to the north would be less developable and less 
desirable should the subject property be rezoned and the required screen wall is in 
place.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked if a screen wall is required between the property to the south 
[Binson’s] and the subject property.   
 
Mr. Miller replied a screen wall is required unless the property to the south 
[Binson’s] receives a waiver from the Board of Zoning Appeals.   
 
Chair Schultz said he would like to see a potential conditional rezoning application 
submitted on the subject property to see how it might be developed as office.   
 
Mr. Vleck said he would consider the rezoning request further if there was some 
collaboration between Binson’s and the subject property for a cross access 
easement.   
 
Messrs. Hutson and Littman addressed the option of a conditional rezoning 
application. 
 
Mr. Strat said he would not support the rezoning request because there is potential 
the existing house could become a legal nonconforming use automatically.  He said 
the property to the north would remain an orphan parcel until the owner decides to 
sell or consolidate.  Mr. Strat said he would be supportive of a conditional rezoning 
should the petitioner be willing. 
 
Mr. Vleck said his preference would be for the City to initiate a rezoning request for 
the property to the north.  He questioned the time frame for the City to initiate such 
a request.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Miller said public hearings could be scheduled next month for both the Planning 
Commission and City Council, should the Planning Commission make a resolution 
tonight to initiate a rezoning.   
 
Ms. Troshynski indicated she would not be in favor of the general rezoning request 
because of its affect on the neighborhood.   
 
Mr. Littman said, as a policy, he is not in favor of City initiated rezoning requests 
especially in cases where the owner is not in support.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-116 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester, south of DeEtta, within Section 3, being approximately 15,600 square 
feet in size, be denied, due to problems in how the site might develop.   
 
Yes: Hutson, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski 
No: Kerwin, Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Vleck said he is not necessarily in favor of the rezoning request, but he would 
like to see the petitioner pursue other options to develop the property.  He said 
there could be potential for a desirable development if the petitioner collaborates 
with the Binson’s development.  Mr. Vleck addressed his position for a City-initiated 
rezoning on the property to the north.   
 
Ms. Kerwin said she would have preferred a motion to postpone.  She indicated she 
might have voted in favor of denial if the motion had stipulated denial was based on 
non-compliance with the Future Land Use Plan.   
 
Chair Schultz advised the public of the approval process for rezoning requests at 
the City Council level.  He indicated to the petitioner that the Planning Department 
would be the resource on conditional rezoning applications.   
 
A brief discussion followed on the procedure for City-initiated rezoning requests.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

6. PUBLIC HEARING – REZONING REQUEST (Z 199-B) – Proposed Retail 
Development, West side of Dequindre, North of Square Lake (43109 Dequindre 
Road), Section 1 – From R-1D (One Family Residential) to B-1 (Local Business) 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the proposed 
rezoning request, and reported it is the recommendation of City Management to 
deny the rezoning application.  Mr. Miller said the request is inconsistent with the 
Future Land Use Plan.  He noted the application states they want to combine with 
the subject piece of property, but there is no legal documentation indicating that 
would occur, or no ability to insure that would happen with submission of a general 
rezoning request.  
 
The petitioner, Steve Haisha of LBC Property Investments, 154 S. Old Woodward, 
Birmingham, was present.  Mr. Haisha agrees that it would be optimal to collaborate 
the development of both the corner parcel and the subject property.  He said both 
parcels of property are under contract to purchase and offered to provide 
documentation to such, as he did also at the time of the application submission.  Mr. 
Haisha offered to submit site plans for the subject parcel alone and the two parcels 
combined.  
 
There was a brief discussion on the City’s policy whether consideration can be 
given to a site plan that is submitted concurrently with a rezoning request.   
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed it is City policy to not give consideration to site plans at the 
time a rezoning request is considered.  She indicated the Future Land Use Plan as 
well as the uses of surrounding areas should be considered for a rezoning request 
because a rezoning runs with the land and anything that is eligible to be placed on 
that once it is rezoned can be placed on it no matter what the petitioner says. 
 
Mr. Strat said the petitioner should have considered the parcel combination 
simultaneously or at least provided proof of ownership of both properties.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the required screening between the B-1 zoning and the 
residential, of which five houses directly abut the subject property.  He said 
regardless if one property or both properties are developed, he would not support 
the rezoning request because of its affects on the surrounding residential 
properties.   
 
Ms. Kerwin said she would not support the rezoning request as presented tonight, 
but would welcome a conditional rezoning on the subject parcel.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked the petitioner for clarification on the options to purchase, or 
ownership, of the parcels.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Mr. Haisha replied that he has under contract an option to purchase both properties.  
He indicated the owners of both properties are present at tonight’s meeting.  Mr. 
Haisha said he was informed by the Planning Department that signatures of the 
property owners on the rezoning application were sufficient, and that documentation 
relating to purchase options was not required at the time of submission.  He 
indicated he would be happy to receive a conditional approval tonight, or postpone 
the item until appropriate documentation is submitted.  Mr. Haisha has not met with 
the neighbors, to date, but indicated he would work with the neighbors and provide 
additional screening above and beyond zoning ordinance requirements.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Thomas Dombrowski of 2900 Briarwood Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. Dombrowski 
spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  He addressed concerns 
relating to health, safety, home values and aesthetics.  Mr. Dombrowski offered to 
submit copies of a protest petition in opposition of the rezoning request.  He said the 
original protest petition would be submitted to City Council prior to their meeting and 
public hearing on the request.  Mr. Dombrowski clarified that he is not an official 
representative of the homeowners association, but is the contact person on the 
protest petition.   
 
Prabhakar Vallury of 2878 Briarwood, Troy, was present.  Mr. Vallury spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning request, and indicated agreement with 
comments given by Mr. Dombrowski.   
 
Ritika Undemane of 2892 Briarwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Undemane 
spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  She addressed concern for 
the small children in the neighborhood, and indicated agreement with comments 
given by Mr. Dombrowski.   
 
Ramesh Subramoniam of 2916 Briarwood Court, Troy, was present.  Mr. 
Subramoniam spoke in opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  He addressed 
the potential negative impacts a business would have on the subdivision, and 
indicated agreement with comments given by Mr. Dombrowski.   
 
Branka Lei of 2936 Briarwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Lei spoke in opposition 
of the proposed rezoning request.  She addressed the history of the subdivision and 
layout of the homes as relates to the proposed request.   
 
Robert Cantlon of 2864 Briarwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Cantlon spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning request.  He addressed the six homes that 
would be directly affected by the proposed rezoning.  He said it was understood by 
the homeowners at the time they purchased their homes that the subject parcel 
would be residential.   
 
Lisa Havlish of 2875 Briarwood Drive, Troy, was present.  Ms. Havlish, secretary to 
the homeowners association, supports the comments given by Mr. Dombrowski.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Nihaia Savaya of 2924 Briarwood Court, Troy, was present.  Ms. Savaya, whose 
property directly abuts the subject property, spoke in opposition of the proposed 
rezoning.  She supports the comments given by Mr. Dombrowski and indicated she 
signed the protest petition.   
 
Paula Mather of 2908 Briarwood Court, Troy, was present.  Ms. Mather spoke in 
opposition of the proposed rezoning.  She addressed concerns relating to traffic, 
safety and home values.  Ms. Mather said it was understood at the time they 
purchased their home that the subject property would be residential.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Schultz stated that property owners have the legal right to request a rezoning 
at any time, and the City must go through the mechanism to review the request.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-117 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council denial of the rezoning request from R-1D to B-1, located on the west side of 
Dequindre, north of Square Lake, within Section 1, being approximately 0.810 acres 
in size, because it does not comply with the Future Land use Plan and would have 
negative affects on the neighboring properties.   
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Tagle, Troshynski, Vleck 
No: Hutson, Schultz, Strat 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Strat said he would like to see the petitioner have an opportunity to consolidate 
the properties.   
 
Mr. Hutson said he would like to see a conditional rezoning and consolidation of the 
properties.  He thinks the fears expressed by the neighbors tonight might be allayed 
with a conditional rezoning.   
 
Chair Schultz echoed the comments of Messrs. Strat and Hutson.   
 
There was a brief discussion on conditional rezoning applications.   
 
Chair Schultz advised the public of the approval process for rezoning requests at 
the City Council level.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUESTS 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 352) – Proposed Self Storage 
Facility, South side of Maple, East of Axtell Road (2545 W. Maple), Section 32, 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use and site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the special use request and site plan as submitted.   
 
The petitioner, Joseph Guido of Guido Architects, 23419 Ford Road, Dearborn, was 
present.  Mr. Guido said the request is a good reuse of the property and would 
make a good impact on the City.   
 
Mr. Tagle asked what hours the facility would be open. 
 
Mr. Guido based the hours of operation on the existing Oak Park facility, and 
surmised the facility would be open from 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. 
 
Ms. Troshynski commended the petitioner on an excellent presentation.  She 
addressed the building materials and landscaping techniques.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Schultz said he understands that the petitioner is in compliance of the City’s 
sign ordinance, but he feels the five to six foot tall letters across the top of a building 
detracts from the building’s appearance.   
 
Ms. Troshynski asked if there were future plans for the undeveloped area on the 
site plan, and for clarification on the fencing.   
 
Mr. Guido said there are no plans to develop that area, but assured members that 
the area would be well maintained.  He explained the parcel was larger than what 
was required for the operation.  Mr. Guido said the decorative rod iron fence would 
be visible to the street, and a black vinyl coated chain link fence would be used 
along the rest of the building.  
 
Mr. Vleck brought to the attention of the petitioner that the site would be a good 
potential to store outdoor commercial vehicles.   
 
Mr. Guido said that option has been considered.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Ms. Kerwin said the City is appreciative of the amount of trees saved on this 
development, and to bear that in mind before providing storage for commercial 
vehicles.  
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-118 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 28.30.02 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed Self Storage Facility, located on the south side of Maple, east of Axtell 
Road, in Section 32, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU 264-B) – Outdoor Storage at 
Existing Industrial Building, West side of Barrett, North of Maple (1945 Barrett), 
Section 28, Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
proposed special use and site plan, and reported it is the recommendation of City 
Management to approve the special use and site plan as submitted.   
 
Scott Ringler of Giffels Webster Engineers, 2871 Bond Street, Rochester Hills, was 
present to represent the petitioner.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-119 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 28.30.04 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the Outdoor 
Storage at an Existing Industrial Building, located on the west side of Barrett, north 
of Maple, in Section 28, within the M-1 zoning district, is hereby granted. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 230) – Freestanding Tower 
Structures and Antennas in Parks and on School Property 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the revisions made to the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment relating to wireless communication towers on school property and City 
park sites.   
 
A brief discussion followed.   
 
Ms. Lancaster cited unpublished case law that prompted the proposed ordinance text 
amendment.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-07-120 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Article X (R-IA THROUGH R-1E ONE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICTS) pertaining to permitting freestanding tower structures and antennas in 
parks and on school property subject to Special Use Approval, and Article XVIII (C-
F COMMUNITY FACILITIES), pertaining to permitting freestanding tower structures 
and antennas in parks and on school property subject to Special Conditions, be 
amended as printed on the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Tagle, Troshynski 
No: Vleck 
Absent: Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

Mr. Vleck supports the ordinance amendment but would prefer the fall zone to be 
five times the height of the structure.  He believes a bigger fall zone would give the 
City a stronger public stance should there be objections to a proposed structure. 
 
Ms. Kerwin said the text amendment would be helpful and is responsive to many 
objections voiced by the residents.  
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed that requests for freestanding tower structures in parks or 
on school property would be required to go through the special use approval 
process.   
 
Chair Schultz stated that City Council would have final action on the proposed 
zoning ordinance text amendment. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Ms. Lancaster announced a recent court decision relating to Telly’s Greenhouse.  
 
Mr. Miller said time limits would be set for several lofty agenda items in the future. 
 
Ms. Kerwin asked the Chair to share closing comments he made at the 
special/study meeting held prior to tonight’s meeting.  She addressed the method in 
which the special/study meeting was conducted, and would prefer that the Planning 
Consultant launch into discussion of agenda items with less lead-in time.   
 
Mr. Vleck addressed the enforcement of dumpsters placed throughout the City for 
the collection of clothing.  
 
Ms. Lancaster confirmed that clothing collection dumpsters are violations of the 
zoning ordinance.  She said priority of enforcement on zoning code violations have 
been addressed by the Building Department and City Council.  Ms. Lancaster said 
she would address the item further with the Director of Building and Zoning and 
forward information to the members.  
 
Mr. Vleck said it takes little effort for the City to initiate a letter to inform a specific 
organization that it is in violation of a City ordinance. 
 
Mr. Littman complimented a student in the audience for her dedication in staying 
until the end of tonight’s meeting.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT JULY 10, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 13 - 
 

Chair Schultz addressed:  1) City Council’s position on enforcement of zoning code 
violations; 2) new projection screens in Council Chambers; 3) room temperature of 
Council Chambers; and 4) time limits on agenda items.  
 
Further, Chair Schultz said in discussions with City staff, the Planning Consultant, 
Assistant City Manager Brian Murphy and City Manager Phil Nelson, he has 
addressed the intent of the Planning Commission and City staff to do everything in 
their power to move development and redevelopment processes forward.  Chair 
Schultz said the City is at a crucial point in its life cycle, and realize that 
redevelopment must happen.  The Planning Commission does not want to stand as 
a hindrance or impediment to developers who come forward and are willing to 
spend money on redevelopment and improvements to the City.  Chair Schultz said 
the Planning Commission and staff would work with everyone and every petitioner 
to address items in the most expeditious fashion as possible. 
 
Mr. Miller announced that the City has contracted with Zucker Systems to conduct 
an analysis of the City’s development approval process.  He addressed the 
members’ involvement in the process, and encouraged them to check out the firm’s 
website.   
 
Chair Schultz applauded the City Manager for his commitment in the development 
approval process analysis.   
 
Mr. Miller announced that, effective September 12, City Hall will have extended 
hours of operation on Wednesday from 7 a.m. to 6 p.m.  
 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:37 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\07-10-07 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



DATE:           July 3, 2007
TO:               Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:          Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:     Permits issued during the Month of June 2007

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 6 $325,500.00 $3,152.00
Wreck 4 $0.00 $400.00

Sub Total 10 $325,500.00 $3,552.00

COMMERCIAL
New 1 $120,000.00 $985.00
Add/Alter 18 $1,759,109.00 $14,567.00
Kiosk 1 $600.00 $35.00

Sub Total 20 $1,879,709.00 $15,587.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 7 $1,564,383.00 $11,970.00
Add/Alter 50 $1,004,016.00 $12,009.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 8 $28,912.00 $708.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 12 $162,800.00 $2,199.00
Repair 1 $25,000.00 $320.00
Wreck 3 $0.00 $170.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 4 $11,600.00 $300.00

Sub Total 85 $2,796,711.00 $27,676.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 1 $170,988.00 $1,342.00
Add/Alter 6 $39,364.00 $676.00

Sub Total 7 $210,352.00 $2,018.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
New 1 $700,000.00 $5,045.00
Add/Alter 1 $70,000.00 $635.00

Sub Total 2 $770,000.00 $5,680.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 5 $75,000.00 $1,250.00
Signs 35 $0.00 $3,910.00
Fences 19 $0.00 $295.00

Sub Total 59 $75,000.00 $5,455.00

TOTAL 183 $6,057,272.00 $59,968.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



PERMITS ISSUED DURING JUNE 2007
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 90 $900.00
Cert. of Occupancy 30 $1,751.05
Plan Review 92 $3,666.00
Microfilm 35 $240.00
Building Permits 183 $59,968.00
Electrical Permits 188 $10,345.00
Heating Permits 126 $5,630.00
Air Cond. Permits 77 $2,870.00
Refrigeration Permits 1 $70.00
Plumbing Permits 107 $6,690.00
Storm Sewer Permits 25 $535.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 20 $702.00
Sewer Taps 1 $16,468.51

TOTAL 975 $109,835.56

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING JUNE 2007
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 20 $100.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 30 $450.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 28 $28.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 5 $50.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 3 $45.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 6 $60.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 44 $440.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 1 $15.00

TOTAL 25 $1,188.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2006 2006 2007 2007

JANUARY 116 $7,273,163.00 119 $7,595,008.00

FEBRUARY 94 $6,659,691.00 101 $8,056,092.00

MARCH 127 $5,629,425.00 135 $9,204,932.00

APRIL 174 $5,766,996.00 140 $4,844,929.00

MAY 216 $11,290,598.00 170 $11,201,261.00

JUNE 218 $10,681,352.00 183 $6,057,272.00

JULY 198 $11,269,902.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 150 $14,170,725.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 161 $12,827,192.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 134 $10,733,680.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 111 $6,690,950.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 94 $10,508,219.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1793 $113,501,893.00 848 $46,959,494.00



2004 2004

6 5 9 6 7
20
30
40
50
60

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2007

6 5 3
9 6 7

0
10

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
…

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Jul 6, 2007 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JUNE 2007Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter SYNERGY GROUP, INC. 755 W BIG BEAVER 500  150,000
Commercial, Add/Alter K R S  CONSTRUCTION, INC 2800 W BIG BEAVER S-204  146,000
Commercial, Add/Alter SYNERGY GROUP 755 W BIG BEAVER 1ST FL  200,000
Commercial, Add/Alter HUNTINGTON CONSTRUCTION 901 TOWER 450  330,800
Commercial, Add/Alter INTEGRATED ACOUSTICAL INC 1820 E BIG BEAVER 2ND FL  167,000
Commercial, Add/Alter COMMERCIAL CONTRACTORS, INC. 2800 W BIG BEAVER P-139  415,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,408,800

Commercial, New Building STUDIO OF CREATIVE DESIGN 3410 ROCHESTER  120,000

Commercial, New BuildingTotal  120,000

Industrial, Add/Alter WAHL, TED 1659 ROCHESTER  165,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  165,000

Inst./Hosp., New Construction BEAUMONT SERVICES COMPANY LLC 44201 DEQUINDRE CASSON  700,000

Inst./Hosp., New ConstructionTotal  700,000

Total Valuation:  2,393,800Records  10



DATE:        July 3, 2007     
TO:             Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT: Permits issued January through June 2007

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 42 $4,746,079.00 $38,386.00
Wreck 5 $0.00 $500.00
Parking Lot 1 $28,000.00 $341.00

Sub Total 48 $4,774,079.00 $39,227.00

COMMERCIAL
New 1 $120,000.00 $985.00
Shell New 2 $105,000.00 $1,025.00
Fnd./Shell New 3 $1,758,000.00 $12,741.00
New Less Tenent 1 $3,096,000.00 $17,625.00
Completion (New) 2 $1,645,000.00 $11,805.00
Tenant Completion 3 $184,000.00 $1,723.00
Add/Alter 120 $14,090,334.00 $113,344.00
Temp. Office Trailer 1 $4,500.00 $115.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $210.00
Repair 1 $3,075.00 $95.00
Fire Repair 1 $3,000.00 $75.00
Kiosk 1 $600.00 $35.00

Sub Total 138 $21,009,509.00 $159,778.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 36 $6,886,181.00 $53,464.00
Add/Alter 169 $3,487,191.00 $41,239.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 32 $129,755.00 $2,965.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 20 $197,824.00 $2,975.00
Repair 9 $170,813.00 $1,929.00
Fire Repair 6 $387,757.00 $3,600.00
Wreck 16 $20,000.00 $900.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 4 $11,600.00 $300.00

Sub Total 292 $11,291,121.00 $107,372.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 13 $1,989,684.00 $15,822.00
Add/Alter 18 $152,201.00 $2,623.00
Repair 3 $19,500.00 $465.00

Sub Total 34 $2,161,385.00 $18,910.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
New 1 $700,000.00 $5,045.00
Add/Alter 11 $6,835,500.00 $41,659.00

Sub Total 12 $7,535,500.00 $46,704.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 3 $96,000.00 $1,107.00

Sub Total 3 $96,000.00 $1,107.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 7 $91,900.00 $1,581.00
Signs 224 $0.00 $24,000.00
Fences 90 $0.00 $1,420.00

Sub Total 321 $91,900.00 $27,001.00

TOTAL 848 $46,959,494.00 $400,099.00

PERMITS ISSUED JANUARY THROUGH JUNE 2007
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 1002 $10,020.00
Cert. of Occupancy 158 $10,023.60
Plan Review 326 $17,246.00
Microfilm 141 $1,436.00
Building Permits 848 $400,099.00
Electrical Permits 821 $52,324.00
Heating Permits 608 $30,620.00
Air Cond. Permits 279 $13,065.00
Refrigeration Permits 4 $390.00
Plumbing Permits 431 $28,367.00
Storm Sewer Permits 69 $3,203.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 61 $2,097.00
Sewer Taps 43 $48,878.51

TOTAL 4791 $617,769.11

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF JANUARY THROUGH JUNE 2007
NO. LICENCE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 129 $645.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 205 $3,075.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 71 $71.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 27 $270.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 20 $300.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 10 $100.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 79 $790.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 16 $240.00

TOTAL 25 $5,491.00

Page 2



DATE:        July 3, 2007
TO:            Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued July 2006 through June 2007

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
New 2 $5,115,000.00 $29,865.00
Fnd. New 2 $2,290,000.00 $14,120.00
Completion (New) 2 $5,210,000.00 $30,160.00
Tenant Completion 1 $100,000.00 $845.00
Add/Alter 79 $6,783,534.00 $57,363.00
Wreck 5 $0.00 $500.00
Wall 1 $75,000.00 $670.00
Parking Lot 2 $42,000.00 $366.00

Sub Total 94 $19,615,534.00 $133,889.00

COMMERCIAL
New 2 $1,420,000.00 $9,630.00
Fnd. New 4 $4,170,000.00 $25,770.00
Shell New 4 $6,113,000.00 $33,345.00
Fnd./Shell New 4 $2,210,000.00 $16,050.00
New Less Tenent 2 $3,561,000.00 $21,025.00
Completion (New) 4 $3,245,000.00 $23,195.00
Tenant Completion 7 $329,000.00 $3,318.00
Accessory Structure 2 $10,500.00 $250.00
Add/Alter 251 $27,147,289.00 $221,331.00
Temp. Office Trailer 1 $4,500.00 $115.00
Wreck 3 $0.00 $310.00
Wall 2 $18,000.00 $325.00
Repair 1 $3,075.00 $95.00
Fire Repair 1 $3,000.00 $75.00
Kiosk 3 $230,600.00 $1,935.00

Sub Total 291 $48,464,964.00 $356,769.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 73 $15,231,335.00 $118,308.00
Add/Alter 336 $7,800,077.00 $89,688.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 70 $380,827.00 $7,617.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 47 $597,967.00 $8,153.00
Repair 22 $348,967.00 $4,470.00
Fire Repair 18 $1,808,051.00 $15,166.00
Wreck 31 $20,000.00 $1,830.00
Fnd./Slab/Rat Wall 1 $1,500.00 $355.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 4 $11,600.00 $300.00

Sub Total 602 $26,200,324.00 $245,887.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 37 $4,826,736.00 $39,217.00
Add/Alter 40 $328,029.00 $5,488.00
Ent. Wall/Masonry Fence 1 $65,000.00 $600.00
Repair 3 $19,500.00 $465.00

Sub Total 81 $5,239,265.00 $45,770.00

MULTIPLE
Add/Alter 1 $0.00 $30.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 4 $70,175.00 $1,091.00
Repair 3 $19,500.00 $465.00

Sub Total 8 $89,675.00 $1,586.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
New 1 $700,000.00 $5,045.00
Add/Alter 19 $11,371,500.00 $72,911.00

Sub Total 20 $12,071,500.00 $77,956.00

RELIGIOUS
Add/Alter 7 $1,332,000.00 $10,687.00

Sub Total $1,332,000.00 $10,687.00
7

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 10 $146,900.00 $2,336.00
Signs 414 $0.00 $44,425.00
Fences 169 $0.00 $2,665.00

Sub Total 593 $146,900.00 $49,426.00

TOTAL 1696 $113,160,162.00 $921,970.00

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED JULY 2006 THROUGH JUNE 2007
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 2457 $24,570.00
Cert. of Occupancy 435 $31,660.00
Plan Review 1059 $75,342.22
Microfilm 391 $3,808.00
Building Permits 1696 $921,692.00
Electrical Permits 1854 $127,300.00
Heating Permits 1362 $70,673.00
Air Cond. Permits 565 $26,753.00
Refrigeration Permits 5 $450.00
Plumbing Permits 1132 $76,999.00
Storm Sewer Permits 167 $10,694.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 166 $6,049.00
Sewer Taps 135 $83,518.51

TOTAL 11424 $1,459,508.73

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED JULY 2006 THROUGH JUNE 2007
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 401 $2,005.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 352 $5,190.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 192 $180.00
Sewer Inst.-Reg. 22 $1,200.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 49 $630.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 25 $465.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 19 $280.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 204 $2,030.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 24 $360.00

TOTAL 1288 $12,340.00

Page 3



CITY COUNCIL EXPENSE REPORT
Month of June, 2007

Council Person Expense  Date Purpose Amount Totals

Beltramini, Robin 6/14/2007 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 123.72$           
July - September 2007

123.72$             
Broomfield, Cristina 6/14/2007 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 194.85$           

July - September 2007

194.85$             
Wade Fleming 6/14/2007 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 215.70$           

July - September 2007

215.70$             
Howrylak, Martin F. -$                 

Lambert, David 6/14/2007 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 182.94$           
July - September 2007

182.94$             
Schilling, Louise E. 6/14/2007 Quarterly DSL Line 117.90$           

July - September 2007

117.90$             
Stine, Jeanne M. 6/14/2007 Quarterly Fax & DSL Line 119.85$           

July - September 2007

119.85$             

Total for Month 954.96$            

NOTE: This report is presented in compliance with Rules of Procedure for the City Council,
            Item 18. Miscellaneous Expenses

Date Prepared: 6/14/2007
Final Preparation By: J. Nash

S://Finance/Template - City Council monthly expense report.xls

campbellld
Text Box
J-02e



campbellld
Text Box
J-03a





campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-03d



campbellld
Text Box
J-03e



campbellld
Text Box
J-03f



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 23, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other 
Organizations:  
J-4 No Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from 

Other Organizations  

campbellld
Text Box
J-04



1 7/18/2007agenda

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30 31

July 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11

12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

August 2007July 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun

July 1

2 3
7:00pm CANCELLED Ethnic 

Issues Advisory Board
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm CANCELLED Historic 
District Study 
Committee (Museum 

4
City Hall Closed

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

5 6 7

8

9
7:00pm CANCELLED Liquor 

Advisory Committee 
Meeting (Conference 
Room Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

10
7:30am Civil Service 

Commission (Act 78) 
6:00pm Planning Commission 

(Special Meeting) (Co
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 
7:30pm Planning Commission 

11
8:30am Buiilding Code Board 

of Appeals (Lower 
Level Conference Ro

12:00pm Employee's 
Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 

12 13 14

15

16 17
3:00pm CANCELLED BRA 

Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

7:30pm BZA (Chambers)

18
7:30am CANCELLED DDA 

Meeting (Conference 
Room Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

19
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 

7:00pm CANCELLED Cable 
Advisory Committee 
(Conference Room C)

20 21

22

23
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

24
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

25 26 27 28

29

30
3:00pm LDFA Committee 

(Council Boardroom)

31
7:30pm Planning Commission 

(Special Meeting) 
(Council Boardroom)

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



2 7/18/2007agenda

S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4

5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 28 29 30 31

August 2007
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

September 2007August 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
August 1

8:30am Building Code Board 
of Appeals (Lower 
Level Conference Ro

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm City Council-Special 
Meeting-Chamber of 

2 3 4

5

6
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

7
7:30pm Historic District Study

Committee (Museum 
Resource Room)

8
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

9 10 11

12

13
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

14
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

15
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

16
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

17 18

19

20
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

21
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)

22
7:00pm Youth Council 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

23 24 25

26

27 28
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

29 30 31



3 7/18/2007agenda

S M T W T F S
1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30

September 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5 6
7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28 29 30 31

October 2007September 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
September 1

2

3
City Hall Closed

4
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Historic District Study
Committee (Museum 
Resource Room)

5
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals (Lower 
Level Conference 
Room)

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

6
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

7 8

9

10
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

11
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

12
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

1:00pm Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Board 
(Conference Room C)

13
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

14 15

16

17
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

18
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

19
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

20
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

21 22

23

24 25
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

7:30pm Historical Commission
(Museum Resource 
Room)

26
7:00pm Youth Council 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

27 28 29

30



 1

 
 
 
DATE: July 13, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number ZOTA 232) - Big Beaver Overlay 

District 
 
 
Background: 
 
• The Key Concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Study were adopted by City Council, 

Planning Commission and Downtown Development Authority in 2006. 
 
• The Study proposed a significant number of recommendations to implement the Key 

Concepts.  Many of the recommendations would not be permitted by the City of Troy 
Zoning Ordinance. 

 
• The Planning Department, with assistance from Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc., is 

preparing Big Beaver Overlay District provisions.  The provisions will include form-based 
zoning techniques, with regulations unique to each of the districts proposed in the Big 
Beaver Corridor District.  These regulations will be mandatory rather than voluntary. 

 
• It is anticipated that the first draft of the document will be presented to the Planning 

Commission within the next 4 weeks. 
 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-06



 2

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The proposed amendment is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and 

safety of the community), Goal II (Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and 
effectiveness of City government), Goal III (Retain and attract investment while 
encouraging redevelopment) and Goal V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to 
meet changing public needs). 

 
Options: 
 
• City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 

 
 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 

 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 232 Big Beaver Overlay District\CC Update Memo 07 23 07.doc 



 

 
 
July 16, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Carol K. Anderson, Director of Parks and Recreation 
 
SUBJECT:   Troy Community Center Pass Holder Survey Results 
 
Background: 
 
 The Troy Community Center has over 8,000 individual recreation pass holders and sends a 

customer satisfaction survey to each household.  During the 2006 membership period, 272 
surveys were returned and the cumulative score indicated that members where highly satisfied 
with the majority of the areas identified in the survey (See Exhibit).   

 The only area to score below 80% was the Hours of Operation for the Pool (76%).  Programs such 
as swim lessons and aqua aerobics require the pool to be closed for open swim and lap swimming 
activities during many hours the building is open.  Despite maximizing the number of hours the 
pool is open, the only alternative is to expand the pool area to include another body of water that 
would allow these activities to take place simultaneously. However, the cost for this type of 
expansion and the location of the pool within the Community Center would make it very costly and 
complicated. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Membership fees and daily pass sales are an important part of the Community Center budget as 

revenue for the 2005-06 fiscal year in this account totaled $1.6 million.   Maintaining high 
customer satisfaction scores is an indication that members will continue and revenues will be 
maintained.  

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-07



July 16, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Troy Community Center Pass Holder Survey Results 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Survey responders have provided many valuable suggestions and comments regarding 

Community Center policies and procedures.  Staff routinely reviews these responses and 
determines if they can be implemented in order to improve the pass holder experience at the 
Community Center.   

 



Replies: 272

Head of Household:
Gender: Male: 144 Female: 112
Age: 18-29 15 30-39 41 40-49 55 50-59 62 60+ 93

How often do you come to the Center?
1/wk 19 2/wk 47 3/wk 77 4/wk 33
5/wk 26 6/wk 4 Daily 25 x/Month 17

How long have you been a Pass Holder?
12 50
46 103

What recreation space in the facility do you use? List in order of usage (1, 2, 3)
Fitness Room #1 198 Gym #1 24 Pool #1 61
Fitness Room #2 22 Gym #2 43 Pool #2 54
Fitness Room #3 2 Gym #3 5 Pool #3 12

A.  FACILITIES Not Satisfied Somewhat 
Dissatisfied Satisfied Above 

Satisfactory
Highly 

Satisfied Total
% Rated 3, 4

1 2 3 4 5 or 5

1.  How easy was it to enter the Center? 0 4 33 40 186 263 98.48%
2.  How easy was it to find your way around the facility? 0 0 35 53 175 263 100.00%
3.  Convenience of parking. 0 9 49 73 137 268 96.64%
4.  Décor and cheerfulness of the facility. 1 4 40 79 144 268 98.13%
5.  Hours of operation (Fitness Room). 6 15 56 49 113 239 91.21%
6.  Hours of operation (Pool). 8 26 44 32 36 146 76.71%
7.  Hours of operation (Gymnasium) 1 5 25 21 35 87 93.10%
8.  Hours of operation (Café) 7 5 31 22 19 84 85.71%
9.  Hours of operation (Kids Korner) 0 6 13 11 10 40 85.00%
10.  How would you rate the condition of the following areas:

               a.  Pool 0 5 28 34 86 153 96.73%
               b.  Gymnasium 1 3 22 24 64 114 96.49%
               c.  Locker Rooms 5 13 53 61 98 230 92.17%
               d.  Fitness Room 3 8 43 68 108 230 95.22%
               e.  Kids Korner 0 1 7 16 26 50 98.00%
               f.   Studios 0 5 12 14 36 67 92.54%
               g.  Café 5 3 26 22 45 101 92.08%

2006 PASS HOLDER SURVEY RESULTS

Other family member's ages:

Less than 1 year 1 to 2 years
2 to 3 years 3 to 4 years

11. Any suggestions for future equipment or services?
12. Comments (describe good or bad):



B.  PASS REGISTRATION Not Satisfied Somewhat 
Dissatisfied Satisfied Above 

Satisfactory
Highly 

Satisfied Total
% Rated 3, 4

1 2 3 4 5 or 5

1.  How well were your questions answered? 2 4 54 58 122 240 97.50%
2.  Ease of registration and payment process. 3 5 54 50 132 244 96.72%
3.  How did you hear about the fitness center?

C.  STAFFING Not Satisfied Somewhat 
Dissatisfied Satisfied Above 

Satisfactory
Highly 

Satisfied Total
% Rated 3, 4

1 2 3 4 5 or 5

1.  Response to concerns/complaints made during your visit. 0 16 51 51 70 188 91.49%
2.  Staff knowledge of questions you had. 2 11 63 55 84 215 93.95%
3.  Overall supervision of the facility. 1 7 67 65 103 243 96.71%
4.  Staff friendliness and helpfulness:

                    Front Desk Staff (South Entrance) 1 10 52 72 113 248 95.56%
                    Building Supervisors 0 3 31 34 70 138 97.83%
                    Control Desk Staff 1 6 45 51 118 221 96.83%
                    Aquatic Staff 0 2 31 31 67 131 98.47%
                    Fitness Room Staff 3 9 48 51 101 212 94.34%
                    Custodians 1 4 32 38 62 137 96.35%
                    Personal Trainers 0 2 19 28 64 113 98.23%
                    Kids Korner Staff 0 1 10 11 20 42 97.62%

 

D.  SPECIAL SERVICES Not Satisfied Somewhat 
Dissatisfied Satisfied Above 

Satisfactory
Highly 

Satisfied Total
% Rated 3, 4

1 2 3 4 5 or 5

1.  Price for a membership? 1 13 91 44 107 256 94.53%
2.  Price for a Kids Korner visit? 2 2 11 12 8 35 88.57%
3.  Price for locker rental service? 1 4 17 12 11 45 88.89%
4.  Price for food in Emerald Cafe? 4 9 36 15 18 82 84.15%

4.  Comments (describe good or bad):

5.  Comments (describe good or bad): 

5.  Comments (describe good or bad):



E.  PUBLICITY Not Satisfied Somewhat 
Dissatisfied Satisfied Above 

Satisfactory
Highly 

Satisfied Total
% Rated 3, 4

1 2 3 4 5 or 5

1.  Is the Troy Today easy to read and informative? 0 3 59 63 94 219 98.63%
2.  How do you rate our newly designed website? 3 3 34 32 31 103 94.17%
               a.  Easy to access. 2 7 30 37 34 110 91.82%
               b.  Easy to read and informative. 4 3 32 37 33 109 93.58%
               c.  Updated on regular basis. 1 3 31 36 30 101 96.04%
3.  Is the marquee and plasma screen informative? 1 4 37 27 28 97 94.85%
4.  How did you hear about what the recreational services offered at the Center?  (Circle all that apply)

158 12 Other
18 80
5 42

F.  OVERALL ASSESSMENT Not Satisfied Somewhat 
Dissatisfied Satisfied Above 

Satisfactory
Highly 

Satisfied Total
% Rated 3, 4

1 2 3 4 5 or 5

1.  Overall rating of your visit(s). 0 1 58 55 141 255 99.61%
2.  Likelihood you would recommend the Center to others? 0 2 36 55 159 252 99.21%
3.  Degree to which our services meet your expectations. 0 5 51 68 130 254 98.03%
4.  How do you rate the Policy and Procedures/House Rules? 2 10 60 51 105 228 94.74%
5.  Are Policy & Procedures carried out? 4 11 41 56 88 200 92.50%

Troy Today

5.  Comments (describe good or bad): 

6.  Comments (describe good or bad):

Flyers
Website Word of Mouth

Local Cable Troy Gazzette



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 23, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
  
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted 
 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 23, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on 
items, which appear on the printed Agenda, will be 
allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon 
recognition by the Chair in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, during the 
Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. 
Other than asking questions for the purposes of gaining 
insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt or 
debate with members of the public during their 
comments. Once discussion is brought back to the 
Council table, persons from the audience will be 
permitted to speak only by invitation by Council, 
through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of 
the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you 
feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, 
you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the 
City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
K-99 PC



       
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
July 23, 2007 

Back-Up Documentation 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
 

 

There is no back-up documentation on this 
Agenda item at the time of publication. 

 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – Performance Evaluation of the City Manager as 
Permitted by Council Resolution #2007-07-215b   

 

campbellld
Text Box
L-01


	AGENDA: July 23, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Request for Establishment of an Industrial Development D
	C-2 Request for Consideration to Grant an Industrial Facilit
	C-3 Re-programming Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 No Postponed Items

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted
	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9 – M�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 – B�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – A�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bi�

	E-5 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road 
	E-6 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreements and Acceptan
	E-7 Private Agreement for Troy School District (Transportati
	E-8 Private Agreement for Dequindre Road Taco Bell – Project
	E-9 Request for Approval of Purchase Agreement, John R Road 

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: No Appointments Scheduled b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Histor
	F-2 Bid Waiver – Pavement Seam and Fracture Sealing Program
	F-3 Request for Street Name Change – Daley Street South of B
	F-4 Contract Addendum No. 1 – Contract 06-2, Sylvan Glen Gol
	F-5 Personnel Evaluation – City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 231) – Ar

	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Proposed Revision to Chapter 85, Sign Ordinance – Subdivisio
	Proposed Smoking Lounge Ordinance


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Final – March 12, 2007
	Historic District Commission/Final – March 20, 2007
	Historic Commission/Final – March 27, 2007
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Final – May 8, 2007
	Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – June 5, 2007
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – June 7, 2007
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – June 11, 2007
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – June 13, 2007
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – June 
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – June 19, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – June 26, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – June 26, 2007
	Planning Commission/Draft – July 10, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Council Member Lambert’s Travel Expense Report – NLC Communi
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of Jun
	Building Department – Permits Issued January through June, 2
	Building Department – Permits Issued July, 2006 through June
	Finance Department – City Council Expense Report for June, 2

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Appreciation to Sergeant Dan Daniel from Craig W. 
	Letter to Mayor and Council from Catherine Buck, President o
	Letter of Thanks to Ann Blizzard from Justin Hooks, Alliance
	Letter to Chief Craft from Father Stratton Dorozenski, St. N
	Letter to Chief Craft from Circuit Court Judge Edward Sosnic
	Letter of Thanks from the Peitsch Family Regarding the Troy 

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from Planning Director Mark Miller Regard
	J-7  Communication from Director of Parks and Recreation Car

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 No Study Items Submitted

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session – Performance Evaluation of the City Mana

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT

	Reset: 
	Check Box4: 
	0: 
	0: no

	1: 
	0: Yes

	2: 
	0: no

	3: 
	0: no

	4: 
	0: no


	Text1: 
	0: 
	1: 700000
	2: 700000

	Check Box5: Yes
	Text2: 
	0: 
	0: 
	1: 
	2: 
	3: 
	4: 
	5: 
	6: 
	7: 
	8: 
	9: 
	10: 


	Check Box6: no
	Check Box7: no
	Check Box8: no
	Check Box9: no
	Check Box10: no
	Check Box11: no
	Check Box12: no
	Check Box13: no
	Check Box14: no
	Check Box15: no
	official: 
	name: Leger A. (Nino) Licari, City Assessor



